QuickLinks-- Click here to rapidly navigate through this domnt

UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended January 30, 2015

Commission file number: 001-11421

DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its arart

TENNESSEE 61-0502302
(State or other jurisdiction « (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organizatio Identification No.)

100 MISSION RIDGE
GOODLETTSVILLE, TN 37072
(Address of principal executive offices, zip code)

(615) 855-4000
Registrant's telephone number, including area code:

Securities registered pursuant to SectR(b) of the Act:

Securities registered pursuant to SectR(g) of the ActNone
Indicate by check mark if the registranaiwell-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Ribeof the Securities Act. Ye&l No O
Indicate by check mark if the registranhot required to file reports pursuant to Secti@ror 15(d) of the Act. Ye£d No

Indicate by check mark whether the regigt(1) has filed all reports required to be fildSection 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 mofah$or such shorter period that the registrans wegjuired to file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirementsHe past 90 days. Y& No O

Indicate by check mark whether the regigthas submitted electronically and posted oedtporate Web site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted puntsio Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the préwgd 2 months (or for such shorter
period that the registrant was required to submt gost such files). Yefl No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure ofiniguent filers pursuant to Item 405 of RegulatiK is not contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant's knowledgeleffinitive proxy or information statements incorated by reference in Part 11l of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 104K.

Indicate by check mark whether the regidtis a large accelerated filer, an accelerated fi non-accelerated filer, or a smaller
reporting company. See the definitions of "largeederated filer," "accelerated filer" and "smalleporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the
Exchange Act



Large accelerated Accelerated filel Non-accelerated fileEd Smaller reporting
filer O company

Indicate by check mark whether the regitis a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-hefExchange Act). Yefl No

The aggregate fair market value of thestegnt's common stock outstanding and held byaftihates as of August 1, 2014 was
$16.89 billion calculated using the closing marnbeéte of our common stock as reported on the NYSEuxh date ($55.77). For this purpc
directors, executive officers and greater than 18é6rd shareholders are considered the affiliaftéfseoregistrant.

The registrant had 303,415,449 sharesminton stock outstanding as of March 12, 2015.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Certain of the information required in Pldirof this Form 10K is incorporated by reference to the Registrat@finitive proxy stateme
to be filed for the Annual Meeting of Sharehold&rde held on May 27, 2015.




INTRODUCTION
General

This report contains references to yea$20014, 2013, 2012, 2011, and 2010, which reptdseal years ending or ended January
2016, January 30, 2015, January 31, 2014, Febfiy&913, February 3, 2012, and January 28, 20%pertively. Our fiscal year ends on the
Friday closest to January 31, and each of the Visted will be or were 52-week years, with the eption of 2011 which consisted of
53 weeks. All of the discussion and analysis is teport should be read with, and is qualifiedsrentirety by, the Consolidated Financial
Statements and related notes.

Solely for convenience, our trademarks adenames may appear in this report without ttee ®M symbol which is not intended to
indicate that we will not assert, to the fullestest under applicable law, our rights or the righthese trademarks and tradenames.

Cautionary Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Staements

We include "forward-looking statements”hiit the meaning of the federal securities lawsugtmut this report, particularly under the
headings "Business," "Management's Discussion aradyAis of Financial Condition and Results of Ofierss," and "Note 8—Commitments
and Contingencies," among others. You can idethi#ge statements because they are not limitedtorigial fact or they use words such as
"may," "will," "should," "could," "believe," "antipate," "project,” "plan," "expect," "estimate,'otecast,” "goal," "potential,” "opportunity,"
"intend," "will likely result,” or "will continue"and similar expressions that concern our stratelgys, intentions or beliefs about future
occurrences or results. For example, all statenretating to our estimated and projected expenelitucash flows, results of operations,
financial condition and liquidity; our plans, obiees and expectations for future operations, ghoovtinitiatives; or the expected outcome or
effect of legislative or regulatory changes ori@tives, pending or threatened litigation or audits forward-looking statements.

All forward-looking statements are subjectisks and uncertainties that may change atiamg, 50 our actual results may differ
materially from those that we expected. We deriamynof these statements from our operating budgetforecasts, which are based on
many detailed assumptions that we believe are nedd®. However, it is very difficult to predict tieffect of known factors, and we cannot
anticipate all factors that could affect our acteslults.

Important factors that could cause actesllts to differ materially from the expectatiompressed in our forwarkboking statements a
disclosed under "Risk Factors" in Part |, Iltem I &lsewhere in this document (including, withaenitation, in conjunction with the
forward-looking statements themselves and undehélagling "Critical Accounting Policies and EstingljeAll forward-looking statements
are qualified in their entirety by these and otteutionary statements that we make from time te fimour other SEC filings and public
communications. You should evaluate such statenieriee context of these risks and uncertaintiégese factors may not contain all of the
factors that are important to you. We cannot asgouethat we will realize the results or developitseme anticipate or, even if substantially
realized, that they will result in the consequermeaffect us in the way we expect. Forward-lookstatements are made only as of the date
hereof. We undertake no obligation to publicly upedar revise any forward-looking statement as alte$ new information, future events or
otherwise, except as otherwise required by law.




PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

We are the largest discount retailer intinged States by number of stores, with 11,878esttocated in 43 states as of February 27,
2015, primarily in the southern, southwestern, na@st@rn and eastern United States. We offer a kseladtion of merchandise, including
consumables, seasonal, home products and apparah&chandise includes high quality national bsaindm leading manufacturers, as v
as comparable quality private brand selections piittes at substantial discounts to national brawés offer our merchandise at everyday
low prices (typically $10 or less) through our cenient small-box locations, with selling space agarg approximately 7,400 square feet.

Our History

J.L. Turner founded our Company in 1939.as Turner and Son, Wholesale. We were incorpdragea Kentucky corporation under the
name J.L. Turner & Son, Inc. in 1955, when we open# first Dollar General store. We changed oum@ao Dollar General Corporation in
1968 and reincorporated in 1998 as a Tennesseeratigm. Our common stock was publicly traded fro®68 until July 2007, when we
merged with an entity controlled by investment faiadfiliated with Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. L,Br KKR. In November 2009 our
common stock again became publicly traded, andeicenber 2013 the entity controlled by investmentfuaffiliated with KKR sold its
remaining shares of our common stock.

Our Business Model

Our long history of profitable growth isuieded on a commitment to a relatively simple bussnmaodel: providing a broad base of
customers with their basic everyday and househeddls, supplemented with a variety of general mexdika items, at everyday low prices in
conveniently located, small-box stores. We configuavaluate the needs and demands of our custoamersnodify our merchandise
selections and pricing accordingly, while remainiogused on increasing profitability and returnsdar shareholders.

In fiscal year 2014, we achieved ouf®8onsecutive year of same-store sales growth. grioisth, regardless of economic conditions,
suggests that we have a less cyclical businessirtimemost retailers and, we believe, is a resfuttur compelling value and convenience
proposition.

Compelling Value and Convenience Propositio Our ability to deliver highly competitive prie®n national brand and quality private
brand products in convenient locations and our &asgnd out" shopping format create a compellihgmping experience that distinguishes
us from other discount retailers as well as corsere, drug and grocery retailers. Our slogan "Siave Save money. Every day!"
summarizes our appeal to customers. We believalality to effectively deliver both value and comience allows us to succeed in small
markets with limited shopping alternatives, as waslko profitably coexist alongside larger retailiermore competitive markets. Our value
and convenience proposition is evidenced by tHevdhg attributes of our business model:

. Convenient Locations.Our stores are conveniently located in a vamétyural, suburban and urban communities, currently
with approximately 70% serving communities with ptagions of fewer than 20,000. In more densely peated areas, our
small-box stores typically serve the closely sunding neighborhoods. The majority of our custontigeswithin three to five
miles, or a 10-minute drive, of our stores. Ousselproximity to customers drives customer loyaitgl &ip frequency and
makes us an attractive alternative to large distand other large-box retail
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and grocery stores which are often located farhexy. Our low-cost economic model enables us tees@iany areas with
fewer than 1,500 households.

. Time-Saving Shopping Experienc®e also provide customers with a highly convengopping experience. Our stores'
smaller size allows us to locate parking near thetfentrance. Our product offering includes mestassities, such as basic
packaged and refrigerated food and dairy prodetéaning supplies, paper products, health and peame items, greeting
cards, basic apparel, housewares, hardware anchatite supplies, among others. Our convenient handsbroad
merchandise offering allow our customers to futfikir routine shopping requirements and minimiggrtneed to shop
elsewhere.

. Everyday Low Prices on Quality Merchandis@ur research indicates that we offer a price athge over most food and drug
retailers and that our prices are highly competitivith even the largest discount retailers. As sughbelieve our emphasis on
affordability continues to resonate with our cuséos) propelling growth in sales, unit share, anthdshare as indicated in
syndicated market share gains. Our ability to offegryday low prices on quality merchandise is sugol by our low-cost
operating structure and our strategy to maintdimied number of stock keeping units ("SKUs") pategory, which we
believe helps us maintain strong purchasing poMest items are priced at $10 or less, with appratety 25% at $1 or less.
We offer quality nationally advertised brands atsh everyday low prices in addition to offering own comparable quality
private brands at value prices.

Substantial Growth Opportunities. We believe we have substantial long-term grguattential in the U.S. We have identified
significant opportunities to add new stores in battsting and new markets. In addition, we haveoopmities to relocate or remodel locati
within our existing store base to better servecustomers.

Our attractive store economics, includimglatively low initial investment and simple, lawst operating model have allowed us to g
our store base to current levels and provide usfggnt opportunities to continue our profitabtere growth strategy.

Our Operating Priorities

We believe we continue to have signifiocgmportunities to drive profitable growth by contiimg to expand upon our simple business
model, which is largely focused on serving the sesfdow and fixed income consumers, segmentsefXl$. population that have continued
to grow over the past several years. We believdaurkey operating priorities are critical to tomg-term growth and profitability of our
company. These priorities are 1) drive productaes growth; 2) enhance our gross profit rateg@¢lage process improvements and
information technology to reduce costs; and 4)ngfiieen and expand Dollar General's culture of agrethers.

Drive Productive Sales Growth. We believe our customer-driven merchandiseanik attractive value proposition, combined with the
impact of our remodeled and relocated stores peoaidtrong basis for increased same-store sales.cOmparable 52-week basis, our same-
store sales increased 2.8% in 2014, 3.3% in 20d3af%0 in 2012. Our average net sales per squatelfased on total stores, increased to
$223 in 2014 from $220 in 2013 and $216 in 2012.

In 2014 we continued to innovate in our@ing pursuit to maximize the sales productivityoaf stores, experiencing continued success
of our 2013 introduction of tobacco products witsjive comparable same-store sales after the arsaivy. Among other initiatives, we
further expanded our perishables offerings to rtteeheeds of our customer and renewed our focd$d da $5 items, with more than 75% of
our SKUs at 2014 year-end priced at $5 or lesdin§ebbacco products and perishables drives nreguint shopping trips by our existing
customers and attracts new customers by makingtotgs more relevant to a broader customer basdeliésre we have opportunities to
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increase our store productivity in 2015 throughttared improvements in store space utilizationcipg and markdown optimization and
additional merchandising initiatives, such as ferihg the successful launch of our DG Digital Coupprogram, which allows our customers
to access digital coupons via the internet, smartph and similar devices.

Our new store expansion strategy alsccistiaal element of our priority to drive productiwales growth. We have confidence in our
estate disciplines and in our ability to identifjpen and operate successful new stores. In 201dpamed 700 new stores and increased our
selling square footage by over 6%. We invest sigaift time and energy into analyzing new store ofpmities. Our site selection technology
affirms our confidence in our ability to accelerdie expansion of our store base in 2016. In 2@&5plan to open 730 new stores and
increase our square footage by 6% as we continaggand in our core markets as well as newer stétesalso plan to continue to remodel
stores to update our appearance and relocate sbaregease square footage, where needed, impisiaility and accessibility or to obtain
more attractive lease terms.

Enhance Our Gross Profit Rate. Another key component of our growth strateggrisancing our gross profit rate.

We remain committed to an everyday low@{tEDLP") strategy that our customers can dependo strengthen our adherence to this
strategy and still maximize gross profit, we uslizarious pricing and merchandising options, inclgdimited zone pricing, markdown
optimization strategies and changes to our prosileiction, such as alternate national brands andterbrands, which generally have higher
gross profit rates. A successful first full yearodfiering tobacco products and our continued exipansf perishable food items contributed
significantly to increases in sales and gross pdufilars during 2014, although, as expected,lawar gross profit rate as a percentage of
sales. Importantly, we believe these categoriegnateumental to attaining our goals of driving mdrequent shopping trips, higher average
ticket, and attracting new customers. We believemtiatives to improve inventory shrinkage arevimg an impact, with our inventory
shrinkage rate as a percent to sales levelingddil4 compared to 2013. In addition, we maintaiwiagoing focus on reducing
transportation and distribution costs as well &sresf to minimize inventory damages.

Over the long term, we will continue oufoefs to reduce product costs through shrink redacfurther expansion of our private brands,
foreign sourcing, the use of online procurementians and incremental distribution and transpastagfficiencies. We also plan to continue
to refine our product selection to meet our custsheeeds in our home, apparel and seasonal ceegehich generally have higher gross
profit rates than consumables.

Leverage Process Improvements and InforroatiTechnology to Reduce Costs.As part of our ongoing efforts to improve oost
structure and enhance efficiencies throughout tarozation, in 2014 we made further progressrimpsifying our store processes. This
progress contributed to a reduction in store lasoa percentage of sales. In addition, we reatimetisavings from our centralized
procurement initiative and other expense reduaiforts. In 2015, we expect to achieve further sgsifrom our mining for cost reduction
initiatives and will remain focused on controllittgpse expenses that are within our control. Fagonsarily related to our cash incentive
compensation plan caused certain expenses in 2ddethigher than in 2013, as explained in furtheaitlin Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiiems contained in Part Il, Item 7 of this report.

Strengthen and Expand Our Culture of Sergi®thers. The mission of "Serving Others" has been keh¢oculture of Dollar Genet
for many years and we recognize the importanchisfrission to our long-term success. For custoitsaneans helping them "Save time.
Save money. Every day!" by providing clean, wetlested stores with quality products at low prices: &mployees, this means creating an
environment that attracts and retains key emplotl@esighout the organization. For the
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public, this means giving back to our store commiesithrough our charitable and other efforts. $taareholders, this means meeting their
expectations of an efficiently and profitably rumyanization that operates with compassion and iityeg

Our Merchandise

We offer a focused assortment of everydayessities, which drive frequent customer visitsl, key items in a broad range of general
merchandise categories. Our product assortmenida®the opportunity for our customers to addresstrof their basic shopping needs with
one trip. We sell high-quality national brands frieading manufacturers such as Procter & GamblesiBe, Coca-Cola, Nestle, General
Mills, Unilever, Kimberly Clark, Kellogg's and Namo, which are typically found at higher retailges elsewhere. Additionally, our private
brand consumables offer even greater value wittoogto purchase value items and national brand/algnt products at substantial
discounts to the national brand.

Our stores generally offer approximately0DD total SKUs per store; however, the numberkdfi§in a given store can vary based upon
the store's size, geographic location, mercharglisitiatives, seasonality, and other factors. Mafstur products are priced at $10 or less,
with approximately 25% at $1 or less and over 75%beor less. We separate our merchandise intodatagories: 1) consumables;

2) seasonal; 3) home products; and 4) apparel.

Consumables is our largest category arlddes paper and cleaning products (such as papetgobath tissue, paper dinnerware, trash
and storage bags, laundry and other home cleaojmgliss); packaged food (such as cereals, canngzssmd vegetables, condiments, spi
sugar and flour); perishables (such as milk, ebgsad, frozen meals, beer and wine); snacks (inducandy, cookies, crackers, salty snacks
and carbonated beverages); health and beauty dinglover-the-counter medicines and personal cardyets, such as soap, body wash,
shampoo, dental hygiene and foot care products)im@uding pet supplies and pet food); and tobgmmducts.

Seasonal products include decorations, tmgtseries, small electronics, greeting cardsiostary, prepaid phones and accessories,
gardening supplies, hardware, automotive and hdfreesupplies.

Home products includes kitchen supplieskea@re, small appliances, light bulbs, storage @ioets, frames, candles, craft supplies and
kitchen, bed and bath soft goods.

Apparel includes casual everyday appareinfiants, toddlers, girls, boys, women and menyel$ as socks, underwear, disposable
diapers, shoes and accessories.

The percentage of net sales of each ofaurcategories of merchandise for the fiscal y@aoigcated below was as follows:

2014 2013 2012

Consumable 75.1% 75.2% 73.“%
Seasons 12.4% 12.9% 13.6%
Home product: 6.4% 6.4% 6.6%
Apparel 55% 5.5% 5.2%

Our seasonal and home products categgpésatly account for the highest gross profit maggiand the consumables category typically
accounts for the lowest gross profit margin.

The Dollar General Store
The typical Dollar General store has, oerage, approximately 7,400 square feet of sellpage and is typically operated by a store

manager, one or more assistant store managerth@edor more sales associates. Approximately 688tiostores are in freestanding
buildings and 32% are in strip




shopping centers. Most of our customers live withiree to five miles, or a 10 minute drive, of stores.

Our typical store features a low cost, mitsfbuilding with limited maintenance capitalWoperating costs, and a focused merchandise
offering within a broad range of categories, allogvus to deliver low retail prices while generatstgpng cash flows and investment returns.
Our initial capital investment in new stores anideations varies depending on the lease structuosvoership as well as the size and loca
of the store and the number of coolers appropfatéhe location.

We generally have had good success initagatitable store sites in the past, and we belibat there is ample opportunity for new
store growth in existing and new markets. In additwe believe we have significant opportunitieai@ble for our relocation and remodel
programs.

Our store growth over the past three ymassimmarized in the following table:

Stores at Net

Beginning Stores Stores Store Stores at
Year of Year Opened Closed Increase End of Year
2012 9,93 625 56 56¢ 10,50¢
2013 10,50¢ 65C 24 62€ 11,13:
2014 11,13: 70C 43 657 11,78¢

Our Customers

Our customers seek value and convenienggefing on their financial situation and geograpinoximity, customers' reliance on
Dollar General varies from using Dollar Generalfft#in shopping, to making periodic trips to stoap on household items, to making
weekly or more frequent trips to meet most essenéiads. We generally locate our stores and plamauchandise selections to best serve
the needs of our core customers, the low and fixeasime households often underserved by other eesaibnd we are focused on helping tl
make the most of their spending dollars. At theesgéime, however, loyal Dollar General shoppers feomide range of income brackets and
life stages appreciate our quality merchandiseedkas our attractive value and convenience prdioosi

To attract new and retain existing cust@nee continue to focus on product quality, prodigdection, in-stock levels, pricing, targeted
advertising, store standards, convenient site imest and a pleasant overall customer experience.

Our Suppliers

We purchase merchandise from a wide vaaéguppliers and maintain direct buying relatiapstwith many producers of national
brand merchandise, such as Procter & Gamble, PepSi@a-Cola, Nestle, General Mills, Unilever, Kienly Clark, Kellogg's and Nabisco.
Despite our broad offering, we maintain only a tedi number of SKUs per category, giving us a pgadvantage in dealing with our
suppliers. Our largest and second largest sup@ich accounted for approximately 7% of our pures@s 2014. Our private brands come
from a diversified supplier base. We directly imedrapproximately $770 million or 6% of our purchssit cost (9% of our purchases based
on their retail value) in 2014. Our vendor arrangaeta generally provide for payment for such merdismin U.S. dollars.

We have consistently managed to obtairicefft quantities of core merchandise and belibeg, if one or more of our current source
supply became unavailable, we would generally ibe bobtain alternative sources without experiega@ substantial disruption of our
business. However, such alternative sources coalg@se our merchandise costs or reduce the qoabityr merchandise, and an inability to
obtain alternative sources could adversely affectsales.




Distribution and Transportation

Our stores are currently supported by tevelistribution centers located strategically thitoaug our geographic footprint. We have also
broken ground on our 1% distribution center in San Antonio, Texas whichewpect to be operational by the end of 2015. \lisde
additional temporary warehouse space as necessaupport our distribution needs. Over the pastyfears we have made significant
investments in facilities, technological improvernsand upgrades, and we continue to improve warkgsses, all of which increase our
efficiency and ability to support our merchandisamgl operations initiatives as well as our newesggowth. We continually analyze and
rebalance the network to ensure that it remainsiefit and provides the service our stores req@iee "—Properties" for additional
information pertaining to our distribution centers.

Most of our merchandise flows through oistrébution centers and is delivered to our stdngshird-party trucking firms, utilizing our
trailers. During 2014, the entire trucking industigperienced driver capacity issues and theseafestaffected our transportation costs.
Further, our agreements with trucking firms arechlagn estimated costs of diesel fuel, with theedéhce in estimated and current market
costs passed through to us. In late 2014, we biegsee a decline in global oil prices which hadaesponding effect on the price of diesel
fuel. The costs of diesel fuel are significantlfiuenced by international, political and economicemstances. If fuel price increases were to
occur for any reason, including fuel supply shogtgagr unusual price volatility, the resulting higheel prices could materially increase our
transportation costs.

Seasonality

Our business is seasonal to a certain exgamerally, our highest sales volume occurs énftiurth quarter, which includes the Christr
selling season, and the lowest occurs in thedusirter. In addition, our quarterly results caraffected by the timing of certain holidays, the
timing of new store openings and store closings aimount of sales contributed by new and existioges, as well as financial transactions
such as stock repurchases. We typically purchas&amntial amounts of inventory in the third quagrd incur higher shipping and payroll
costs in anticipation of increased sales activitsirdy the fourth quarter. In addition, we carry sfendise during our fourth quarter that we
not carry during the rest of the year, such assgifs, holiday decorations, certain baking itemd,abroader assortment of toys and candy.
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The following table reflects the seasogalit net sales, gross profit, and net income byrtgudor each of the quarters of our three most
recent fiscal years. Each of the quarters reflebtddw were comprised of 13 weeks.

(in millions) 15t Quarter 2" Quarter 3™ Quarter 4™ Quarter
Year Ended

January 30, 2015
Net sales $ 4522.. $ 4,724 $ 4,724. $ 4,939.:
Gross profit 1,357.; 1,455.¢ 1,423.° 1,565.
Net income(a 222.¢ 251.: 236.: 355.¢
Year Ended

January 31, 2014
Net sales $ 42337 $ 4394° $ 4,38L&f $ 4,493
Gross profit 1,295.; 1,377.: 1,328.! 1,434.¢
Net income(b’ 220.1 245t 237.¢ 322.2
Year Ended

February 1, 2013
Net sales $ 3901. $ 3,948.° $ 3,964t $ 4,207.¢
Gross profi 1,228.: 1,263.: 1,226.: 1,367.¢
Net income(c 213.¢ 214.1 207.7 317.¢
€) Includes expenses, net of income taxes, d@f &ifllion and $1.3 million, respectively, relateddn attempted

business acquisition in the third and fourth quarté 2014.

(b) Includes expenses, net of income taxes, of $11llbmrelated to the termination of credit fac#s in the first
quarter of 2013.

(c) Includes expenses, net of income taxes, of $17libmrelated to the redemption of long-term obtigas in the
second quarter of 201

Our Competition

We operate in the basic discount consuredg market, which is highly competitive with resi® price, store location, merchandise
quality, assortment and presentation, in-stock isterscy, and customer service. We compete withodiststores and with many other
retailers, including mass merchandise, warehousg grocery, drug, convenience, variety and otpeciglty stores. These other retail
companies operate stores in many of the areas weeoperate, and many of them engage in extendivertising and marketing efforts. Our
direct competitors include Family Dollar, Dollar€F, Fred's, 99 Cents Only and various local, indépet operators, as well as Walmart,
Target, Kroger, Aldi, Walgreens, CVS, and Rite Aathong others. Certain of our competitors havetgrdaancial, distribution, marketing
and other resources than we do.

We differentiate ourselves from other formfisetailing by offering consistently low pricesa convenient, small-store format. We
believe that our prices are competitive due in fiadur low cost operating structure and the reddyi limited assortment of products offered.
Purchasing large volumes of merchandise withinfocmsed assortment in each merchandise categomysails to keep our average costs
contributing to our ability to offer competitive enyday low prices to our customers. SeeOu+ Business Model" above for further discus:
of our competitive situation.

Our Employees

As of February 27, 2015, we employed apipnately 105,500 full-time and part-time employeesjuding divisional and regional
managers, district managers, store managers, stitrer personnel and distribution center and adtnatige personnel. We have increasingly
focused on recruiting, training, motivating andaieing employees, and we believe that the qualigyformance and morale
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of our employees have increased as a result. Wertly are not a party to any collective bargair@ggeements.
Our Trademarks

We own marks that are registered with théedd States Patent and Trademark Office and ateged under applicable intellectual
property laws, including without limitation the ttamarks Dollar General®, Dollar General Market®\@r Valley®, DG®, DG Deals®,
Forever Pals®, I*Magine®, OT Sport®, Smart & SimPldrueliving®, Sweet Smiles®, Open Trails®, BobBEeooks®, Comfort Bay®,
Holiday Style®, and Ever PéM along with variations and formatives of these tradeks as well as certain other trademarks. We attémn
obtain registration of our trademarks whenevertzable and to pursue vigorously any infringemeithose marks. Our trademark
registrations have various expiration dates; howeagsuming that the trademark registrations aspepty renewed, they have a perpetual
duration.

We also hold an exclusive license to thedRdrand through March 5, 2020.
Available Information

Our Internet website address is www.dobamyal.com. We file with or furnish to the Secestand Exchange Commission (the "SEC")
annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports om+10-Q, current reports on Fornk8and amendments to those reports, proxy states
and annual reports to shareholders, and, from tiintiene, registration statements and other docusndtese documents are available free of
charge to investors on or through the Investorrinfition section of our website as soon as reasppaatticable after we electronically file
them with or furnish them to the SEC. In additithie public may read and copy any of the materi&dile with the SEC at the SEC's Public
Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington @832 The public may obtain information on the agien of the Public Reference
Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The &E&@htains an internet site that contains reportsxypand information statements and
other information regarding issuers, such as D@laneral, that file electronically with the SEC €Tdddress of that website is
http://www.sec.gov.




ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the risksatidged below and the other information containethia report and other filings that we make
from time to time with the SEC, including our coldated financial statements and accompanying néteg of the following risks could
materially and adversely affect our business, famgrcondition, results of operations or liquidifjhese risks are not the only risks we face.
Our business, financial condition, results of ofieres or liquidity could also be adversely affecisdadditional factors that apply to all
companies generally or by risks not currently knawns or that we currently view to be immaterie can provide no assurance and make
no representation that our risk mitigation effoahough we believe they are reasonable, willlzesassful.

Current economic conditions and other eanic factors may adversely affect our financial fermance and other aspects of our
business by negatively impacting our customerspdisable income or discretionary spending, increasiour costs of goods sold and
selling, general and administrative expenses, amtversely affecting our sales or profitabilit

We believe many of our customers have fixebw incomes and generally have limited discorediry spending dollars. Any factor that
could adversely affect that disposable income waelctrease our customers' spending and could causeistomers to shift their spending to
products other than those sold by us or to ourpgessitable product choices, all of which coulduttsn lower net sales, decreases in inven
turnover, greater markdowns on inventory, a changlee mix of products we sell, and a reductiopiafitability due to lower margins.
Factors that could reduce our customers' disposatxdene and over which we exercise no influenc&uthe but are not limited to adverse
economic conditions such as increased or sustaiigbdunemployment or underemployment levels, ifdhatincreases in fuel or other energy
costs and interest rates, lack of available creditsumer debt levels, higher tax rates and othenges in tax laws, concerns over governr
mandated participation in health insurance prograngsincreasing healthcare costs, and decreagesémnment subsidies such as
unemployment and food assistance programs.

Many of the factors identified above thifieet disposable income, as well as commodity rdtassportation costs (including the costs of
diesel fuel), costs of labor, insurance and heat#hdoreign exchange rate fluctuations, leasescastasures that create barriers to or increase
the costs associated with international trade, gbain other laws and regulations and other econéantors, also affect our cost of goods
sold and our selling, general and administratiygeeses, and may have other adverse consequenaswehare unable to fully anticipate or
control, all of which may adversely affect our sate profitability. We have limited or no abilitp tontrol many of these factors.

Our plans depend significantly on strategiand initiatives designed to increase sales angrove the efficiencies, costs and
effectiveness of our operations, and failure to aehe or sustain these plans could affect our perf@ance adversely.

We have strategies and initiatives (sucthase relating to merchandising, sourcing, shnimksate brand, distribution and transportati
store operations, expense reduction, and reakgstatarious stages of testing, evaluation, anolémentation, upon which we expect to rely
to continue to improve our results of operationd fimancial condition and to achieve our finangikns. These initiatives are inherently risky
and uncertain, even when tested successfully gim #pplication to our business in general. Itasgible that successful testing can result
partially from resources and attention that camotiuplicated in broader implementation, partidylar light of the diverse geographic
locations of our stores and the decentralized raitiour field management. General implementatlsa may be negatively affected by other
risk factors described herein. Successful systemimgblementation relies on consistency of trainstgbility of workforce, ease of executis
and the absence of offsetting factors that canénfte results adversely. Failure to achieve suftdésgplementation of our
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initiatives or the cost of these initiatives exdegdnanagement's estimates could adversely aftedvusiness, results of operations and
financial condition.

The success of our merchandising initiajymrticularly those with respect to non-consumatérchandise and store-specific products
and allocations, depends in part upon our abititgredict consistently and successfully the prosltitat our customers will demand and to
identify and timely respond to evolving trends entbgraphics and consumer preferences, expectaimhseeds. If we are unable to select
products that are attractive to customers, to nk#ach products at costs that allow us to sell thean acceptable profit, or to effectively
market such products, our sales, market share rafitpility could be adversely affected. If our mkandising efforts in the non-
consumables area or the higher margin areas withisumables are unsuccessful, we could be furthersely affected by our inability to
offset the lower margins associated with our corshles business. Further, our merchandising effotise consumables area, including
tobacco products, may not generate the net sateglyand increase customer traffic to the levekxdlee to offset the lower margins gener
by sales of consumables and maintain our targetesk grofit margins.

If we cannot open, relocate or remodelrs® profitably and on schedule, our planned futugeowth will be impeded, which would
adversely affect sales.

Our ability to open, relocate and remodefifable stores is a key component of our planfuggre growth. Our ability to timely open
stores and to expand into additional market aregsids in part on the following factors: the availity of attractive store locations; the
absence of entitlement process or occupancy delagsibility to negotiate acceptable lease andldpueent terms; the ability to hire and
train new personnel, especially store manageis ciost effective manner; the ability to identifyistamer demand in different geographic
areas; general economic conditions; and the avtijatf capital funding for expansion. Many of e factors also affect our ability to
successfully relocate stores, and many of thenbeyend our control.

Delays or failures in opening new storesampleting relocations or remodels, or achievimgdr than expected sales in new stores,
could materially adversely affect our growth andgdmfitability. We also may not anticipate all dietchallenges imposed by the expansion of
our operations and, as a result, may not meetaogets for opening new stores, remodeling or reéillogatores or expanding profitably.

Some new stores may be located in areasawte have little or no meaningful experience @anlorrecognition. Those areas may have
different competitive and market conditions, consutastes and discretionary spending patternsdbaexisting markets, as well as higher
cost of entry, which may cause our new stores timitially less successful than stores in our exgsmarkets.

Many new stores will be located in areagmehwe have existing stores. Although we have éapee in these areas, increasing the
number of locations in these markets may resutadvertent oversaturation and temporarily or peremdly divert customers and sales from
our existing stores, thereby adversely affectingauerall financial performance.

Our profitability may be negatively affext by inventory shrinkage.

We are subject to the risk of inventoryslasd theft. We experience significant inventomrééage and cannot be sure that incidences of
inventory loss and theft will decrease in the fatar that the measures we are taking will effetfiveduce the problem of inventory
shrinkage. Although some level of inventory shrigkés an unavoidable cost of doing business, ifweree to experience higher rates of
inventory shrinkage or incur increased securitptber costs to combat inventory theft, our resoltsperations and financial condition could
be affected adversely.
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We face intense competition that could limit ouragywth opportunities and adversely impact our finaatperformance.

The retail business is highly competitivibwespect to price, store location, merchandisaity, assortment and presentation, in-stock
consistency, customer service, aggressive pronmadtamtivity, customers, and employees. We compétenatailers operating discount, mass
merchandise, warehouse club, grocery, drug, cormenj variety and other specialty stores. This @ditiye environment subjects us to the
risk of adverse impact to our financial performabeeause of the lower prices, and thus the lowegims, that may be required to maintain
our competitive position. Also, companies like quige to customer demographics and other factaag,lrave limited ability to increase
prices in response to increased costs withoutdosiimpetitive position. This limitation may advdysaffect our margins and financial
performance. Certain of our competitors have grdatancial, distribution, marketing and other resses than we do and may be able to
secure better arrangements with suppliers thanameltwe fail to respond effectively to competéipressures and changes in the retail
markets, it could adversely affect our financiatfpemance.

Competition for customers has intensifisdcampetitors have moved into, or increased theisgnce in, our geographic markets and
from the use of mobile and web-based technologyftwditates online shopping and real-time prodaratl price comparisons. We expect this
competition to continue to increase. In additiame of our large box competitors are or may be ldgireg small box formats, and increasing
the pace at which they will open the small box fatsnwhich will produce more competition. We remaitnerable to the marketing power
and high level of consumer recognition of thesgdacompetitors and to the risk that these congetir others could venture into our
industry in a significant way. Further, consolidatiwithin the discount retail industry could sigodgntly alter the competitive dynamics of the
retail marketplace. This consolidation may resutd@mpetitors with greatly improved financial resms, improved access to merchandise,
greater market penetration and other improvementseir competitive positions, as well as resulthia provision of a wider variety of
products and services at competitive prices byetisesisolidated companies, which could adversecaffur financial performance.

Our private brands may not maintain broathrket acceptance and increase the risks we face.

The sale of private brand items is an irtgo@rcomponent of our future sales growth and gpogft rate enhancement plans. We have
invested in our development and procurement regsuand marketing efforts relating to these pribatand offerings. We believe that our
success in maintaining broad market acceptancargbrivate brands depends on many factors, inctugiicing, our costs, quality and
customer perception. We may not achieve or mairtdairexpected sales for our private brands. Thamsipn of our private brand offerings
also subjects us to certain risks, such as: petgmbduct liability risks and mandatory or volurt@roduct recalls; our ability to successfully
protect our proprietary rights and successfullyigate and avoid claims related to the proprietaghits of third parties; our ability to
successfully administer and comply with applicatdatractual obligations and regulatory requiremesmsl other risks generally encountered
by entities that source, sell and market exclubrnamded offerings for retail. An increase in safsur private brands may also adversely
affect sales of our vendors' products, which, mtaould adversely affect our relationship withtaan of our vendors. Any failure to
appropriately address some or all of these riskdddoave a significant adverse effect on our bussineesults of operations and financial
condition.

A significant disruption to our distributin network, to the capacity of our distribution ctrs or to the timely receipt of inventory
could adversely impact sales or increase our tramgation costs, which would decrease our profits.

We rely on our distribution and transpdaiatetwork to provide goods to our stores in aetyrand cost-effective manner. Using various
modes of transportation, including ocean, rail, andk, we
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and our vendors move goods from vendor locatiomutaistribution centers. Deliveries to our stosesur from our distribution centers or
directly from our vendors. Any disruption, unanpiated or unusual expense or operational failuegedlto this process could affect store
operations negatively. For example, delivery delaymcreases in transportation costs (includinrgugh increased fuel costs, increased
carrier rates or driver wages as a result of drbhartages, a decrease in transportation capacityerseas shipments, or work stoppages or
slowdowns) could significantly decrease our abiidtynake sales and earn profits. Labor shortagesdt stoppages in the transportation
industry or long-term disruptions to the nationadl anternational transportation infrastructure tleaid to delays or interruptions of deliveries
or which would necessitate our securing alterndtber or shipping suppliers could also increasecosts or otherwise negatively affect our
business.

We maintain a network of distribution féa#ls and have plans to build new facilities tosoi our growth objectives. Delays in opening
distribution centers could adversely affect outfatfinancial performance by slowing store growthjch may in turn reduce revenue grov
or by increasing transportation costs. In additaistribution-related construction or expansionjgects entail risks that could cause delays and
cost overruns, such as: shortages of materialkillgdslabor; work stoppages; unforeseen constonctscheduling, engineering, environme
or geological problems; weather interference; foesther casualty losses; and unanticipated oastases. The completion date and ultimate
cost of these projects could differ significantlgrh initial expectations due to construction-radate other reasons. We cannot guarantee that
any project will be completed on time or withinaddtshed budgets.

Risks associated with or faced by our sligms could adversely affect our financial performae.

The products we sell are sourced from awikiety of domestic and international suppliarej we are dependent on our vendors to
supply merchandise in a timely and efficient manhe2014, our largest and second largest supptiaes accounted for 7% of our purchases.
We have not experienced any difficulty in obtaingdficient quantities of core merchandise anddwelithat, if one or more of our current
sources of supply became unavailable, we wouldrgdéipde able to obtain alternative sources withexgeriencing a substantial disruptior
our business. However, such alternative sourcelsl @acrease our merchandise costs, result in adeany reduction in store inventory levels,
and reduce the quality of our merchandise, andalpility to obtain alternative sources could adebraffect our sales. Additionally, if a
supplier fails to deliver on its commitments, whertdue to financial difficulties or other reasows, could experience merchandise out-of-
stocks that could lead to lost sales and damagarteeputation.

We directly imported approximately 6% of quirchases (measured at cost) in 2014, but maoyrolomestic vendors directly import
their products or components of their products.r@lea to the prices and flow of these goods forraagon, such as political unrest or acts of
war, currency fluctuations, disruptions in marititages, port labor disputes, and economic instgbilithe countries in which foreign
suppliers are located, the financial instabilitysappliers, suppliers' failure to meet our stansiagigbsues with labor practices of our suppliel
labor problems they may experience (such as striteppages or slowdowns, which could also incrésser costs during and following the
disruption), the availability and cost of raw méiks to suppliers, increased import duties, merdisnquality or safety issues, currency
exchange rates, transport availability and coahgport security, inflation, and other factorstiatato the suppliers and the countries in which
they are located or from which they import, aredyeyour control and could adversely affect our apens and profitability. While we are
working to reduce our dependency on goods prodirc€thina, a substantial amount of our imported menclise still comes from China, and
thus, a change in the Chinese leadership, intee@miomic stimulus actions, or currency or otheiced could negatively impact our
merchandise costs. In addition, the United Stédesign trade policies, tariffs and other imposisoon imported goods, trade sanctions
imposed on certain countries, the limitation onithportation of
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certain types of goods or of goods containing der@aterials from other countries and other factetating to foreign trade and port labor
agreements are beyond our control. These and fattiers affecting our suppliers and our accessadyrts could adversely affect our
business and financial performance. As we increasénports of merchandise from foreign vendors, risks associated with foreign impc
will increase, and we may be exposed to additioskb as we increase imports of goods producedumtries other than China.

Product liability and food safety claimsuald adversely affect our business, reputation dimthncial performance.

Despite our best efforts to ensure theityyaafety and freshness of the products thatellarsall of our stores, we may be subject to
product liability claims from customers or actioeguired or penalties assessed by government ageretating to products, including but |
limited to food products that are recalled, defectr otherwise alleged to be harmful. Such claimay result from tampering by unauthori:
third parties, product contamination or spoilageluding the presence of foreign objects, subswrateemicals, other agents, or residues
introduced during the growing, storage, handlind sansportation phases. All of our vendors and fir@ducts must comply with applicable
product and food safety laws, and we are deperatetitem to ensure that the products we buy comjity all safety standards. We generally
seek contractual indemnification and insurance @mefrom our suppliers. However, if we do not hadequate contractual indemnification
or insurance available, such claims could have temahadverse effect on our business, financiad#ion and results of operations. Our
ability to obtain indemnification from foreign sumys may be hindered by the manufacturers' ladknaferstanding of U.S. product liability
or other laws, which may result in our having tspend to claims or complaints from customers agifvere the manufacturer. Even with
adequate insurance and indemnification, such claonfd significantly damage our reputation and comsr confidence in our products. Our
litigation expenses could increase as well, whisb aould have a materially negative impact onresuilts of operations even if a product
liability claim is unsuccessful or is not fully muwed.

We are subject to governmental regulatippsocedures and requirements. A significant chanige or noncompliance with, these
regulations could have a material adverse effectaur financial performance.

Our business is subject to numerous an@&sing federal, state and local laws and reguigtidé/e routinely incur significant costs in
complying with these regulations. The complexitytted regulatory environment in which we operate tedrelated cost of compliance are
increasing due to expanding and additional legdlragulatory requirements and increased enforcesféorts. New laws or regulations,
particularly those dealing with healthcare refopmduct safety, food safety, information securitg grivacy, and labor and employment,
among others, or changes in existing laws and atiguals, particularly those governing the sale ofjpicts, may result in significant added
expenses or may require extensive system and opmpcdtanges that may be difficult to implement andbuld materially increase our cos
doing business. Untimely compliance or noncompkawith applicable regulations or untimely or incdeip execution of a required product
recall, can result in the imposition of penaltiesjuding loss of licenses or significant finesnaonetary penalties, class action litigation or
other litigation, in addition to reputational damead\dditionally, changes in tax laws, the interptigin of existing laws, or our failure to
sustain our reporting positions on examination d@dversely affect our effective tax rate.

Litigation may adversely affect our buss® results of operations and financial condition.

Our business is subject to the risk ofidition by employees, consumers, suppliers, conopgtishareholders, government agencies and
others through private actions, class actions, adtnative proceedings, regulatory actions or otitigation. The number of employment-
related class actions
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filed each year has continued to increase, andt@tmnges and proposed changes in Federal ardata, regulations and agency guidance
may cause claims to rise even more. The outcontiggattion, particularly class action lawsuits, tégtory actions and intellectual property
claims, is difficult to assess or quantify. Pldiistin these types of lawsuits may seek recovenyeoy large or indeterminate amounts, and the
magnitude of the potential loss relating to thesesuits may remain unknown for substantial perafdime. In addition, certain of these
lawsuits, if decided adversely to us or settledibymay result in liability material to our finaatstatements as a whole or may negatively
affect our operating results if changes to our thess operations are required. The cost to defdndeflitigation may be significant. There a
may be adverse publicity associated with litigatioat could negatively affect customer perceptibaw business, regardless of whether the
allegations are valid or whether we are ultimafelynd liable. As a result, litigation may adversaffect our business, results of operations
and financial condition. See Note 8 to the consiéd financial statements for further details rdgay certain of these pending matters.

Natural disasters (whether or not causeddiimate change), unusual weather conditions, pamic outbreaks, terrorist acts, and
global political events could disrupt business arabult in lower sales and otherwise adversely affear financial performance.

The occurrence of one or more natural ¢ésassuch as hurricanes, fires, floods, tornadoésearthquakes, unusual weather conditions,
pandemic outbreaks, terrorist acts or disruptiabal political events, such as civil unrest in doi@s in which our suppliers are located, or
similar disruptions could adversely affect our Inesis and financial performance. Uncharacterist&gnificant weather conditions can affect
consumer shopping patterns, which could lead tosales or greater than expected markdowns andsalyaffect our short-term results of
operations. To the extent these events resuleirtitisure of one or more of our distribution cesitarsignificant number of stores, or our
corporate headquarters or impact one or more okeyisuppliers, our operations and financial penfamce could be materially adversely
affected through an inability to make deliveriegpoovide other support functions to our stores #mdugh lost sales. In addition, these events
could result in increases in fuel (or other eneggyges or a fuel shortage, delays in opening rteves, the temporary lack of an adequate
work force in a market, the temporary or long-tefisruption in the supply of products from some dstitceand overseas suppliers, the
temporary disruption in the transport of goods froverseas, delay in the delivery of goods to osirifiution centers or stores, the inability of
customers to reach or have transportation to auestdirectly affected by such events, the tempaetuction in the availability of products
in our stores and disruption of our utility sendga@ to our information systems. These events@sdhave indirect consequences such as
increases in the costs of insurance if they resudignificant loss of property or other insuratEmage.

Material damage or interruptions to ourfarmation systems as a result of external factostaffing shortages or challenges or
difficulties in maintaining or updating our existig technology or developing or implementing new taology could have a material
adverse effect on our business or results of opienas.

We depend on a variety of information teabgy systems for the efficient functioning of dausiness and are continually improving our
information processes and computer systems torbetteour business. These technology initiativey mat deliver desired results or may do
so on a delayed schedule. Additionally, such systara subject to damage or interruption from pawgages, computer and
telecommunications failures, computer viruses, cydeurity breaches, natural disasters and human &amage or interruption to these
systems may require a significant investment tefixeplace them, and we may suffer interruptionsur operations in the interim, may
experience loss or corruption of critical data amady receive negative publicity, all of which coblave a material adverse effect on our
business or results of operations.
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We also rely heavily on our informationhieology staff. Failure to meet these staffing needy negatively affect our ability to fulfill
our technology initiatives while continuing to pidg maintenance on existing systems. We rely otaicevendors to maintain and
periodically upgrade many of these systems sattiegtcan continue to support our business. Thevaoft programs supporting many of our
systems were licensed to us by independent softdarelopers. The inability of these developerssotoucontinue to maintain and upgrade
these information systems and software programddaaiarupt or reduce the efficiency of our operatiaf we were unable to convert to
alternate systems in an efficient and timely manimeaddition, costs and potential problems andrimiptions associated with the
implementation of new or upgraded systems and tdogg or with maintenance or adequate support tieg systems could also disrupt or
reduce the efficiency of our operations.

Failure to attract, train and retain qudied employees while controlling labor costs, adlives other labor issues, could adversely
affect our financial performance.

Our future growth and performance and pasitustomer experience depends on our abilityttad, train, retain and motivate qualified
employees, many of whom are in positions with istdly high rates of turnover. Our ability to memir labor needs, while controlling our
labor costs, is subject to many external facterduiding competition for and availability of quadifl personnel in a given market,
unemployment levels within those markets, prevgilirage rates, minimum wage laws, health and ottserrance costs, and changes in
employment and labor laws (including changes inpiteeess for our employees to join a union) or otharkplace regulations (including
changes in "entitlement" programs such as headtlramce and paid leave programs). If we are uriatd#ract and retain adequate numbers
of qualified employees, our operations, customerice levels and support functions could suffer.tie extent a significant portion of our
employee base unionizes, or attempts to unionizelator costs could increase. In addition, the fed design changes required by
comprehensive healthcare reform legislation wikly continue to increase our healthcare costh@agiovisions of the legislation are being
phased in over time and individuals determine howespond. Our ability to pass along labor costsutocustomers is constrained by our
everyday low price model.

Our success depends on our executive eféand other key personnel. If we lose key persaror are unable to hire additional
qualified personnel, our business may be harmed.

Our future success depends to a signifidagtee on the skills, experience and efforts ofexecutive officers and other key personnel.
The unexpected loss of the services of any of mec@tive officers could have an adverse effectumnaperations. There can be no assurance
that our executive succession planning, retentidmrang efforts will be successful. Competitiorr fekilled and experienced management
personnel is intense, and our future success lgdl depend on our ability to attract and retainlifjed personnel, and a failure to attract and
retain new qualified personnel could have an adveffect on our operations. We do not currentlyntzan key person life insurance policies
with respect to our executive officers or key parss.

We have benefitted substantially from #edership and performance of our Chairman and Exe€utive Officer, Richard W. Dreilin
As we have previously disclosed, Mr. Dreiling wigtire on January 29, 2016. We are currently cotidg@ search for a new chief executive.
We cannot provide any assurance that we will npeernce a disruption in our executive managenmeobnnection with Mr. Dreiling's
retirement or our transition to a new chief exaajtiwhich could adversely affect our strategic plag and execution.

Our cash flows from operations may be négely affected if we are not successful in managiour inventory balances.

Our inventory balance represented approtatyp@9% of our total assets exclusive of goodatiltl other intangible assets as of
January 30, 2015. Efficient inventory managementksy component of
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our business success and profitability. To be ssfag we must maintain sufficient inventory levated an appropriate product mix to meet
our customers' demands without allowing those kt@increase to such an extent that the costsite and hold the goods unduly impacts
our financial results or that subjects us to thk& df increased inventory shrinkage. If our buyitegisions do not accurately predict customer
trends, we inappropriately price products or oyrestations about customer spending levels are umatx; we may have to take unanticipated
markdowns to dispose of the excess inventory, whlsb can adversely impact our financial results. 8ntinue to focus on ways to reduce
these risks, but we cannot make assurances thatliee successful in our inventory managementvéfare not successful in managing our
inventory balances, our cash flows from operatimay be negatively affected.

Because our business is seasonal to aagerxtent, with the highest volume of net salegitig the fourth quarter, adverse events
during the fourth quarter could materially affectur financial statements as a whole.

We generally recognize our highest volurheat sales during the Christmas selling seasoighwdccurs in the fourth quarter of our
fiscal year. In anticipation of this holiday, werphase substantial amounts of seasonal inventatyese events, such as deteriorating
economic conditions, high unemployment, high gasegr public transportation disruptions, or unusralnanticipated adverse weather cc
result in lower-than-planned sales during the faglideason. An excess of seasonal merchandise amyexuld result if our net sales during
the Christmas selling season fall below seasonmahso@r expectations. If our fourth quarter salesiits were substantially below
expectations, our financial performance and opegatsults could be adversely affected by unargteigp markdowns, especially in seasonal
merchandise.

Our current insurance program may exposg to unexpected costs and negatively affect ouafinial performance.

Our insurance coverage reflects deductilsielé-insured retentions, limits of liability asémilar provisions that we believe are prudent
based on the dispersion of our operations. Howehere are types of losses we may incur but agaihigth we cannot be insured or which
believe are not economically reasonable to insueh as losses due to acts of war, employee ataircether crime, wage and hour and o
employment-related claims, including class acti@msl some natural disasters. If we incur thesetoaad they are material, our business
could suffer. Certain material events may resuftirable losses for the insurance industry andraéiyeimpact the availability of adequate
insurance coverage or result in excessive premnemeases. To offset negative insurance marketdremel may elect to self-insure, accept
higher deductibles or reduce the amount of coverragesponse to these market changes. In additierself-insure a significant portion of
expected losses under our workers' compensatioomabile liability, general liability and group Hdainsurance programs. Unanticipated
changes in any applicable actuarial assumptionsramthgement estimates underlying our recordeditiabifor these losses, including
expected increases in medical and indemnity costgd result in materially different expenses teapected under these programs, which
could have a material adverse effect on our restiligperations and financial condition. Although eatinue to maintain property insurance
for catastrophic events at our store support cemdrdistribution centers, we are effectively setfured for other property losses. If we
experience a greater number of these losses thamtiogpate, our financial performance could beeaadely affected.
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Any failure to maintain the security of informationve hold relating to our customers, employees arddors, whether as a result
cybersecurity attacks or otherwise, could exposeaaibtigation, government enforcement actions andstly response measures, and could
materially disrupt our operations and harm our repation.

In connection with sales, we transmit cdefitial credit and debit card information. We dlswe access to, collect or maintain certain
private or confidential information regarding owstomers, employees and vendors, as well as oindsss We have procedures and
technology in place to safeguard such data andnrdtion. To our knowledge, computer hackers hateyamed significant access to the
information stored in, or otherwise gained accessur information and technology systems. Howeogerattacks are rapidly evolving and
becoming increasingly sophisticated. Additionallpder certain circumstances, we may share infoamatith vendors that assist us in
conducting our business, as required by law, dn thié permission of the individual. While we harglemented procedures to protect our
information and require appropriate controls of eeindors, it is possible that computer hackersathdrs might compromise our security
measures or those of our technology and other veriddhe future and obtain the personal informmatbour customers, employees and
vendors that we hold or our business information.

Because we accept debit and credit carmdsapment, we are subject to the Payment Card tndDsta Security Standards ("PCI DSS"),
issued by the Payment Card Industry Security Statsd@ouncil. PCI DSS contains compliance guidelares standards with regard to our
security surrounding the physical and electroricagje, processing, and transmission of cardholaler. €omplying with PCI DSS standards
and implementing related procedures, technologyimfiodmation security measures requires signifigasburces and ongoing attention. Even
if we comply with PCI DSS standards, we may be etdble to, and unable to detect and appropriagéslyand to, data security breaches and
data loss, including cyber-security attacks or otveach of cardholder data.

A security breach of any kind, which cobklundetected for a period of time, or any failoyeus to comply with the applicable privacy
and information security laws, regulations and déads could expose us to risks of data loss, titgagovernment enforcement actions and
costly response measures (including, for exampéalitmonitoring services for affected customesswall as further upgrades to our security
measures) which may not be covered by our insurpaligies, and could materially disrupt our oparasi. Any resulting negative media
attention and publicity could significantly harmrageputation which could cause us to lose markateshs a result of customers discontinuing
the use of debit or credit cards in our storesabrshopping in our stores altogether and could lzaveterial adverse effect on our business
and financial performance.

Deterioration in market conditions or chges in our credit profile could adversely affect oability to raise additional capital to fund
our operations and limit our ability to pursue owgrowth strategy or other opportunities or to reactchanges in the economy or our
industry.

We obtain and manage liquidity from theifres cash flow we generate from our operating\ati¢is and our access to capital markets,
including our credit facility. Changes in the crteaind capital markets, including market disruptidimsited liquidity and interest rate
fluctuations, may increase the cost of financingkeiit more difficult to obtain favorable terms,restrict our access to this source of future
liquidity. There is no assurance that our abilgyobtain additional financing through the capitarkets will not be adversely impacted by
economic conditions. Our debt securities currehélye an investment grade rating, and a downgrattésofating likely would make it more
difficult or expensive for us to obtain additiorfimlancing and would increase the cost of borrowinder our credit facility, which could
adversely affect our cash flow and limit our growthategy or other opportunities or our abilityéact to changes in the economy or our
industry.
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At January 30, 2015, we had total outstagdiebt (including the current portion of loterm obligations) of approximately $2.74 billic
We also had an additional $821.5 million availdbleborrowing under our unsecured revolving créalility. This level of debt could have
important negative consequences to our businedsding:

. requiring a substantial portion of our cash flisam operations to be dedicated to the paymeptiatipal and interest on our
indebtedness, therefore reducing our ability toawsecash flow to fund our operations, capital exgigires and future business
opportunities, repurchase shares of our commork stieclare dividends on our common stock or otheswmanage our debt
and capital levels;

. making it more difficult for us to raise additioradpital to fund our operations and pursue our giitrategy, including by
limiting our ability to obtain additional financinfgr working capital, capital expenditures and dsdvice requirements; and

. placing us at a disadvantage compared to our céimsetvho are less leveraged and may be bettertahise their cash flow
fund competitive responses to changing industryketaor economic conditions.

Our debt agreements contain restrictiohgt could limit our flexibility in operating our bsiness.

Our credit facilities and the indenture gming our notes contain various covenants thalddguit our ability to engage in specified
types of transactions. These covenants limit odraur subsidiaries' ability to, among other things:

. incur indebtedness of subsidiaries;

. create certain liens or encumbrances;

. merge, consolidate, sell or otherwise disposaladr substantially all of our assets; and
. make any material change in the nature of osimass.

We are also subject to specified finan@sib covenants under our credit facilities. Ouitighto meet these financial ratios can be
affected by events beyond our control, and we caassure you that we will meet these ratios andrathvenants. A breach of any of these
covenants could result in a default under the agese governing such indebtedness and inabilityotodw additional amounts under our
revolving credit facility. Upon our failure to maain compliance with these covenants, the lendautdeelect to declare all amounts
outstanding thereunder to be immediately due agdlga and terminate all commitments to extend &rrttredit thereunder. If the lenders
under such indebtedness accelerate the repaymbaotrofvings, we cannot make assurances that wénai sufficient assets to repay those
borrowings, as well as our other indebtednessudiey our outstanding notes.

New accounting guidance or changes in ih&erpretation or application of existing accountgguidance could adversely affect our
financial performance.

The implementation of proposed new accognstandards may require extensive systems, interoeess and other changes that could
increase our operating costs, and may also resahlianges to our financial statements. In partictite implementation of expected future
accounting standards related to leases, as cyrtagitig contemplated by the convergence projeetdxmt the Financial Accounting Standz
Board ("FASB") and the International Accounting r8tards Board ("IASB"), as well as the possible aidopof international financial
reporting standards by U.S. registrants, couldireqis to make significant changes to our leaseag@ment, fixed asset, and other accoui
systems, and, if implemented, are likely to resuftignificant changes to our financial statements.
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U.S. generally accepted accounting prims@nd related accounting pronouncements, impletientguidelines and interpretations w
regard to a wide range of matters that are releiaotir business involve many subjective assumptiestimates and judgments by our
management. Changes in these rules or their imtiton or changes in underlying assumptions, esésor judgments by our management
could significantly change our reported or expedieaincial performance. The outcome of such chaegetd include litigation or regulatory
actions which could have an adverse effect onioantial condition and results of operations.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

As of February 27, 2015, we operated 111874l stores located in 43 states as follows:

Number of Number of

State Stores State Stores
Alabama 62S Nebraske 91
Arizona 87 Nevads 24
Arkansas 344 New Hampshire 14
California 14z New Jerse 83
Colorado 32 New Mexico 76
Connecticu 26 New York 30¢
Delaware 37 North Caroline 633
Florida 71C Ohio 642
Georgia 675 Oklahoma 373
lllinois 421 Oregon 2
Indiana 41€ Pennsylvanii 52C
lowa 182 Rhode Islanc 2
Kansas 204 South Carolin: 437
Kentucky 43€ South Dakot: 20
Louisiana 472 Tennesse 612
Maine 2 Texas 1,24¢
Maryland 10t Utah 7
Massachusett 18 Vermont 26
Michigan 341 Virginia 321
Minnesots 48 West Virginia 18¢
Mississippi 38¢ Wisconsin 122
Missouri 412

Most of our stores are located in leasednises. Individual store leases vary as to thaingerental provisions and expiration dates.
Many stores are subject to build-to-suit arrangemesith landlords, which typically carry a primdease term of up to 15 years with multiple
renewal options. We also have stores subject tdeshierm leases and many of these leases haveakoptions. A significant portion of our
new stores are subject to build-to-suit arrangement
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As of February 27, 2015, we operated twelig&ribution centers, as described in the follayviable:

Year Approximate Square Number of
Location Opened Footage Stores Servec
Scaottsville, KY 195¢ 720,00( 80C
Ardmore, OK 199/ 1,310,001 1,41«
South Boston, V£ 1997 1,250,00! 90€
Indianola, MS 199¢ 820,00( 87:
Fulton, MO 199¢ 1,150,00! 1,28¢
Alachua, FL 200C 980,00( 1,01¢
Zanesville, OF 2001 1,170,00! 1,14t
Jonesville, SC 200t 1,120,00! 1,11z
Marion, IN 200¢ 1,110,00! 1,19:
Bessemer, Al 201z 940,00( 1,06t
Lebec, CA 2012 600,00( 28t
Bethel, PA 201< 1,000,00t 78C

We lease the distribution centers locate@alifornia, Oklahoma, Mississippi and Missourdawn the other eight distribution center:
the table above. Approximately 7.25 acres of the lan which our Kentucky distribution center isdted is subject to a ground lease. As of
January 30, 2015, we leased approximately 444,Q0€re feet of additional temporary warehouse sfmsapport our distribution needs.

Our executive offices are located in apprately 302,000 square feet of owned buildings approximately 56,000 square feet of lee
office space in Goodlettsville, Tennessee.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The information contained in Note 8 to domsolidated financial statements under the heddiegal proceedings” contained in Part Il,
Item 8 of this report is incorporated herein bystréference.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
None.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Information regarding our current execuifficers as of March 19, 2015 is set forth bel&ach of our executive officers serves at the
discretion of our Board of Directors and is elecadiually by the Board to serve until a successduly elected. There are no familial
relationships between any of our directors or etieewfficers.

Name Age Position

Richard W. Dreiling 61 Chairman and Chief Executive Offic

Todd J. Vaso 53 Chief Operating Office

David M. Tehle 58 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
David W. D'Arezzc 56 Executive Vice President and Chief Merchandisinfjoef
John W. Flanigal 63 Executive Vice President, Global Supply Ch

Robert D. Ravene 56 Executive Vice President and Chief People Off
Gregory A. Spark 54 Executive Vice President, Store Operati

Rhonda M. Taylo 47 Executive Vice President and General Cou

Anita C. Elliott 50 Senior Vice President and Control

Mr. Dreiling joined Dollar General in January 2008 as Chief ltige Officer and a member of our Board. He wasoamed Chairman
of the Board on December 2, 2008. As previouslyoaneed, Mr. Dreiling plans to retire from Dollar @=al effective January 29, 2016. P
to joining Dollar General, Mr. Dreiling served aki€f Executive Officer, President and a directoboiane Reade Holdings, Inc. and Duane
Reade Inc., the largest drugstore chain in New Gitk, from November 2005 until January 2008 an€Chairman of the Board of Duane
Reade from March 2007 until January 2008. Prigh&t, Mr. Dreiling, beginning in March 2005, senasliExecutive Vice President—Chief
Operating Officer of Longs Drug Stores Corporatiametail drugstore chain on the West Coast antbiwaii, after having joined Longs in
July 2003 as Executive Vice President and Chiefr@&tmms Officer. From 2000 to 2003, Mr. Dreilingeed as Executive Vice President—
Marketing, Manufacturing and Distribution at Safemiac., a food and drug retailer. Prior to that, Breiling served from 1998 to 2000 as
President of Vons, a Southern California food andjdlivision of Safeway. He currently serves as@hairman of the Retail Industry Leac
Association (RILA). Mr. Dreiling is a director ofdwe's Companies, Inc.

Mr. Vasosjoined Dollar General in December 2008 as ExecWiie President, Division President and Chief Marudtising Officer.
He was promoted to Chief Operating Officer in Nov@m2013. Prior to joining Dollar General, Mr. Vasserved in executive positions with
Longs Drug Stores Corporation for 7 years, inclgdiixecutive Vice President and Chief Operating ¢effi(February 2008 through
November 2008) and Senior Vice President and @Qhathandising Officer (200- 2008), where he was responsible for all pharnzay
front-end marketing, merchandising, procuremergpiuchain, advertising, store development, stay@lit and space allocation, and the
operation of three distribution centers. He alsavjmusly served in leadership positions at Phar-Fuod and Drug Inc. and Eckerd
Corporation.

Mr. Tehle joined Dollar General in June 2004 as Executivee\Recesident and Chief Financial Officer. As presglgiannounced,
Mr. Tehle plans to retire from Dollar General effee July 1, 2015. He served from 1997 to June 20&xecutive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of Haggar Corporation, a manutfizicty, marketing and retail corporation. From 19898997, he was Vice President of
Finance for a division of The Stanley Works, on¢haf world's largest manufacturers of tools, anthfi993 to 1996, he was Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer of Hat Brands, Incha manufacturer. Earlier in his career, Mr. Teddeved in a variety of financialated role:
at Ryder System, Inc. and Texas Instruments Incatpd. Mr. Tehle is a director of Jack in the Bog.|
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Mr. D'Arezzojoined Dollar General in November 2013 as Execuliiee President and Chief Merchandising OfficeioPto Dollar
General, from May 2008 until August 2013, Mr. D'Aze served as Executive Vice President and Chief&img Officer of Grocers
Supply Co., Inc., the largest independent wholesalthe southern United States, serving over &@@smarkets with a full-line of products
for resale. In this role, he was responsible fbfuaictions and the running of the wholesale bussn&rom 2006 to 2008, he served as Senior
Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer of Dud®eade, Inc., the largest drugstore chain in NevkY3ity, and as its Interim Chief
Executive Officer for four months in 2008. PriorDoiane Reade, he served as Chief Operating OffficRaley's Family of Stores, Northern
California's premier supermarket operating 120estdn three western states, from 2003 to 2005. @02 to 2003, he served as Executive
Vice President of Merchandising and Replenishmefiffice Depot, Inc., a global supplier of officeoplucts and services. From 1994 to
2002, Mr. D'Arezzo held various positions at WegmBood Market, a supermarket operator, includingid@e/ice President of
Merchandising (1998 - 2002), Division Manager (198id Group Manager (1994 - 1996). He worked ag Yiesident of Sales at DNA
Plant Technology, a biotechnology start-up compan$994. He also held various positions at Pepsito from 1989 to 1993, including
Business Development Manager, Area Marketing Man&rand Manager—Diet Pepsi and New Products Aasidflarketing Manager.

Mr. Flanigan joined Dollar General as Senior Vice Presidentb@l&upply Chain in May 2008. He was promoted tedexgive Vice
President in March 2010. He has almost 30 yeansasfagement experience in retail logistics. Prigoiaing Dollar General, he was Group
Vice President of Logistics and Distribution forngs Drug Stores Corporation, an operator of a cbfafatail drug stores on the West Coast
and Hawaii, from October 2005 to April 2008. Insthole, he was responsible for overseeing warehgusibound and outbound
transportation and facility maintenance to serageer 500 retail outlets. From September 2001 takat 2005, he served as the Vice
President of Logistics for Safeway Inc., a food dnaly retailer, where he oversaw distribution afdgroducts from Safeway distribution
centers to all retail outlets, inbound traffic @arehsportation. He also has held distribution amistics leadership positions at Vons—a
Safeway company, Specialized Distribution Manageren, and Crum & Crum Logistics.

Mr. Ravenerjoined Dollar General as Senior Vice President@hikf People Officer in August 2008. He was prorddte Executive
Vice President in March 2010. Prior to joining olGeneral, he served in human resources exegote®with Starbucks Corporation, a
roaster, marketer and retailer of specialty coffmmn September 2005 until August 2008 as the 3éarime President of U.S. Partner
Resources and, prior to that, as the Vice Presitkantner Resources—Eastern Division. As the Safime President of U.S. Partner
Resources at Starbucks, Mr. Ravener oversaw alctspf human resources activity for more thand®glores. Prior to serving at Starbu
Mr. Ravener held Vice President of Human Resourales for The Home Depot Inc., a home improvemetsiler, at its Store Support Cer
and a domestic field division from April 2003 tofsember 2005. Mr. Ravener also served in executiles in both human resources and
operations at Footstar, Inc. and roles of increpgadership at PepsiCo, Inc.

Mr. Sparksjoined Dollar General in March 2012 as Executiveé/President of Store Operations. Prior to joidudjar General,
Mr. Sparks served as Division President, Seattlésioin, for Safeway Inc., a food and drug retaigerple he had held since 2001. As Divis
President of the Seattle Division, Mr. Sparks wesponsible for the supervision of approximately &tles and approximately 23,000
employees in the northwest region and oversawesate, finance and operations of the Seattle DividMr. Sparks has 38 years of retail
experience including a 34-year career with Safewiagre he held roles of increasing responsibiligiiding merchandising manager (1987),
category manager (1987 - 1990), divisional direofanerchandising, grocery and general mercha(d®@0 - 1997) and divisional vice
president of marketing (1997 - 2001).
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Ms. Taylorhas served as Executive Vice President and Ge@eraisel since March 17, 2015. She joined Dollaregaras an
Employment Attorney in March 2000 and was subsetiyipnomoted to Senior Employment Attorney in 20D®puty General Counsel in
2004, Vice President and Assistant General Coungdhrch 2010, and Senior Vice President and Géi@oansel in June 2013. Prior to
joining Dollar General, she practiced law with Ggde, Deakins, Nash, Smoak & Stewart, P.C., wheeespecialized in labor law a
employment litigation. She has also held attornasitmpns with Ford & Harrison LLP and Stokes & Baiomew.

Ms. Elliott joined Dollar General as Senior Vice President@odtroller in August 2005. Prior to joining Doll&eneral, she served as
Vice President and Controller of Big Lots, Incglaseout retailer, from May 2001 to August 2005e@®eeing a staff of 140 employees at Big
Lots, she was responsible for accounting operatiimeancial reporting and internal audit. Priors&rving at Big Lots, she served as Vice
President and Controller for Jitney-Jungle StoffeSroerica, Inc., a grocery retailer, from April 1% March 2001. At Jitney-Jungle,
Ms. Elliott was responsible for the accounting @piens and the internal and external financial répg functions. Prior to serving at Jitney-
Jungle, she practiced public accounting for 12 g,e@iof which were with Ernst & Young LLP.
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PART Il

ITEM5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, R ELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

Our common stock is traded on the New Y@idck Exchange under the symbol "DG." The highlamdsales prices during each quarter
in fiscal 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

First Second Third Fourth
2014 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
High $ 61.1¢ $ 65.9¢ $ 65.1( $ 71.7¢
Low $ 5447 $ 53.00 $ 55.4¢ $ 62.5(

First Second Third Fourth
2013 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
High $ 53.00 $ 55.82 $ 59.87 $ 62.9¢
Low $ 4335 $ 48.61 $ 52.4( $ 55.0¢

On March 12, 2015, our stock price at tose of the market was $74.28 and there were appetely 1,922 shareholders of record of
our common stock.

Dividends

On March 10, 2015, our Board of Directoesldred a quarterly cash dividend of $0.22 peresttarbe paid on April 22, 2015 to
shareholders of record of our common stock on Apr2015. Prior to March 2015, we had not declarepaid recurring dividends since
March 2007. While the Board intends to continuaufagquarterly cash dividends, the declaration gayment of future cash dividends are
subject to the Board's discretion based on an atialuof our earnings performance, financial cdnditcapital needs and other relevant
factors.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table contains informatiorgeeding purchases of our common stock made dunegjtiarter ended January 30, 2015 k
on behalf of Dollar General or any "affiliated phaser," as defined by Rule 10b-18(a)(3) of the Bes Exchange Act of 1934

Approximate

Total Number Dollar Value
of Shares Purchased of Shares that May
Total Number Average as Part of Publicly Yet Be Purchased

of Shares Price Paid Announced Plans or Under the Plans
Period Purchased per Share Programs(a) or Programs(a)
11/01/14- 11/30/14 — $ — — $ 223,417,00
12/01/14- 12/31/14 — $ — — $ 223,417,00
01/01/15- 01/30/15 — $ = — $ 223,417,00
Total — $ — — $ 223,417,00

(& A $500 million share repurchase program was pubfdnounced on September 5, 2012, and increasies in
authorization under such program were announcddamsh 25, 2013 ($500 million increase) and Decen#h&013
($1.0 billion increase). Under the authorizatioarghases may be made in the open market or intplyvaegotiated
transactions from time to time subject to market ather conditions. This repurchase authorizat@as o expiration
date. The share repurchase program was furthezased on March 10, 2015 ($1.0 billion increase) shah increase is
notreflected in the table above as it was not in ¢fé¢¢he end of the 2014 fiscal ye
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth selectedsmlitiated financial information of Dollar Generabr@oration as of the dates and for the per
indicated. The selected historical statement ofatns data and statement of cash flows datahfofiscal years ended January 30, 2015,
January 31, 2014, and February 1, 2013 and bakirest data as of January 30, 2015 and Januar¥34, Bave been derived from our
historical audited consolidated financial stateraémtluded elsewhere in this report. The selecisitical statement of operations data and
statement of cash flows data for the fiscal yeaded February 3, 2012 and January 28, 2011 anddsakheet data as of February 1, 2013,
February 3, 2012, and January 28, 2011 presenthidisitable have been derived from audited conat#id financial statements not include

this report.

The information set forth below should bad in conjunction with, and is qualified by refere to, the Consolidated Financial
Statements and related notes included in Patel) B of this report
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and the Management's Discussion and Analysis d@rigiial Condition and Results of Operations inclusheBart II, Item 7 of this report.

(Amounts in millions, excluding per
share data,

number of stores, selling square feet,
and net sales

per square foot)

Statement of Operations
Data:

Net sales

Cost of goods sol

Gross profit

Selling, general and
administrative expenst

Operating profit

Interest expens

Other (income) expen:

Income before income tax

Income tax expens

Net income

Earnings per sha—basic
Earnings per sha—diluted
Dividends per shar

Statement of Cash Flows
Data:

Net cash provided by (used il
Operating activitie:
Investing activities
Financing activitie:

Total capital expenditure

Other Financial and
Operating Data:

Same store sales growthi

Same store sales(

Number of stores included
same store sales calculati

Number of stores (at peric
end)

Selling square feet (in
thousands at period en

Net sales per square foot

Consumables salt

Seasonal sale

Home products sale

Apparel sale:

Rent expens

Balance Sheet Data (at periot
end):

Cash and cash equivalents al
shor-term investment

Total asset

Long-term debt

Total shareholders' equi

(1)

Year Ended
January 30, January 31, February 1, February 3, January 28,
2015 2014 2013 2012(1) 2011
$ 18,909.¢ $ 17,504.. $ 16,022.. $ 14,807.. $ 13,035.(
13,107.. 12,068.: 10,936. 10,109.. 8,858.¢
5,802.! 5,435.° 5,085.¢ 4,697.¢ 4,176.¢
4,033.¢ 3,699.¢ 3,430.: 3,207.. 2,902t
1,769.. 1,736.: 1,655.! 1,490.¢ 1,274.:
88.2 89.C 127.¢ 204.¢ 274.(
— 18.€ 30.C 60.€ 15.1
1,680.¢ 1,628.1 1,497 .. 1,225.: 985.(
615.F 603.2 5445 458.¢ 357.1
$ 1,065 $ 1,025. $ 952.7 $ 766.71 $ 627.¢
$ 35C % 317 % 2871 $ 228 % 1.84
3.4¢ 3.17 2.8t 2.22 1.82
$ 1314° $ 1,213 $ 1,131« $ 1,050.! $ 824.7
(371.7) (250.0) (569.¢) (513.9) (418.9
(868.9) (598.9) (546.%) (908.0) (130.9)
(374.0) (538.9) (571.6) (514.9) (420.9)
2.8% 3.2% 4. 7% 6.C% 4.9%
$ 17,818 $ 16,365.! $ 14,992 $ 13,626.° $ 12,227..
11,05 10,38 9,78: 9,25¢ 8,712
11,78¢ 11,13 10,50¢ 9,93’ 9,372
87,20 82,01: 76,90¢ 71,77« 67,09¢
$ 22 $ 22C % 21€¢ $ 212 % 201
75. % 75.2% 73.% 73.2% 71.€%
12.4% 12.% 13.6% 13.8% 14.5%
6.4% 6.4% 6.€% 6.8% 7.C%
5.5% 5.5% 5.¢% 6.2% 6.9%
$ 785.: % 686.¢ $ 614.: $ 5421 % 489.%
$ 579.¢ % 505.¢ $ 1406 $ 126.1 $ 497 .¢
11,224.. 10,867.! 10,367. 9,688.! 9,546.:
2,740.¢ 2,818.¢ 2,772.: 2,618.t 3,288.:
5,710.( 5,402.: 4,985.1 4,674.¢ 4,063.¢
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(2) Same-store sales are calculated based upon dtatesdre open at least 13 full fiscal months amdaie open at the end
of the reporting period. We include stores thatehbgen remodeled, expanded or relocated in our-stonesales
calculation. When applicable, we exclude the saldlse non-comparable week of a 53-week year filoensame-store
sales calculation.

3) Net sales per square foot was calculated basestalrstles for the preceding 12 months as of tingrdate of the
reporting period divided by the average sellingassgufootage during the period, including the entheffiscal year, the
beginning of the fiscal year, and the end of edatuo three interim fiscal quarter

Year Ended
January 30, January 31, February 1, February 3, January 28,
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Ratio of earnings to fixed
charges(1) 4.4x 4.7x 4.7x 3.8x 3.1x

Q) For purposes of computing the ratio of earningixted charges, (a) earnings consist of income )lbsfore income
taxes, plus fixed charges less capitalized expemetated to indebtedness (amortization expensedpitalized interest |
not significant) and (b) fixed charges consistriérest expense (whether expensed or capitalitezlgmortization of
debt issuance costs and discounts related to iadebss, and the interest portion of rent expe
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This discussion and analysis should be read witld, ia qualified in its entirety by, the Consolidhteénancial Statements and the notes
thereto. It also should be read in conjunction wiik Cautionary Disclosure Regarding Forward-LoakBtatements and the Risk Factors
disclosures set forth in the Introduction and ienit 1A of this report, respectively.

Executive Overview

We are the largest discount retailer intinged States by number of stores, with 11,878esttocated in 43 states as of February 27,
2015, primarily in the southern, southwestern, neisigrn and eastern United States. We offer a lseladtion of merchandise, including
consumable products such as food, paper and cteaniducts, health and beauty products and petisgppnd non-consumable products
such as seasonal merchandise, home decor and dmnastl basic apparel. We completed our firstyfelir of tobacco product sales in 2014,
with favorable impacts on our net sales and saore sales. Our merchandise includes high qualitypmal brands from leading
manufacturers, as well as comparable quality peibaand selections with prices at substantial distoto national brands. We offer our
customers these national brand and private braslipts at everyday low prices (typically $10 os)as our convenient small-box (small
store) locations.

The customers we serve are value-conscmasy with low or fixed incomes, and Dollar Gendra always been intensely focused on
helping them make the most of their spending delldfe believe our convenient store format and beselction of high quality products at
compelling values have driven our substantial ghoawtd financial success over the years. Like attailers, we have been operating for
several years in an environment with ongoing mamyoemic challenges and uncertainties. In additiom,core customer faces multiple
macroeconomic headwinds, from fluctuating food andrgy costs to rising and uncertain medical castd,the timetable and strength of
economic recovery remains uncertain. During thedadart of 2014, our customer has experienced gmmeral economic tailwinds, such as
lower gasoline prices and improving employmentsalt®wever, the duration of these effects is gstiknown.

We are keenly focused on executing our fisimary operating priorities, which are: 1) drige@ductive sales growth, 2) enhance our
gross profit margins, 3) leverage process improvemand information technology to reduce costs,8rstrengthen and expand Dollar
General's culture of serving others.

Ouir first priority is driving productive &g growth, which includes increasing shopper fegmy, item unit sales and transaction amount.
In 2014, sales in same-stores increased by 2.8%:204e3 levels due to increases in both traffic amerage transaction. Successful sales
growth initiatives in 2014 included completion tetfirst full year of sales relating to the chaim&rollout of tobacco products and the
expansion of our limited scope store remodelingredf which optimized shelf space in many of owdleo] smaller stores and in many cases,
increased the number of coolers for refrigeratatifeszen foods and beverages. We remodeled anchtelb a total of 915 stores during the
year. We continued to meet the affordability neefdsur core customer by renewing our focus on $5dems, as more than 75% of «
SKUs at year-end were items priced at $5 or lessalso experienced the successful launch of oubDidfal Coupons program. Similar to
the preceding two years, inflation had a very mbiaapact on our sales in 2014. In addition to satwze sales growth, we opened 700 new
stores.

Our second priority is to enhance our gpsdit rate. The full year of sales of tobaccodurots in 2014 has driven increased customer
traffic as planned, although the addition of tolmapmoducts and an increased proportion of salge$hables have lowered the gross profit
rate. An increase in markdowns, an increase il.lR® provision and supply chain disruption duete tongshoreman
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labor dispute on the U.S. west coast all contrithitea decrease in our overall gross profit rate0h4. We believe that both tobacco and
perishables are significant drivers of customdfitréhat should lead to increases in average mseramount. We expect the improvement in
our net sales from these initiatives will outwetflk corresponding reduction in our gross profierat addition, we have ongoing efforts to
reduce product costs including shrink reductiofeaive category management, utilization of priviatands, distribution and transportation
efficiencies and additional improvements to oucipig and markdown business model, among otherde wdinaining committed to our
everyday low price strategy. In our consumablesgmtly, we strive to offer the optimal balance @& thost popular nationally advertised
brands and our own private brands, which genehallye higher gross profit rates than national bravdis believe that our core customer is
continuing to seek out and purchase goods at &ntey price points and is doing so with greateqgérency. To this end, we increased our
offering of $1 food items and the number of offgsrfrom our Smart & Simple brand. Commodities ¢oiation was minimal in 2014 and,
some instances, we experienced a decrease in gsish Accordingly, overall price increases pasheolgh to our customers were minimal.
We have seen positive results from our home andrappegments, and remain committed to all of @m-consumables categories, including
seasonal. We expect the growth of consumablesrtiinc to outpace the non-consumables categoraa ag2015, albeit to a lesser degree
than in recent years, due in part to the anticgpatmtinued economic pressures discussed above.

Our third priority is leveraging processpiavements and information technology to reducéscée are committed as an organizatic
reduce costs, particularly selling, general andiathtnative expenses ("SG&A") that do not affea tustomer experience. In 2014, our
financial results reflect a significant increasénoentive compensation expense, as the 2013 thickfhancial performance level required
under our annual cash incentive compensation pmogras not met. Additionally, rent and utilities tosontributed to the increase in SG&A.
Conversely, we again successfully lowered our dadyer costs as a percentage of sales, in paginiglifying various tasks performed in the
stores. Going forward, we will continue to simpldy eliminate unnecessary work and optimize labanr stores and elsewhere in the
company. Additional items that were lower as a petage of sales include workers' compensation andrgl liability expenses.

Our fourth priority is to strengthen angand Dollar General's culture of serving others.dustomers this means helping them "Save
time. Save money. Every day!" by providing cleae]lvstocked stores with quality products at lowcpd. For employees, this means creating
an environment that attracts and retains key enggl®yhroughout the organization. For the publis, feans giving back to our store
communities through our charitable and other edfdfor shareholders, this means meeting their ¢afi@as of an efficiently and profitably
run organization that operates with compassioniategrity.

Our continued focus on these four pricsitieoupled with strong cash flow management ancestepurchases, resulted in solid overall
operating and financial performance in 2014 as @magto 2013 as follows. Basis points, as refaiwditlow, are equal to 0.01 percent of
total sales.

. Net sales in 2014 increased 8.0% over 2013 sSmlsame-stores increased 2.8%, with increasestincustomer traffic and
average transaction amount. Consumables represed¥edf sales in 2014 and drove 82% of the totziiase. Departments
with the most significant increases were tobaceoispables and candy and snacks. Average salesgpare foot in 2014 were
$223, up from $220 in 2013.

. Operating profit increased 1.9% to $1.77 billion9.4% of sales, compared to $1.74 billion, @8 of sales in 2013. The

decrease in our operating profit rate was attribletto a 36 basis-point decrease in our grosstpai®, coupled with a 19
basis-point increase in SG&A.
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. Our gross profit rate declined by 36 basis poinis primarily to an increase in promotional markdeyand in addition, sales
of lower margin items increased at a proportionhliyher rate than sales of higher margin items.

. The increase in SG&A, as a percentage of salas,due primarily to a significant increase in imige compensation expense
as well as an increase in rent expense; partifitgoby efficiencies relating to store labor costsr other factors, see the
detailed discussion that follows.

. Interest expense was relatively constant, decrgdmsir$0.8 million in 2014 to $88.2 million. Totalrg-term obligations as of
January 30, 2015 were $2.74 billion.

. We reported net income of $1.07 billion, or $3.49 giluted share, for 2014, compared to net incofrl.03 billion, or $3.17
per diluted share, for 2013. Stock repurchase icturing 2013 and 2014 contributed to the incesiasdiluted earnings per
share.

. We generated approximately $1.31 billion of caslwf from operating activities in 2015, an increa8.4% compared to
2013. We primarily utilized our cash flows from ogéng activities to invest in the growth of ourdiness and repurchase our
common stock.

. Inventory turnover was 4.8 times on a rollingrfguarter basis. Inventories increased 2.9% ogr &fore basis over 2013.

. During 2014 we opened 700 new stores, remodaieelocated 915 stores, and closed 43 stores.
Also in 2014, we repurchased approximaidlyl million shares of our outstanding common stocks800.1 million.

In 2015, we plan to continue to focus onfour key operating priorities. We expect our sajeowth in 2015 to again be driven by
consumables as we expect our customer to continfaeé economic challenges, although we are ogiamscent economic tailwinds may
encourage our customer to purchase more non-comsa@ms. We plan to focus our efforts on effeslyvserving our core customers' needs
by providing them with the selection they wantreg tight price points in 2015.

We made progress in 2014 on implementingrgmoved supply chain solution to assist in prooml and core inventory forecasting
and ordering. We expect to make further progre29ib, and we expect that eventually all of our SKuill be managed through this
solution. The supply chain solution is helping mpiove our ordering processes in the stores anddrasbuted to our work simplification
efforts and improvements in maintaining efficiemieéntory levels. We believe we have additional apputies for work simplification and
optimization of store labor in 2015.

We are pleased with the performance of2@1” new stores, remodels and relocations, an@1b %ve plan to open 730 new stores and
to remodel or relocate 875 stores.

Finally, we plan to continue to repurchabkares of our common stock in 2015 as well asaieitijuarterly cash dividends, subject to
Board discretion, to further enhance shareholderme

Key Financial Metrics. We have identified the following as our mostical financial metrics:

. Same-store sales growth;

. Sales per square foot;

. Gross profit, as a percentage of sales;

. Selling, general and administrative expenses,mseentage of sales;
. Operating profit;
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. Cash flow;

. Net income;

. Earnings per share;

. Earnings before interest, income taxes, depreciaia amortization;

. Return on invested capital; and

. Adjusted debt to Earnings before interest, inedaxes, depreciation and amortization and rentresg.

Readers should refer to the detailed dsonsof our operating results below for additiocamments on financial performance in the
current year periods as compared with the prior pesods.

Results of Operations

Accounting Periods. The following text contains references to yedi$4, 2013, and 2012, which represent fiscal yeaded
January 30, 2015, January 31, 2014, and Febru@91B, respectively. Our fiscal year ends on thedyrclosest to January 31. All fiscal
years were E-week accounting periods.

Seasonality. The nature of our business is seasonal totaisaxtent. Primarily because of sales of holidalgted merchandise, sales
in our fourth quarter (November, December and Jafurave historically been higher than sales addan each of the first three quarters of
the fiscal year. Expenses, and to a greater egf@mrating profit, vary by quarter. Results of aigetishorter than a full year may not be
indicative of results expected for the entire y&arthermore, the seasonal nature of our businaegsaffiect comparisons between periods.
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The following table contains results of @mns data for fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2atd,the dollar and percentage variances

among those years.

2014 vs. 201 2013 vs. 201

(amounts in
millions,
except per share Amount Amount
amounts) 2014 2013 2012 Change % Change Change % Change
Net sales b

category:
Consumable $ 14,321.. $ 13,161.¢ $11,844.( $1,159.3 8.8%% 1,317.0 11.1%
% of net sale 75.73% 75.19% 73.93%
Seasons 2,345.( 2,259.! 2,172.¢ 85.5 3.8 87.1 4.0
% of net sale 12.40% 12.91% 13.56%
Home

products 1,205. 1,115.¢ 1,061.¢ 89.7 8.0 54.1 5.1
% of net sale 6.37% 6.37% 6.63%
Apparel 1,038.: 967.2 943.¢ 71.0 7.3 23.9 2.5
% of net sale 5.49% 5.53% 5.89%
Net sales $18,909.¢ $17,504.: $16,022.. $1,4054 8.0%% 1,482.0 9.2%
Cost of good

sold 13,107.: 12,068.: 10,936." 1,038.7 8.6 1,131.7 10.3
% of net sale 69.31% 68.95% 68.26%
Gross profit 5,802.! 5,435." 5,085.¢ 366.8 6.7 350.3 6.9
% of net sale 30.69% 31.05% 31.74%
Selling,

general an

administral

expense: 4,033.- 3,699.¢ 3,430.: 333.9 9.0 269.4 7.9
% of net sale 21.33% 21.14% 21.41%
Operating

profit 1,769.: 1,736.: 1,655.! 32.9 1.9 80.9 4.9
% of net sale 9.36% 9.92% 10.33%
Interest

expense 88.2 89.(C 127.¢ (0.8) (0.8) (38.9) (30.4)
% of net sale 0.47% 0.51% 0.80%
Other

(income)

expenst — 18.¢ 30.C (18.9) (100.0) (11.1) (37.0)
% of net sale 0.00% 0.11% 0.19%
Income

before

income

taxes 1,680.¢ 1,628.: 1,497 .. 52.5 3.2 130.9 8.7
% of net sale 8.89% 9.30% 9.35%
Income taxe: 615.5 603.2 5447 12.3 2.0 58.5 10.7
% of net sale 3.26% 3.45% 3.40%
Netincome $ 1,065 $ 1,025.. $ 9527 $ 40.2 3.9%$ 725 7.6%
% of net sale 5.63% 5.86% 5.95%
Diluted

earnings

per share $ 3.4¢ $ 311 $ 28t $ 032 10.1%$  0.32 11.2%

Net Sales. The net sales increase in 2014 reflects a sdare-sales increase of 2.8% compared to 20132¢6t, there were 11,052
same-stores which accounted for sales of $17.88rbilSamestores include stores that have been open foast 8 months and remain o}
at the end of the reporting period. Changes in sstore sales are calculated based on the comparaleledar weeks in the prior year, and
include stores that have been remodeled, expand®ibsated. The remainder of the increase in $al2914 was attributable to new stores,
partially offset by sales from closed stores. Tiweéase in sales reflects increased customerctiifi average transaction amounts resulting
from the refinement of the Company's merchandigeriofys, including a full year's sales of tobaccoduicts,
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the expansion of perishables, and enhanced uitlizaf store square footage. Increases in salesredumables outpaced our non-
consumables, with sales of tobacco products, pElel, and candy and snacks contributing the ntjofithe increase in sales of
consumables.

The net sales increase in 2013 reflecea@esstore sales increase of 3.3% compared to Fet2013, there were 10,387 same-stores
which accounted for sales of $16.37 billion. Theaénder of the increase in sales in 2013 was attiile to new stores, partially offset by
sales from closed stores. The increase in sallexteincreased customer traffic and average tcdiogaamounts. Increases in sales of
consumables outpaced our noomsumables, with sales of tobacco products, palek, and candy and snacks contributing the nyjofithe
increase. Tobacco was added in the stores prinduiiyng the first and second quarters of 2013. &tpansion of coolers for perishables in
over 1,600 existing stores was completed in ttst fialf of the year while other initiatives, inclad space optimization in many of our sme
stores, were implemented throughout the year.

Of our four major merchandise categories,donsumables category, which generally has arlgmss profit rate than the other three
categories, has grown most significantly over thstgeveral years. Because of the impact of saleemrgross profit, we continually review
our merchandise mix and strive to adjust it wheprapriate.

Gross Profit. The gross profit rate as a percentage of $ess30.7% in 2014 compared to 31.1% in 2013. Quosf#t increased by
6.7% in 2014, and as a percentage of sales, decr&gs36 basis points. The most significant faaféecting the gross profit rate was an
increase in markdowns, primarily due to increaseunptions driven by competitive pressures. In addjtwe are experiencing an ongoing
trend of consumables comprising a larger portioawfnet sales, primarily as the result of increasaes of lower margin consumables
including tobacco products and expanded perishaiffesngs. These factors were partially offsethgher initial inventory markups. We
recorded a LIFO provision of $4.2 million in 201dnepared to a LIFO benefit of $11.0 million in 2013.

The gross profit rate as a percentagele§smas 31.1% in 2013 compared to 31.7% in 201@s&profit increased by 6.9% in 2013, and
as a percentage of sales, decreased by 69 basts.pdie majority of the gross profit rate decréas2013 as compared to 2012 was due to
consumables comprising a larger portion of oursadgs, primarily as the result of increased sdiéswer margin consumables which
contributed to lower initial inventory markups.dddition, we experienced a higher inventory shriekeate, partially attributable to the
addition of certain consumable products with rek$i higher retail prices. These factors were péytioffset by a reduction in net purchase
costs on certain products. The Company recordd#@ benefit of $11.0 million in 2013 compared tal&O provision of $1.4 million in
2012.

SG&A Expense. SG&A expense was 21.3% as a percentage ofisa®8Hd 4 compared to 21.1% in 2013, an increas®dfasis points.
The results reflect a significant increase in ins@ncompensation expense, as our prior year 20hBdial performance did not satisfy cert
performance requirements under our cash incentimgensation program. The 2014 results also refiectases in rent and utilities. Partie
offsetting these increased costs were retail lagpense, which increased at a rate lower thannouease in sales, the introduction of
convenience fees charged to customers for cashdredkbit card transactions, and a reduction irkerst compensation and general liability
expenses. The 2014 period included expenses d8 $iilion relating to an attempted acquisition, leithe 2013 results include expenses of
$8.5 million for a legal settlement of a previoudlcertified collective action.

SG&A expense was 21.1% as a percentagaled ;1 2013 compared to 21.4% in 2012, an impr@rerof 27 basis points. We had a
significant decrease in incentive compensation egegeas 2013 financial performance did not satisfyain performance requirements under
our cash incentive compensation program. Retadlrlaelzspense increased at a rate lower than ourdserm sales. Declines in workers'
compensation and general liability expenses alstriboted to the overall
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decrease in SG&A expense as a percentage of Salesibove items were partially offset by certaiatsdhat increased from 2012 to 2013 at
a rate higher than our increase in sales, includemeciation and amortization and fees assocuwitfdthe increased volume of customer
purchases transacted with debit cards.

Interest Expense. Interest expense remained relatively consta@0il4 compared to 2013. See the detailed discussider "Liquidity
and Capital Resources" regarding the financingagious long-term obligations and the related eféecinterest expense in the periods
presented.

The decrease in interest expense in 20ffpaced to 2012 is due to lower allinterest rates primarily resulting from the cdetjmn of a
refinancing in April 2013.

We had outstanding varialskte debt of $62.0 million and $139.5 million aslahuary 30, 2015 and January 31, 2014, respectaféé
taking into consideration the impact of interesérswaps. The remainder of our outstanding indelgesliat January 30, 2015 and January 31,
2014 was fixed rate debt.

Other (Income) Expense.In 2013, we recorded pretax losses of $18.fianitesulting from the termination of our seniecared credit
facilities. In 2012, we recorded pretax losses24.8 million resulting from the redemption of $4B@nillion aggregate principal amount of
our senior subordinated notes due 2017 plus acaneédinpaid interest.

Income Taxes. The effective income tax rates for 2014, 2GiR®] 2012 were expenses of 36.6%, 37.0%, and 36etyectively.

The effective income tax rate for 2014 \86%6% compared to a rate of 37.0% for 2013 whighnagents a net decrease of 0.4 percentag
points. The effective income tax rate decreaseth 2613 due principally to the favorable resolutidrstate income tax examinations and
other state income tax reserves, which increasexllegser amount in 2014 compared to 2013. Asiar pears, we receive a significant
income tax benefit related to wages paid to cerainly hired employees that qualify for federalgatsedits (principally the Work
Opportunity Tax Credit or "WOTC"). The federal lauthorizing the WOTC credit has expired for empksy/hired after December 31, 2014.
In the past, when these credit provisions haveredpiCongress has reenacted the law on a retredwdisis. It is uncertain as to whether (or
when) WOTC credits will be retroactively renewedhis instance. The Company will receive creditfuinire periods for employees hired on
or before December 31, 2014; however, the futurgeredit received will be significantly lowerah what has been recognized in 2014 and
prior years without WOTC reenactment.

The effective income tax rate for 2013 8@€9D% compared to a rate of 36.4% for 2012 whighe®ents a net increase of 0.6 percentage
points. The 2012 amounts were favorably impactethbyresolution of income tax examinations thatrditireoccur, to the same extent, in
2013. This effective tax rate increase was paytiafiset by the recording of an income tax benef2013 associated with the expiration of
assessment period during which the taxing autlesritbuld have assessed additional income tax assdevith our 2009 tax year. In additi
2013 reflects larger income tax benefits associaiéufederal jobs credits.

The 2012 effective tax rate of 36.4% wasatgr than the statutory tax rate of 35% due pilyngr the inclusion of state income taxes in
the total effective tax rate.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

The entities involved in the ownership stane underlying the leases for three of our distibn centers meet the accounting definitic
a Variable Interest Entity ("VIE"). One of thesetdibution centers has been recorded as a finamtiligation whereby its property and
equipment are reflected in our consolidated balaheets. The land and buildings of the other twtrithution centers have been recorded as
operating leases. We are not the primary beneficfthese VIEs and, accordingly, have not incluthesbe entities in our consolidated
financial statements. Other than the foregoingaveenot party to any material off balance sheetr@ements.
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Effects of Inflation

We experienced little or no overall prodogst inflation in 2014, 2013 and 2012.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Current Financial Condition and Recent Developments

During the past three years, we have géee@n aggregate of approximately $3.66 billionash flows from operating activities and
incurred approximately $1.48 billion in capital exylitures. During that period, we expanded the rarmbstores we operate by 1,852,
representing growth of approximately 19%, and waageled or relocated 2,089 stores, or approximdtg¥ of the stores we operated as of
January 30, 2015. We intend to continue our cusiategy of pursuing store growth, remodels atatations in 2015.

We have a five-year $1.85 billion unsecurastit agreement (the "Facilities"), and we hawtstanding $1.8 billion aggregate principal
amount of senior notes. At January 30, 2015, wetbiad outstanding debt (including the current jporiof long-term obligations) of
$2.74 billion, which includes balances under theilfgs, and senior notes, all of which are ddsedi in greater detail below. We had
$821.5 million available for borrowing under thecHiéies at January 30, 2015.

We believe our cash flow from operationd aristing cash balances, combined with availahilitder the Facilities, and access to the
debt markets will provide sufficient liquidity taifid our current obligations, projected working tapgiequirements, capital spending and
planned dividend payments for a period that incduithe next twelve months as well as the next seyeeas. However, our ability to mainte
sufficient liquidity may be affected by numerousttas, many of which are outside of our controlpBreding on our liquidity levels,
conditions in the capital markets and other fagtaes may from time to time consider the issuanceetift, equity or other securities, the
proceeds of which could provide additional liquydibr our operations.

Facilities

The Facilities consist of a senior unsegueem loan facility (the "Term Facility") with anitial balance of $1.0 billion and an
$850.0 million senior unsecured revolving creddility (the "Revolving Facility") which provides fahe issuance of letters of credit up to
$250.0 million. We may request, subject to agredrbgrone or more lenders, increased revolving cadmenits and/or incremental term loan
facilities in an aggregate amount of up to $150illon. The Facilities mature on April 11, 2018.

Borrowings under the Facilities bear ing¢i@ a rate equal to an applicable margin plusuabption, either (a) LIBOR or (b) a base rate
(which is usually equal to the prime rate). Theligple margin for borrowings as of January 30,20hs 1.275% for LIBOR borrowings
and 0.275% for base-rate borrowings. We must adgoapfacility fee, payable on any used and unusasliats of the Facilities, and letter of
credit fees. The applicable margins for borrowirtgs,facility fees and the letter of credit feeslenthe Facilities are subject to adjustment
each quarter based on our long-term senior unse:ciétat ratings.

The Term Facility amortizes in quarterlgtadlments of $25.0 million, which commenced on Asigl, 2014. The final quarterly paym
of the then-remaining balance will be due at matwn April 11, 2018. As of January 30, 2015, tladalbce on the Term Facility was
$925.0 million. The Facilities can be prepaid inokeéhor in part at any time. The Facilities conteémtain covenants that place limitations on
the incurrence of liens; change of business; mergesales of all or substantially all assets; sutasidiary indebtedness, among other
limitations. The Facilities also contain finanatalvenants that require the maintenance of a minifixed charge coverage ratio and a
maximum
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leverage ratio. As of January 30, 2015, we weiimpliance with all such covenants. The Facilitis® contain customary affirmative
covenants and events of default.

As of January 30, 2015, we had total ontditeg letters of credit of $43.6 million, $28.5 hwh of which were under the Revolving
Facility.

For the remainder of fiscal 2015, we aptté potential borrowings under the Revolving Fgailp to a maximum of approximately
$500 million outstanding at any one time, includany anticipated borrowings to fund repurchasesoaimon stock.

Senior Notes

We have $500.0 million aggregate princgrabunt of 4.125% senior notes due 2017 (the "2@%hiioB Notes") which mature on July 15,
2017, $400.0 million aggregate principal amount &75% senior notes due 2018 (the "2018 Seniordipteet of discount at issuance of
$0.5 million, which mature on April 15, 2018; an@i0®.0 million aggregate principal amount of 3.258aier notes due 2023 (the "2023
Senior Notes"), net of discount at issuance of $&@l4on, which mature on April 15, 2023. Colleatlly, the 2017 Senior Notes, the 2018
Senior Notes and the 2023 Senior Notes compriséSieior Notes", each of which were issued purst@an indenture as modified by
supplemental indentures relating to each seri&eafor Notes (as so supplemented, the "Senior taodei). Interest on the 2017 Senior Notes
is payable in cash on January 15 and July 15 df gaar and commenced on January 15, 2013. Intemg$ie 2018 Senior Notes and the 2
Senior Notes is payable in cash on April 15 and@et 15 of each year and commenced on October013, 2

We may redeem some or all of the Senioeblat any time at redemption prices set forth énSbnior Indenture. Upon the occurrence of
a change of control triggering event, which is defi in the Senior Indenture, each holder of ouidgétotes has the right to require us to
repurchase some or all of such holder's SeniordNatt@ purchase price in cash equal to 101% gdriheipal amount thereof, plus accrued
and unpaid interest, if any, to the repurchase. date

The Senior Indenture contains covenantgifigy among other things, our ability (subjecicrtain exceptions) to consolidate, merge, or
sell or otherwise dispose of all or substantiallpfour assets; and our ability and the abilifyoar subsidiaries to incur or guarantee
indebtedness secured by liens on any shares aofgvstdck of significant subsidiaries.

The Senior Indenture alpmvides for events of default which, if any of th@ccurs, would permit or require the principabhofl accrue
interest on our Senior Notes to become or to béadst due and payable.

Sale Leaseback Transaction

In January 2014 we consummated a transaptiosuant to which we sold and subsequently lelaek the land, buildings and related
improvements for 233 of our stores. This transactesulted in cash proceeds of approximately $281llén.

Rating Agencie

In February 2015, Standard & Poor's reaiid our senior unsecured debt rating of BBB— anmdcorporate debt rating of BBB—, both
with a stable outlook, and Moody's reaffirmed cemisr unsecured debt rating of Baa3 with a stabtlok. Previously, Standard and Poor's
had placed all of our credit ratings on watch widlgative implications and Moody's had placed adwf credit ratings on review for
downgrade due to the proposed business combinattbrFamily Dollar. Our current credit ratings, asll as future rating agency actions,
could (i) impact our ability to finance our opeoats on satisfactory terms; (ii) affect our finarggosts; and (iii) affect our insurance
premiums
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and collateral requirements necessary for ourisslired programs. There can be no assurance thatlMez able to maintain or improve our
current credit ratings.

Interest Rate Sway

We use interest rate swaps to minimizeaigieof adverse changes in interest rates. Theaspsare intended to reduce risk by hedgin
underlying economic exposure. Because of high tadiom between the derivative financial instrument the underlying exposure being
hedged, fluctuations in the value of the finanaiatruments are generally offset by reciprocal ¢gjeanin the value of the underlying econol
exposure. Our principal interest rate exposurdasle outstanding amounts under our Facilitieslaktuary 30, 2015, we had interest rate
swaps with a total notional amount of $875.0 millior more information see Item 7A, "Quantitatared Qualitative Disclosures about
Market Risk" below.

Fair Value Accounting

We have classified our interest rate swapg$urther discussed in Item 7A. below, in Levelf 2zhe fair value hierarchy, as the significant
inputs to the overall valuations are based on ntarkeervable data or information derived from areborated by market-observable data,
including market-based inputs to models, modebcation to market-clearing transactions, brokedealer quotations, or alternative pricing
sources with reasonable levels of price transpgraibere models are used, the selection of a pdatiecnodel to value a derivative depends
upon the contractual terms of, and specific risikerent in, the instrument as well as the avaitghif pricing information in the market. We
use similar models to value similar instrumentsludton models require a variety of inputs, inchglcontractual terms, market prices, yield
curves, credit curves, measures of volatility, aadelations of such inputs. For our derivativélspfiwhich trade in liquid markets, model
inputs can generally be verified.

We incorporate credit valuation adjustmeatappropriately reflect both our own nonperformanisk and the respective counterparty's
nonperformance risk in the fair value measuremehtair derivatives. The credit valuation adjustnsesnie calculated by determining the total
expected exposure of the derivatives (which incafes both the current and potential future expgsamd then applying each counterparty's
credit spread to the applicable exposure. For dévies with two-way exposure, such as interestgatps, the counterparty's credit spread is
applied to our exposure to the counterparty, andbaun credit spread is applied to the counterpaeyposure to us, and the net credit
valuation adjustment is reflected in our derivatiaduations. The total expected exposure of a dévie is derived using market-observable
inputs, such as yield curves and volatilities. irmuts utilized for our own credit spread are basedmplied spreads from our publiclsadec
debt. For counterparties with publicly availabledit information, the credit spreads over LIBORdisethe calculations represent implied
credit default swap spreads obtained from a thamtypcredit data provider. In adjusting the faitueaof our derivative contracts for the effect
of nonperformance risk, we have considered the @nplnetting and any applicable credit enhancemenich as collateral postings,
thresholds, mutual puts, and guarantees. Additipnak actively monitor counterparty credit ratirfigs any significant changes.

As of January 30, 2015, the net credit adun adjustments had an insignificant impact angéttiement values of our derivative
liabilities. Various factors impact changes in thedit valuation adjustments over time, includihgueges in the credit spreads of the parti
the contracts, as well as changes in market rasalatilities, which affect the total expectegezure of the derivative instruments. When
appropriate, valuations are also adjusted for warfactors such as liquidity and bid/offer spreadsich factors we deemed to be immaterial
as of January 30, 2015.
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Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our sigrafit contractual obligations and commercial committe@s of January 30, 2015 (in

thousands):
Payments Due by Perioc

Contractual obligations Total 1 year 1- 3years 3-5years 5+ years
Long-term debt

obligations $ 2,736,99° $ 100,09 $ 700,55! $ 1,025,95' $ 910,39!
Capital lease obligatior 5,87¢ 1,06¢ 2,11« 957 1,73¢
Interest(a 353,57 71,77( 125,47¢ 61,967 94,35t
Self-insurance liabilities

(b) 225,02: 83,16¢ 93,73¢ 31,097 17,02:
Operating leases( 6,626,50. 793,27: 1,454,93 1,232,62 3,145,66:

Subtotal $ 9,947,96. $ 1,049,36 $ 2,376,82 $ 2,352,60- $ 4,169,17

Commitments Expiring by Period

Commercial commitments(d) Total 1 year 1-3years 3-5years 5+ years
Letters of credi $ 15,10 $ 15,10 $ — $ — $ —
Purchase obligations( 987,78 963,72( 24,06« — —

Subtotal $ 1,002,880 $ 978,82( $ 24,06¢ $ — 3 —

Total contractual
obligations and

commercial
commitments (f) $ 10,950,84 $ 2,028,18 $ 2,400,88' $ 2,352,60. $ 4,169,17
€) Represents obligations for interest payment®ng-term debt and capital lease obligations,ianllides projected

(b)

(©)
(d)

()

(f)

interest on variable rate long-term debt, usingd2gdar end rates. Variable rate long-term debtiohes the balance of
the senior revolving credit facility (which had alénce of zero as of January 30, 2015), the balaheer tax increment
financing of $12.0 million, and the unhedged partad the senior term loan facility of $50 million.

We retain a significant portion of the risk fmur workers' compensation, employee health imsgageneral liability,
property loss and automobile insurance. As thefigadltons do not have scheduled maturities, theseuats represent
undiscounted estimates based upon actuarial asgunspReserves for workers' compensation and geliegdity
which existed as of the date of a merger transaati®007 were discounted in order to arrive anesied fair value. All
other amounts are reflected on an undiscounted basur consolidated balance sheets.

Operating lease obligations are inclusivernbants included in deferred rent in our consoliddtalance sheets.

Commercial commitments include informationhieslogy license and support agreements, suppliesrds, letters of
credit for import merchandise, and other invenfauychase obligations.

Purchase obligations include legally binding agreets for software licenses and support, suppliesirés, and
merchandise purchases (excluding such purchasgsstibletters of credit).

We have potential payment obligations asseciatith uncertain tax positions that are not réélddn these totals. We

are currently unable to make reasonably relialienases of the period of cash settlement with theéng authorities for
the $10.7 million of reserves for uncertain taxiposs.
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Share Repurchase Program

On March 10, 2015, the Company's Boardioé@ors authorized a $1.0 billion increase to existing common stock repurchase
program. The total remaining authorization is agprately $1.2 billion at March 12, 2015. Under #agthorization, purchases may be made
in the open market or in privately negotiated teantions from time to time subject to market anceottonditions, and the authorization has
expiration date. For more detail about our shgpenehase program, see Note 12 to the consolidataddial statements.

Other Considerations

On March 10, 2015, the Board of Directgspraved a quarterly cash dividend to shareholde$®@2 per share which will be paid on
April 22, 2015 to shareholders of record on Apri815. Although the Board currently intends totomre regular quarterly cash dividends,
the payment of future cash dividends are subjetttedoard's discretion and will depend upon, amathgr things, our results of operations,
cash requirements, financial condition, contracteatrictions and other factors that our Board mhegm relevant.

Our inventory balance represented approtatyp@9% of our total assets exclusive of goodatiltl other intangible assets as of
January 30, 2015. Our ability to effectively manage inventory balances can have a significant chpa our cash flows from operations
during a given fiscal year. Inventory purchasesodten somewhat seasonal in nature, such as tlohgse of warm-weather or Christmas-
related merchandise. Efficient management of ougniory has been and continues to be an area u$ foc us.

As described in Note 8 to the consoliddieaincial statements, we are involved in a numtbéegal actions and claims, some of which
could potentially result in material cash paymeAtdverse developments in those actions could nadgand adversely affect our liquidity.
We also have certain income tax-related contingenas disclosed in Note 4 to the consolidated fiahstatements. Future negative
developments could have a material adverse effeouo liquidity.

Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities.Cash flows from operating activities were $1dlion in 2014, an increase of $101.7 million
compared to 2013. Significant components of thesiase in cash flows from operating activities ii2@ompared to 2013 include increased
net income due primarily to increased sales andabipg profit in 2014 as described in more dethih\e under "Results of Operations."
Merchandise inventories increased by a greater ahio2014 compared to 2013, which was partialfgetf by accounts payable, which
increased by $97.2 million in 2014 compared to & $3nillion increase in 2013. The increase in act®payable during 2014 was due
primarily to the volume and timing of domestic nteaindise receipts. On an ongoing basis, we closehitor and manage our inventory
balances, and they may fluctuate from period tiopdvased on new store openings, the timing oftmases, and other factors. Merchandise
inventories increased by 9% during 2014, compared % increase in 2013. Inventory levels in thesconables category increased by
$178.4 million, or 12%, in 2014 compared to an éase of $168.0 million, or 12%, in 2013. The seakoategory increased by $13.8 milli
or 3%, in 2014 compared to a decrease of $4.7anjllbr 1%, in 2013. The home products categoryesasntially unchanged in 2014
compared to an increase of $22.0 million, or 9%20t3. The apparel category increased by $37.1omilor 13%, in 2014 compared to a
decrease of $29.5 million, or 9%, in 2013.

Significant components of the increaseasihcflows from operating activities in 2013 complat@ 2012 include increased net income
primarily to increased sales and lower SG&A expsenas a percentage of sales, in 2013 as describradre detail above under "Results of
Operations." Significant components of the incréasmsh flows from operating activities were rethto changes
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in working capital, including Merchandise inventsj Accounts payable and Accrued expenses and dteimpact of the changes in
inventory balances, which increased in both yeat$i a lesser amount in 2013 compared to 201 psained in more detail below. Items
positively affecting Accrued expenses and otheluihe the timing of accruals and payments for legétlements and non-income taxes
(primarily sales taxes), and the adjustment ofwsrduring 2012 resulting from the favorable regoh of income tax examinations which
did not recur in 2013. Partially offsetting the piog impact of the items discussed above wereceduncentive compensation accruals,
increased cash payments for income taxes, and ekamg\ccounts payable, which are affected byitheng and mix of merchandise
purchases, the most significant category of whiehendomestic purchases.

In addition, our merchandise inventorieg@ased by 7% during 2013, compared to a 19% iser@e2012. The percentage increase in
inventories in 2013 was less than the prior yea tduwur emphasis on more effective inventory mansnt and our related efforts to control
shrink. Inventory levels in the consumables catggurreased by $168.0 million, or 12%, in 2013 camag to an increase of $245.7 million,
or 22%, in 2012. The seasonal category decreaséd.@ymillion, or 1%, in 2013 compared to an inseeaf $70.2 million, or 18%, in 2012.
The home products category increased $22.0 milbo8%, in 2013 compared to an increase of $561@mior 29%, in 2012. The apparel
category decreased by $29.5 million, or 9%, in 26d@pared to an increase of $16.0 million, or 592012.

Cash flows from investing activities.Significant components of property and equiphpemchases in 2014 included the following
approximate amounts: $127 million for improvemenfsgrades, remodels and relocations of existingest&$102 million for new leased
stores; $64 million for distribution and transptida-related projects; $38 million for stores bt us; and $35 million for information
systems upgrades and technology-related projebtstiming of new, remodeled and relocated storaiogs along with other factors may
affect the relationship between such openings hadelated property and equipment purchases irgiaey period. During 2014, we opened
700 new stores and remodeled or relocated 915sstBee "—Liquidity and Capital Resources." Cash flows fromdsting activities decreas
from 2013 to 2014, due primarily to a sale-leasklisansaction in 2013 (more fully described below).

Significant components of property and pqent purchases in 2013 included the following agipnate amounts: $187 million for
improvements, upgrades, remodels and relocatiorsisfing stores; $124 million for new leased stpf&112 million for distribution centers,
which included a significant portion of the constian cost of a distribution center in Pennsylvafizé million for stores purchased or built
by us; and $28 million for information systems ugdgs and technology-related projects. During 2@&3ppened 650 new stores and
remodeled or relocated 582 stores. Our sale-leakelmnsaction which we consummated in January 201233 of our stores resulted in
proceeds from the sale of these properties of appaiely $281.6 million.

Significant components of property and pment purchases in 2012 included the following agipnate amounts: $155 million for new
leased stores; $151 million for improvements, uggsaremodels and relocations of existing storg32$nillion for stores purchased or built
by us; $83 million for distribution centers; $27liion for systems-related capital projects; and #iilfion for transportation-related projects.
During 2012, we opened 625 new stores and remoaelezlocated 592 stores.

Capital expenditures during 2015 are ptegkto be in the range of $500-$550 million. Wda@péte funding 2015 capital requirements
with existing cash balances, cash flows from oj@nat and if necessary, as of January 30, 201%/seehave significant availability under
our Revolving Facility. We plan to continue to isvén store growth and development of approximaf@@ new stores and approximately
stores to be remodeled or relocated. Capital experd in 2015 are anticipated to support our sgposvth as well as our remodel and
relocation initiatives, including
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capital outlays for leasehold improvements, fixtuaad equipment; the construction of new storestsdo support and enhance our supply
chain initiatives including the distribution centerder construction in Texas; technology initiasivas well as routine and ongoing capital
requirements.

Cash flows from financing activities.In 2014, we repurchased 14.1 million outstagdihares of our common stock at a total cost of
$800.1 million. We made repayments of $75.0 millionthe balance of the Term Facility. Borrowingsd a@payments under the Revolving
Facility during the 2014 period were the same arhaesulting in no net increase to amounts outstendnder the Revolving Facility during
2014.

The 2013 cash flows from financing actestireflect our refinancing in April 2013, includitfe issuance of long-term obligations which
includes the $1.0 billion unsecured Term Facilitgl dhe issuance of Senior Notes totaling approaiyail.3 billion. Proceeds from these
transactions were used to extinguish our previegsred term loan and revolving credit facilitiesiethhad balances of $1.96 billion and
$155.6 million at termination. Net repayments urttier Revolving Facility were $130.9 million duri@gg13. We paid debt issuance costs and
hedging fees totaling $29.2 million in 2013 relatedhe refinancing. Also in 2013, we repurchaséd illion outstanding shares of our
common stock at a total cost of $620.1 million.

In 2012 we repurchased 14.4 million outdiag shares of our common stock at a total co$6a@flL.4 million. In July 2012, we issued
$500.0 million aggregate principal amount of 4.12&8hior notes due 2017. Also in July 2012, we redekthe remaining aggregate princ
amount of senior subordinated notes due 2017 edenmption price of 105.938% of the principal amdbeteof, resulting in a cash outflow
$477.5 million. Net borrowings under our seniorwsed revolving credit facility were $101.8 milli@uring 2012.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statementadnordance with U.S. GAAP requires management teereatimates and assumptions that
affect reported amounts and related disclosuregddlition to the estimates presented below, therether items within our financial
statements that require estimation, but are nanddecritical as defined below. We believe thesenedées are reasonable and appropriate.
However, if actual experience differs from the asptions and other considerations used, the reguitianges could have a material effec
the financial statements taken as a whole.

Management believes the following policsl estimates are critical because they involveifsdgnt judgments, assumptions, and
estimates. Management has discussed the developmeselection of the critical accounting estimatiéh the Audit Committee of our
Board of Directors, and the Audit Committee haseweed the disclosures presented below relatingded policies and estimates. See Note 1
to the consolidated financial statements for aibetaliscussion of our principal accounting polgie

Merchandise Inventories. Merchandise inventories are stated at the lmf/eost or market ("LCM") with cost determined ngsithe
retail last in, first out ("LIFO") method. We udeetretail inventory method ("RIM") to calculate gsoprofit and the resulting valuation of
inventories at cost, which are computed by applgmglculated cost-to-retail inventory ratio to th&ail value of sales at a department level.
The RIM is an averaging method that has been widsdyl in the retail industry due to its practigalilso, the use of the RIM will result in
valuing inventories at LCM if markdowns are curigniken as a reduction of the retail value of megies. Inherent in the retail inventory
method calculation are certain significant managegmelgments and estimates including, among othwital markups, markdowns, and
shrinkage, which significantly impact the grossfiprealculation as well as the ending inventoryuatlon at cost. These significant estimates,
coupled with
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the fact that the RIM is an averaging process, gader certain circumstances, produce distortetifpges. Factors that can lead to
distortion in the calculation of the inventory brade include:

. applying the RIM to a group of products that is faatly uniform in terms of its cost and sellingqe relationship and turnover;

. applying the RIM to transactions over a periétirae that include different rates of gross pradiich as those relating to
seasonal merchandise;

. inaccurate estimates of inventory shrinkage betwieemate of the last physical inventory at a store the financial statement
date; and
. inaccurate estimates of LCM and/or LIFO reserves.

Factors that reduce potential distorticziide the use of historical experience in estinggtire shrink provision (see discussion below)
and an annual LIFO analysis whereby all SKUs arssiciered for inclusion in the index formulation. Actual valuation of inventory under
the LIFO method is made at the end of each yeardas the inventory levels and costs at that téeeordingly, interim LIFO calculations
are based on management's estimates of expectedngtaventory levels, sales for the year andetkected rate of inflation/deflation for
the year and are thus subject to adjustment ifitaeyear-end LIFO inventory valuation. We alsafpem interim inventory analysis for
determining obsolete inventory. Our policy is tatesdown inventory to an LCM value based on varimaagement assumptions including
estimated markdowns and sales required to liquisiatl inventory in future periods. Inventory isiesved on a quarterly basis and adjuste
reflect write-downs as appropriate.

Factors such as slower inventory turnower  changes in competitors' practices, consuneéengnces, consumer spending and
unseasonable weather patterns, among other facturisl cause excess inventory requiring greater gséimated markdowns to entice
consumer purchases, resulting in an unfavorabladmngn our consolidated financial statements. Sdiestfalls due to the above factors cc
cause reduced purchases from vendors and assoegtddr allowances that would also result in aravofable impact on our consolidated
financial statements.

We calculate our shrink provision basedotual physical inventory results during the figeatiod and an accrual for estimated shrink
occurring subsequent to a physical inventory thhoting end of the fiscal reporting period. This aetis calculated as a percentage of sal
each retail store, at a department level, andteroiened by dividing the book-to-physical invent@gjustments recorded during the previous
twelve months by the related sales for the samieghéor each store. To the extent that subsequeygipal inventories yield different results
than this estimated accrual, our effective shratk for a given reporting period will include timegact of adjusting the estimated results tc
actual results. Although we perform physical ineeigs in virtually all of our stores on an annuasis, the same stores do not necessarily get
counted in the same reporting periods from yegetr, which could impact comparability in a givepeorting period.

We believe our estimates and assumptidatereto merchandise inventories have generally lbeeurate in recent years and we do not
currently anticipate material changes in theseredtis and assumptions.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.The qualitative and quantitative assessmefaterkto the valuation and any potential
impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets each subject to judgments and/or assumptiggsifiSant judgments required in the
analysis of qualitative factors may include deterig the appropriate factors to consider and thragive importance of those factors along
with other assumptions. Significant judgments regglin the quantitative testing process may incluegecting future cash flows,
determining appropriate discount rates, correqiiylyeing valuation techniques, correctly computihg tmplied fair value of goodwill if
necessary, and other
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assumptions. Future cash flow projections are basedanagement's projections and represent bésiadss taking into account recent
financial performance, market trends, strategiopl@nd other available information, which in recggdrs have been materially accurate.
Although not currently anticipated, changes in ¢hestimates and assumptions could materially afffiectietermination of fair value or
impairment. Future indicators of impairment cowdult in an asset impairment charge. If these jidmor assumptions are incorrect or
flawed, the analysis could be negatively impacted.

Our most recent testing of our goodwill amdiefinite lived trade name intangible assets eampleted during the third quarter of 2014.
No indicators of impairment were evident and neassient of or adjustment to these assets was edqbfife are not currently projecting
decline in cash flows that could be expected tetamvadverse effect such as a violation of deb¢rants or future impairment charges.

Property and Equipment. Property and equipment are recorded at costgidigp our assets into relatively homogeneous etasad
generally provide for depreciation on a straighelbasis over the estimated average useful ligaol asset class, except for leasehold
improvements, which are amortized over the lesEtreapplicable lease term or the estimated udiédubf the asset. Certain store and
warehouse fixtures, when fully depreciated, areoved from the cost and related accumulated degi@eiand amortization accounts. The
valuation and classification of these assets aad$signment of depreciable lives involves sigaifigudgments and the use of estimates,
which we believe have been materially accuratedaent years.

Impairment of Long-lived AssetsImpairment of long-lived assets results whendarrying value of the assets exceeds the estimate
undiscounted future cash flows generated by theteisQur estimate of undiscounted future store fiasfs is based upon historical
operations of the stores and estimates of futwétability which encompasses many factors thatsatgect to variability and are difficult to
predict. If our estimates of future cash flows aoé materially accurate, our impairment analysisidde impacted accordingly. If a lotiged
asset is found to be impaired, the amount recogrfimeimpairment is equal to the difference betwdencarrying value and the asset's
estimated fair value. The fair value is estimatagdal primarily upon projected future cash flows¢dunted at our credit adjusted risk-free
rate) or other reasonable estimates of fair mar&iete in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Although notrently anticipated, changes in these
estimates, assumptions or projections could mélieafect the determination of fair value or impaent.

Insurance Liabilities. We retain a significant portion of the risk faur workers' compensation, employee health, ptgpess,
automobile and general liability. These represgttiicant costs primarily due to our large empleymase and number of stores. Provisions
are made for these liabilities on an undiscounteishbased on actual claim data and estimateswifrad but not reported claims developed
using actuarial methodologies based on historieatctrends, which have been and are anticipatedmtinue to be materially accurate. If
future claim trends deviate from recent historjgatterns, or other unanticipated events affechtimaber and significance of future claims,
may be required to record additional expenses pemrse reductions, which could be material to oturéufinancial results.

Contingent Liabilities—Income Taxeslncome tax reserves are determined using ttieadelogy established by accounting standards
relating to uncertainty in income taxes. Theseddaats require companies to assess each incomesiiop taken using a twstep process.
determination is first made as to whether it is enikely than not that the position will be sustdnbased upon the technical merits, upon
examination by the taxing authorities. If the tasipion is expected to meet the more likely thahaniteria, the benefit recorded for the tax
position equals the largest amount that is grebatar 50% likely to be realized upon ultimate settdat of the respective tax position.
Uncertain tax positions require determinations lgadallities to be estimated based on provisionthef
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tax law which may be subject to change or varyirtgrpretation. If our determinations and estimatese to be inaccurate, the resulting
adjustments could be material to our future finah@sults.

Contingent Liabilities—Legal Matters. We are subject to legal, regulatory and otlecgedings and claims. We establish liabilities as
appropriate for these claims and proceedings baged the probability and estimability of losses &méhirly present, in conjunction with the
disclosures of these matters in our financial stet@s and SEC filings, management's view of oupsupe. We review outstanding claims
and proceedings with external counsel to assesmbpildy and estimates of loss, which includes malgsis of whether such loss estimates are
probable, reasonably possible, or remote. We résatathese assessments on a quarterly basisnemaand significant information becomes
available to determine whether a liability shouddstablished or if any existing liability shoulel &djusted. The actual cost of resolving a
claim or proceeding ultimately may be substantidlfferent than the amount of the recorded liapilih addition, because it is not permiss
under U.S. GAAP to establish a litigation liabilitytil the loss is both probable and estimablesome cases there may be insufficient time to
establish a liability prior to the actual incurrenaf the loss (upon verdict and judgment at tf@l example, or in the case of a quickly
negotiated settlement).

Lease Accounting and Excess Facilitiesvlany of our stores are subject to build-to-suiangements with landlords, which typically
carry a primary lease term of up to 15 years witltiple renewal options. We also have stores sulbgeshorter-term leases and many of
these leases have renewal options. Certain oftotgsshave provisions for contingent rentals bageah a percentage of defined sales voli
We recognize contingent rental expense when thiewetment of specified sales targets is considerebghle. We record minimum rental
expense on a straight-line basis over the basecaocelable lease term commencing on the dateviagke physical possession of the
property from the landlord, which normally includegeriod prior to store opening to make necedsasehold improvements and install s
fixtures. When a lease contains a predeterminestifescalation of the minimum rent, we recognizedfeted rent expense on a straight-line
basis and record the difference between the rezednmental expense and the amounts payable urelérabe as deferred rent. Tenant
allowances, to the extent received, are recordetfesred incentive rent and amortized as a redludt rent expense over the term of the
lease. We reflect as a liability any differencensstn the calculated expense and the amounts acpaadl. Improvements of leased properties
are amortized over the shorter of the life of thplizable lease term or the estimated useful lifthe asset.

Share-Based PaymentsOur share-based stock option awards are valneth individual grant basis using the Black-Scaderton
closed form option pricing model. We believe thas tmodel fairly estimates the value of our shaaeddl awards. The application of this
valuation model involves assumptions that are juelgiad and highly sensitive in the valuation of &toptions, which affects compensation
expense related to these options. These assumpiinde the term that the options are expectdabtoutstanding, the historical volatility of
our stock price, applicable interest rates andlthielend yield of our stock. Other factors involgijudgments that affect the expensing of
share-based payments include estimated forfeities i0f share-based awards. Historically, thesmatss have not been materially
inaccurate; however, if our estimates differ matérifrom actual experience, we may be requirecetmrd additional expense or reduction
expense, which could be material to our futurerfaial results.

Fair Value Measurements. Accounting standards for the measurement ofviliie of assets and liabilities establish avalue
hierarchy that distinguishes between market paditi assumptions based on market data obtainedsibances independent of the reporting
entity (observable inputs that are classified withévels 1 and 2 of the hierarchy) and the repgréintity's own assumptions about market
participant assumptions (unobservable inputs dladsivithin Level 3 of the hierarchy). Thereforeg\el 3 inputs are typically based on an
entity's own assumptions, as there is little, if,an
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related market activity, and thus require the dssgmificant judgment and estimates. Currently,hv@@e no assets or liabilities that are val
based solely on Level 3 inputs.

Our fair value measurements are primasioaiated with our derivative financial instrumeimtsangible assets, debt instruments, and to
a lesser degree our investments. We use variouati@h models in determining the values of thesetasand liabilities. The application of
these models involves assumptions such as disabuath flow analysis and interest rate curvesar@judgmental and highly sensitive in
fair value computations. In recent years, theséoukilogies have produced materially accurate vialosit

Derivative Financial Instruments. In addition to estimating the fair value of idatives as discussed above, we also bear th¢hagk
certain derivative instruments that have been deségl as hedges and currently meet the strict hacigmunting requirements may not qualify
in the future as "highly effective," as definedveal as the risk that hedged transactions in d@shhedging relationships may no longer be
considered probable to occur. If hedge accountiagewlisallowed it could cause greater volatilityur results of operations. Further, new
regulations, accounting standards, and relatedpirgtations pertaining to these instruments maigsged in the future, and we cannot predict
the possible impact that such requirements may bavaur use of derivative instruments.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE S ABOUT MARKET RISK
Financial Risk Management

We are exposed to market risk primarilyriradverse changes in interest rates, and to a lésgeee commodity prices. To minimize t
risk, we may periodically use financial instrumemteluding derivatives. All derivative financiaistrument transactions must be authorized
and executed pursuant to approval by the Boardreicirs. As a matter of policy, we do not buy elt §nancial instruments for speculative
or trading purposes, and any such derivative firgmstruments are intended to be used to redskeoy hedging an underlying economic
exposure. Because of high correlation between ¢higative financial instrument and the underlyingpesure being hedged, fluctuations in
the value of the financial instruments are geng@iset by reciprocal changes in the value ofuhderlying economic exposure.

Interest Rate Risk

We manage our interest rate risk throughsthategic use of fixed and variable interest datet and, from time to time, derivative
financial instruments. Our principal interest ratgosure relates to outstanding amounts underraeaured debt Facilities. As of January
2015, we had variable rate borrowings of $925 omillunder our Term Facility and no borrowings outdiag under our Revolving Facility.
order to mitigate a portion of the variable rateeiast exposure under the Facilities, we have edtato various interest rate swaps in recent
years. For a detailed discussion of our Facilitteg Note 5 to the consolidated financial statem

Currently, we are counterparty to certaiiest rate swaps with a total notional amour$835.0 million entered into in May 2012 in
order to mitigate a portion of the variable rateeiast exposure under the Facilities. These swapscaeduled to mature in May 2015. Under
the terms of these agreements we swapped one miBEHR rates for fixed interest rates, resultinghie payment of an all-in fixed rate of
1.86% on a notional amount of $875.0 million.

A change in interest rates on variable datet impacts our pre-tax earnings and cash flahgreas a change in interest rates on fixed
rate debt impacts the economic fair value of delbbtiot our pre-tax earnings and cash flows. Owrett rate swaps qualify for hedge
accounting as cash flow hedges. Therefore, changearket fluctuations related to the effectivetfmor of these cash flow hedges do not
impact our pre-tax earnings until the accrued e@gkis recognized on the derivatives and the assathedged debt. Based on our variable
rate borrowing levels and interest rate swaps antshg as of January 30, 2015 and January 31, 284dectively, the annualized effect of a
one percentage point increase in variable inteadas would have resulted in a pretax reductioouofearnings and cash flows of
approximately $0.6 million in 2014 and $1.4 millian2013.

Market conditions and periodic uncertaisiie the global credit markets may increase thditrisk of counterparties to our swap
agreements. In the event such counterpartiesof@étform under our swap agreements and we ardeuttabnter into new swap agreements
on terms favorable to us, our ability to effectivedlanage our interest rate risk may be materiailyadired. We attempt to manage counterj
credit risk by periodically evaluating the finarigi®sition and creditworthiness of such counteiiparimonitoring the amount for which we
are at risk with each counterparty, and where ptessilispersing the risk among multiple counteilipartThere can be no assurance that we
will manage or mitigate our counterparty credik rffectively.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY D ATA
Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Dollar General Corporation

We have audited the accompanying conselitibalance sheets of Dollar General Corporationsabgidiaries as of January 30, 2015
January 31, 2014, and the related consolidateenstatts of income, comprehensive income, sharetglgguity and cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended January 3. 20%ese financial statements are the respongibilithe Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Slgat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &dndbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on lasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptexused and significant estimates made by maregeas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the financial statementened to above present fairly, in all materialpests, the consolidated financial position of
Dollar General Corporation and subsidiaries at dan80, 2015 and January 31, 2014, and the comgetidesults of their operations and t
cash flows for each of the three years in the pegioded January 30, 2015, in conformity with U éhegrally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstndards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatd8oard (United States), Dollar
General Corporation and subsidiaries' internalrobiover financial reporting as of January 30, 2&sed on criteria established in Internal
Control-Integrated Framework issued by the CommitteSponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Cassion (2013 framework) and our
report dated March 20, 2015 expressed an unquhbifiénion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Nashville, Tennesse
March 20, 201!
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

January 30, January 31,
2015 2014
ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 579,820 $§ 505,56t
Merchandise inventorie 2,782,52. 2,552,99:
Prepaid expenses and other current a 170,26! 147,04
Total current asse 3,532,60! 3,205,60
Net property and equipme 2,116,07! 2,080,30!
Goodwill 4,338,58! 4,338,58
Other intangible assets, r 1,201,87! 1,207,64!
Other assets, n 34,96 35,37¢
Total asset $ 11,224,10 $ 10,867,52
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of lon-term obligation: $ 101,15¢ $ 75,96¢
Accounts payabl 1,388,15. 1,286,48.
Accrued expenses and otl 413,76( 368,57¢
Income taxes payab 59,40( 59,14¢
Deferred income taxe 25,26¢ 21,79¢
Total current liabilities 1,987,74 1,811,97
Long-term obligations 2,639,42 2,742,78
Deferred income taxe 601,59( 614,02t
Other liabilities 285,30¢ 296,54t
Commitments and contingenci
Shareholders' equit
Preferred stock, 1,000 shares authori — —
Common stock; $0.875 par value, 1,000,000 sharttedzed,
303,447 and 317,058 shares issued and outstanding a
January 30, 2015 and January 31, 2014, respec 265,51 277,42
Additional paic-in capital 3,048,801 3,009,221
Retained earning 2,403,04! 2,125,45:
Accumulated other comprehensive i (7,327%) (9,910
Total shareholders' equi 5,710,03! 5,402,19.
Total liabilities and shareholders' equ $ 11,224,100 $ 10,867,52

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdmsolidated financial statements.
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

For the Year Ended

January 30, January 31, February 1,
2015 2014 2013

Net sales $ 18,909,58 $ 17,504,16 $ 16,022,12
Cost of goods sol 13,107,08 12,068,42 10,936,72
Gross profit 5,802,50 5,435,74. 5,085,40.
Selling, general and administrative exper 4,033,41 3,699,55 3,430,12!
Operating profit 1,769,09: 1,736,18 1,655,27
Interest expens 88,23 88,98¢ 127,92¢
Other (income) expen: — 18,87 29,95¢
Income before income tax 1,680,86: 1,628,33 1,497,39.
Income tax expens 615,51¢ 603,21- 544,73.
Net income $ 106534 $ 1,02511 $ 952,66
Earnings per shar

Basic $ 35C $ 317 $ 2.87

Diluted $ 3.4¢ $ 317 $ 2.8t
Weighted average shares outstand

Basic 304,63 322,88t 332,25:

Diluted 305,68: 323,85: 334,46

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdmsolidated financial statements.
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(In thousands)

For the Year Ended

January 30, January 31, February 1,
2015 2014 2013
Net income $ 1,065,34' $ 1,025,111 $ 952,66:
Unrealized net gain (loss) on hedged transactioetsof
related income tax expense (benefit) of $1,671,
$(4,461) and $1,448, respectivi 2,58:¢ (6,972) 2,25:
Comprehensive incon $ 1,067,920 $ 1,018,14. $ 954,91!

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftimsolidated financial statements.
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Balances,
February 3,
2012

Net income

Unrealized net
gain (loss) on
hedged
transaction:

Share-based
compensation
expense

Repurchases of
common stocl

Tax benefit from
stock option
exercises

Exercise of share
based award

Other equity
transaction:

Balances,
February 1,
2013

Net income

Unrealized net
gain (loss) on
hedged
transaction:

Share-based
compensation
expense

Repurchases of
common stocl

Tax benefit from
stock option
exercises

Exercise of share
based award

Balances,
January 31,
2014

Net income

Unrealized net
gain (loss) on
hedged
transaction:

Share-based
compensation
expense

Repurchases of
common stocl

Tax benefit from
stock option
exercises

Exercise of share
based award

Balances

DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
(In thousands except per share amounts)

Accumulated

Common Additional Other

Stock Common Paid-in Retained Comprehensive

Shares Stock Capital Earnings Loss Total
338,08¢ $295,82¢ $2,967,02° $1,416,91 $ (5,197) $4,674,58:
— — — 952,66. — 952,66:
— — — — 2,25:¢ 2,25
— — 21,66¢ — — 21,66¢
(14,399 (12,59 (16) (658,849 — (671,459
— — 77,02( — — 77,02(
3,04¢ 2,667 (75,78)) — — (73,120
32€ 28t 1,44: — — 1,72¢
327,06¢ $286,18! $2,991,35. $1,710,73 $ (2,93¢) $4,985,33i
— — — 1,025,111 — 1,025,111
_ — — — (6,977) (6,972)
— — 20,96 — — 20,96!
(11,03)  (9,65)) —  (610,39) — (620,05
— — 24,15! — — 24,15!
1,02¢ 89¢€ (27,23) — — (26,34))
317,05¢ $277,42: $3,009,221 $2,125/45. $ (9,910) $5,402,19:
— — — 1,065,34 — 1,065,34!
— — — — 2,58:¢ 2,58:
— — 37,33¢ — — 37,33¢
(14,106 (12,34 —  (787,75) — (800,09
— — 5,047 — — 5,047
49t 437 (2,805 — — (2,379




January 30, 201 303,44 $265,51: $3,048,801 $2,403,04 $ (7,327 $5,710,03:

The accompanying notes are an integral part of¢imsolidated financial statements.
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

For the Year Ended

January 30, January 31, February 1,
2015 2014 2013

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income $ 1,065,34" $ 1,025,111 $ 952,66:
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net casinfro

operating activities

Depreciation and amortizatic 342,35: 332,83 302,91:
Deferred income taxe (27,739 (36,85) (2,60%)
Tax benefit of sha-based award (12,149 (30,990 (87,757
Loss on debt retirement, r — 18,871 30,62(
Noncash sha-based compensatic 37,33¢ 20,96! 21,66«
Other noncash (gains) and los 8,551 (12,747 6,77¢
Change in operating assets and liabilit
Merchandise inventorie (233,559 (144,949 (391,409
Prepaid expenses and other current a: (25,049 (4,947 5,55:
Accounts payabl 97,16¢ 36,94: 194,03!
Accrued expenses and other liabilit 41,63 16,26¢ (36,747
Income taxe: 12,39¢ (5,249 138,71:
Other (1,555 (2,200 (3,079
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi 1,314,74. 1,213,06! 1,131,35;
Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of property and equiprr (373,96) (538,44 (571,59¢)
Proceeds from sales of property and equipr 2,26¢ 288,46¢ 1,76(
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi (371,699 (249,979 (569,83

Cash flows from financing activitie
Issuance of lor-term obligation: — 2,29717 500,00(
Repayments of lor-term obligations (78,467 (2,119,99) (478,25

Borrowings under revolving credit facilitit 1,023,00! 1,172,900  2,286,70
Repayments of borrowings under revolving credit

facilities (1,023,00) (1,303,800 (2,184,900
Debt issuance cos — (15,996 (15,279
Payments for cash flow hedge related to debt iss — (13,219 —
Repurchases of common stc (800,09) (620,059 (671,459
Other equity transactions, net of employee taxéb (2,379 (26,34) (71,399
Tax benefit of sha-based award 12,147 30,99( 87,75:
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi (868,78 (598,33() (546,83))
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 74,257 364,75 14,68
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of 505,56¢ 140,80¢ 126,12t
Cash and cash equivalents, end of ) $ 579,82 $ 505,56t $ 140,80

Supplemental cash flow informatic
Cash paid for

Interest $ 82447 $ 7346 $ 121,71

Income taxe! $ 631,48. $ 646,81. $ 422,33:
Supplemental schedule of noncash investing and

financing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment awaiting

processing for payment, included in Accountspay $ 31,58¢ $ 27,08 $ 39,14%
Purchases of property and equipment under cap#akl

obligations $ — $ — $ 3,44(

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdmsolidated financial statements.
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Basis of presentation and accounting policies
Basis of presentation

These notes contain references to the €44, 2013, and 2012, which represent fiscal yeaded January 30, 2015, January 31, 2014,
and February 1, 2013, respectively, each of whierevb2-week accounting periods. The Company'slfig ends on the Friday closest to
January 31. The consolidated financial statemectade all subsidiaries of the Company, excepttfonot-for-profit subsidiary which the
Company does not control. Intercompany transacti@ave been eliminated.

The Company sells general merchandiseretad basis through 11,789 stores (as of Januarg@15) in 40 states covering most of the
southern, southwestern, midwestern and eastered)Bitates. The Company has owned distribution re(®Cs") in Scottsville, Kentucky;
South Boston, Virginia; Alachua, Florida; Zanes¥ilDhio; Jonesville, South Carolina; Marion, IndiaBessemer, Alabama; and Bethel,
Pennsylvania, and leased DCs in Ardmore, Oklahdémkion, Missouri; Indianola, Mississippi; and Leb&alifornia.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highlyidi investments with insignificant interest rakrand original maturities of three months or
less when purchased. Such investments primarilgisbaf money market funds, bank deposits, cedtiéis of deposit, and commercial paper.
The carrying amounts of these items are a reaseralimate of their fair value due to the shorturit of these investments.

Payments due from processors for electrtmmder transactions classified as cash and castadents totaled approximately
$58.5 million and $44.0 million at January 30, 2@tk January 31, 2014, respectively.

At January 30, 2015, the Company maintagssh balances to meet a $20 million minimum trokkket by insurance regulators, as
further described below under "Insurance liab#itie

Investments in debt and equity securities

The Company accounts for investments it datl marketable equity securities as held-to-nitgfuavailable-for-sale, or trading,
depending on their classification. Debt securitiagegorized as held-to-maturity are stated at ansakicost. Debt and equity securities
categorized as available-for-sale are stated mav#&#ie, with any unrealized gains and lossesphdeferred income taxes, reported as a
component of Accumulated other comprehensive Ibsaling securities (primarily mutual funds held guant to deferred compensation and
supplemental retirement plans, as further discubstmlv in Notes 6 and 9) are stated at fair valith changes in fair value recorded as a
component of Selling, general and administratif®3&A") expense. The cost of securities sold is Hageon the specific identification
method.

Merchandise inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cogharket with cost determined using the retai-la, first-out ("LIFO") method as this method
results in a better matching of costs and reverideder the Company's retail inventory method ("RIMhe calculation of gross profit and
resulting valuation of inventories at cost are cated by applying a calculated cost-to-retail ineeptratio to the retail value of sales at a
department level. The use of the RIM will resulvaduing inventories at the lower
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
1. Basis of presentation and accounting policies (dtinued)

of cost or market ("LCM") if markdowns are currgnthken as a reduction of the retail value of ingeers. Costs directly associated with
warehousing and distribution are capitalized imteentory.

The excess of current cost over LIFO cass approximately $95.1 million and $90.9 millionJahuary 30, 2015 and January 31, 2014,
respectively. Current cost is determined usingRhd on a first-in, first-out basis. Under the LIR@ventory method, the impacts of rising or
falling market price changes increase or decreaseaf sales (the LIFO provision or benefit). Then@pany recorded a LIFO provision
(benefit) of $4.2 million in 2014, $(11.0) millian 2013, and $1.4 million in 2012, which is includi& cost of goods sold in the consolidated
statements of income.

The Company purchases its merchandise &aovite variety of suppliers. The Company's largest second largest suppliers each
accounted for approximately 7% of the Company'sipases in 2014.

Vendor rebates

The Company accounts for all cash consiaeraeceived from vendors in accordance with aggfiie accounting standards pertaining to
such arrangements. Cash consideration receiveddreamdor is generally presumed to be a rebata al@wvance and is accounted for as a
reduction of merchandise purchase costs as eanwseever, certain specific, incremental and otheevgaalifying SG&A expenses related to
the promotion or sale of vendor products may bsetfiby cash consideration received from vendora¢c@ordance with arrangements such as
cooperative advertising, when earned for dollar am® up to but not exceeding actual incrementakcos

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Prepaid expenses and other current assdtgle prepaid amounts for rent, maintenance, basiticenses, advertising, and insurance,
and amounts receivable for certain vendor rebat@sndrily those expected to be collected in casi) @upons.

Property and equipment

As the result of a merger transaction i8722@Ghe Company's property and equipment was redaaitiestimated fair values. Property and
equipment acquired subsequent to the merger hasrbeerded at cost. The Company records depregiatid amortization on a straight-line
basis over the
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
1. Basis of presentation and accounting policies (dtinued)

assets' estimated useful lives. The Company's ggoped equipment balances and depreciable livees@nmarized as follows:

Depreciable January 30, January 31,

(In thousands) Life 2015 2014

Land Indefinite $ 172,32¢ $ 163,44t
Land improvement 20 55,37¢ 48,56¢
Buildings 39-40 800,34t 765,55!
Leasehold improvemen €)) 361,55 326,12:
Furniture, fixtures and equipme 3-10 2,295,59i 2,078,89:
Construction in progres 68,36( 70,33:

3,753,55' 3,452,91i

Less accumulated depreciation and
amortizatior 1,637,48; 1,372,61
Net property and equipme $ 2,116,070 $ 2,080,30!

(&  Amortized over the lesser of the life of the apgtile lease term or the estimated useful life ofatbeet

Depreciation expense related to propertyegquipment was approximately $335.9 million, $31illion and $277.2 million for 2014,
2013 and 2012. Amortization of capital lease assdtscluded in depreciation expense. Interestamdwed funds during the construction of
property and equipment is capitalized where appleanterest costs of $0.2 million, $1.2 millionda$0.6 million were capitalized in 2014,
2013 and 2012.

Impairment of long-lived assets

When indicators of impairment are prestivd,Company evaluates the carrying value of lived assets, other than goodwill, in relat
to the operating performance and future cash flomtbe appraised values of the underlying asseteef@lly, the Company's policy is to
review for impairment stores open more than thesry for which current cash flows from operatioresreegative. Impairment results when
the carrying value of the assets exceeds the umdised future cash flows expected to be generatéddbassets. The Company's estimate of
undiscounted future cash flows is based upon héstooperations of the stores and estimates oféustore profitability which encompasses
many factors that are subject to variability anffialilt to predict. If a long-lived asset is fouta be impaired, the amount recognized for
impairment is equal to the difference between Hreying value and the asset's estimated fair vdlbe.fair value is estimated based prime
upon estimated future cash flows over the assatisining useful life (discounted at the Companseslit adjusted risk-free rate) or other
reasonable estimates of fair market value. Assdte tdisposed of are adjusted to the fair valuetles cost to sell if less than the book value.

The Company recorded impairment chargdsdied in SG&A expense of approximately $1.9 milliar2014, $0.5 million in 2013 and
$2.7 million in 2012, to reduce the carrying vatifeertain of its stores' assets. Such action veasnéd necessary based on the Company's
evaluation that such amounts would not be recoleaiimarily due to insufficient sales or excessiests resulting in negative current and
projected future cash flows at these locations.
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
1. Basis of presentation and accounting policies (dtinued)
Goodwill and other intangible assets

The Company amortizes intangible assets thegr estimated useful lives unless such livesdgemed indefinite. Goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite lives are testadmpairment annually or more frequently if indtors of impairment are present. Other
intangible assets are tested for impairment ifdattirs of impairment are present. Impaired assetadtten down to fair value as required.
No impairment of intangible assets has been idedtduring any of the periods present

In accordance with accounting standardgémdwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets,entity has the option first to assess
qualitative factors to determine whether events@rmaimstances indicate that it is more likely thmax that goodwill or an indefinite-lived
intangible asset is impaired. If after such asses$mn entity concludes that the asset is not iragathen the entity is not required to take
further action. However, if an entity concludesesthise, then it is required to determine the faiiue of the asset using a quantitative
impairment test, and if impaired, the associatesg@smust be written down to fair value as desdribdurther detail below.

The quantitative goodwill impairment testi two-step process that requires managementke juggments in determining what
assumptions to use in the calculation. The firgp sif the process consists of estimating the finerof the Company's reporting unit base:
valuation techniques (including a discounted césh model using revenue and profit forecasts) amdparing that estimated fair value with
the recorded carrying value, which includes gooldWfithe estimated fair value is less than theydag value, a second step is performed to
compute the amount of the impairment by determimingimplied fair value" of goodwill. The determtien of the implied fair value of
goodwill would require the Company to allocate éstimated fair value of its reporting unit to itsats and liabilities. Any unallocated fair
value would represent the implied fair value of gwdl, which would be compared to its correspondaagrying value.

The quantitative impairment test for intduhg assets compares the fair value of the intdegibset with its carrying amount. If the
carrying amount of an intangible asset exceedsiitwvalue, an impairment loss is recognized iraamount equal to that excess.

Other assets

Noncurrent Other assets consist primaffilgualifying prepaid expenses, debt issuance awelsish are amortized over the life of the
related obligations, beer and wine licenses, aitityusecurity and other deposits.
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
1. Basis of presentation and accounting policies (dtinued)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Accrued expenses and other consist ofdhewing:

January 30, January 31,

(In thousands) 2015 2014

Compensation and benef $ 78,64t $§ 47,90¢
Insurance 81,94 84,69’
Taxes (other than taxes on incor 124,89: 104,99(
Other 128,27¢ 130,98:

$ 413,76( $ 368,57

Other accrued expenses primarily includedirrent portion of liabilities for interest expenlegal settlements, freight expense, accrued
bank fees, utilities, and common area and othent@aéance charges.

Insurance liabilities

The Company retains a significant portibmigk for its workers' compensation, employee tieajeneral liability, property and
automobile claim exposures. Accordingly, provisians made for the Company's estimates of such. fi$lesundiscounted future claim costs
for the workers' compensation, general liabilityddealth claim risks are derived using actuariethods and are recorded as self-insurance
reserves pursuant to Company policy. To the exttettsubsequent claim costs vary from those estéiture results of operations will be
affected as the reserves are adjusted.

Ashley River Insurance Company ("ARIC"Sauth Carolina-based wholly owned captive insuraautssidiary of the Company, charges
the operating subsidiary companies premiums ta@nthe retained workers' compensation and non-prypgeneral liability exposures.
Pursuant to South Carolina insurance regulatioRICAmaintains certain levels of cash and cash edgis related to its self-insured
exposures. ARIC currently insures no unrelateditparty risk.

Operating leases and related liabilities

Rent expense is recognized over the tertheofease. The Company records minimum rentalresgpen a straight-line basis over the
base, non-cancelable lease term commencing oratedftht the Company takes physical possessidregiroperty from the landlord, which
normally includes a period prior to the store opgrtb make necessary leasehold improvements atall istore fixtures. When a lease
contains a predetermined fixed escalation of th@mim rent, the Company recognizes the relatedexgmtnse on a straight-line basis and
records the difference between the recognizedlrerpense and the amounts payable under the lsateferred rent. Tenant allowances, to
the extent received, are recorded as deferred iveerent and are amortized as a reduction toegpéense over the term of the lease. The
difference between the calculated expense andnioaiiats paid result in a liability, with the currqagrtion in Accrued expenses and other
the long-term portion in Other liabilities in therssolidated balance sheets, and totaled approxiyr#id.6 million and $49.5 million at
January 30, 2015 and January 31, 2014, respectively
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
1. Basis of presentation and accounting policies (dtinued)

The Company recognizes contingent rentaéage when the achievement of specified salestsagyeonsidered probable. The amount
expensed but not paid as of January 30, 2015 anchda31, 2014 was approximately $4.8 million aéddmillion, respectively, and is
included in Accrued expenses and other in the dinlaged balance sheets.

Other liabilities
Noncurrent Other liabilities consist of fladlowing:

January 30, January 31,

(In thousands) 2015 2014

Compensation and benef $ 20,266 $ 17,60¢
Insurance 140,91¢ 145,16:
Income tax related reserv 10,69( 18,80z
Deferred gain on sale leaseb: 58,21¢ 62,69:
Other 55,22 52,28

$ 285,30¢ $ 296,54t

Amounts categorized as "Other" in the tatideve consist primarily of deferred rent.
Fair value accounting

The Company utilizes accounting standapd$dir value, which include the definition of faialue, the framework for measuring fair
value, and disclosures about fair value measuresnEatr value is a market-based measurement, netitg-specific measurement.
Therefore, a fair value measurement should be miéted based on the assumptions that market paatitspvould use in pricing the asset or
liability. As a basis for considering market paant assumptions in fair value measurementsy#dire accounting standards establish a fair
value hierarchy that distinguishes between mar&gigipant assumptions based on market data olotdiinen sources independent of the
reporting entity (observable inputs that are cfasiwithin Levels 1 and 2 of the hierarchy) and tkporting entity's own assumptions about
market participant assumptions (unobservable inglassified within Level 3 of the hierarchy).

Level 1 inputs utilize quoted prices (unestigd) in active markets for identical assetsabilities that the Company has the ability to
access. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than qumieds included in Level 1 that are directly adinectly observable for the asset or liability.
Level 2 inputs may include quoted prices for simédasets and liabilities in active markets, as @aglinputs that are observable for the asset ol
liability (other than quoted prices), such as iegtrates, foreign exchange rates, and yield cuhatsare observable at commonly quoted
intervals. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inpatgtie asset or liability, which are based on aityém own assumptions, as there is little, if
any, observable market activity. In instances whieeefair value measurement is based on inputs fifferent levels of the fair value
hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchyhin which the entire fair value measurement fallsased on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement in itérety. The Company's assessment of the signifiearfi@ particular input to the fair value
measurement in its entirety requires judgment amsiders factors specific to the asset or liability
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
1. Basis of presentation and accounting policies (dtinued)

The valuation of the Company's derivativaficial instruments is determined using widelyegded valuation techniques, including
discounted cash flow analysis on the expected ftasis of each derivative. This analysis reflects tontractual terms of the derivatives,
including the period to maturity, and uses obsdevatarket-based inputs, including interest ratesesir The fair values of interest rate swaps
are determined using the market standard methogalbgetting the discounted future fixed cash paytador receipts) and the discounted
expected variable cash receipts (or payments)va@tiable cash receipts (or payments) are based ex@ectation of future interest rates
(forward curves) derived from observable marketriast rate curves.

The Company incorporates credit valuatidjustments (CVASs) to appropriately reflect bothaten nonperformance risk and the
respective counterparty's nonperformance riskénfalir value measurements. In adjusting the fdinevaf its derivative contracts for the eff
of nonperformance risk, the Company has considireimpact of netting and any applicable creditagrdements, such as collateral postil
thresholds, mutual puts, and guarantees.

In connection with accounting standardsféarvalue measurement, the Company has madecauating policy election to measure the
credit risk of its derivative financial instrumertkgt are subject to master netting agreementsnat basis by counterparty portfolio. The
Company has determined that the majority of thetpised to value its derivatives fall within LeRedf the fair value hierarchy. However,
the CVAs associated with its derivatives utilizesek3 inputs, such as estimates of current creuléesds to evaluate the likelihood of default
by itself and its counterparties. As of JanuaryZ1,5, the Company has assessed the significartbe ahpact of the CVAs on the overall
valuation of its derivative positions and has deiaed that the CVAs are not significant to the @leraluation of its derivatives. Based on
the Company's review of the CVAs by counterpartstfpbo, the Company has determined that the CVeesraot significant to the overall
portfolio valuations, as the CVAs are deemed tinfraaterial in terms of basis points and are a gengll percentage of the aggregate
notional value of the derivative instruments. Alllgh some of the CVAs as a percentage of terminatidure appear to be more significant,
primary emphasis was placed on a review of the @VBasis points and the percentage of the notiealak. As a result, the Company has
determined that its derivative valuations in theitirety are classified in Level 2 of the fair valbierarchy.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company accounts for derivative finahtistruments in accordance with applicable actingrstandards for such instruments and
hedging activities, which require that all derivas are recorded on the balance sheet at fair vBhesaccounting for changes in the fair v
of derivatives depends on the intended use of ¢éhiwative, whether the Company has elected to dasiga derivative in a hedging
relationship and apply hedge accounting and whektieehedging relationship has satisfied the ceatagcessary to apply hedge accounting.

Derivatives designated and qualifying &edge of the exposure to changes in the fair vaflaa asset, liability, or firm commitment
attributable to a particular risk, such as interata risk, are considered fair value hedges. @évigs designated and qualifying as a hedge of
the exposure to variability in expected future ciaivs, or other types of forecasted transactians,considered cash flow hedges. Derival
may also be designated as hedges of the foreigarmyr exposure of a net investment in a foreignatpm. Hedge accounting generally
provides for the matching of the timing
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
1. Basis of presentation and accounting policies (dtinued)

of gain or loss recognition on the hedging instrothveith the recognition of the changes in the falue of the hedged asset or liability that
are attributable to the hedged risk in a fair vdiedge or the earnings effect of the hedged foteddsansactions in a cash flow hedge. The
Company may enter into derivative contracts thatimtended to economically hedge a certain pouiats risk, even though hedge
accounting does not apply or the Company electsonapply the hedge accounting standards.

The Company's derivative financial instrumsein the form of interest rate swaps at Jan@ar2015, are related to variable interest rate
risk exposures associated with the Company's leng-tlebt and were entered into in an effort to rgarthat risk. The counterparties to the
Company's derivative agreements are all majornatiénal financial institutions. The Company contily monitors its position and the
credit ratings of its counterparties and does ntitgate nonperformance by the counterparties.

Revenue and gain recognition

The Company recognizes retail sales intidses at the time the customer takes possessimerhandise. All sales are net of discounts
and estimated returns and are presented net of éseessed by governmental authorities that aresiedpconcurrent with those sales. The
liability for retail merchandise returns is basedtbe Company's prior experience. The Company dsogain contingencies when realized.

The Company recognizes gift card salesmeeeat the time of redemption. The liability foetift cards is established for the cash value
at the time of purchase. The liability for outstamggift cards was approximately $2.5 million arti®million at January 30, 2015 and
January 31, 2014, respectively, and is recordéktorued expenses and other liabilities. Estimatedkage revenue, a percentage of gift
cards that will never be redeemed based on hisiaedemption rates, is recognized over time irpprtion to actual gift card redemptions.
For the year ended January 30, 2015, the Compaoyded breakage revenue of $2.4 million.

Advertising costs

Advertising costs are expensed upon pedogs, "first showing" or distribution, and are eefied in SG&A expenses net of earned
cooperative advertising amounts provided by venddrish are specific, incremental and otherwise ifiginb expenses related to the
promotion or sale of vendor products for dollar amts up to but not exceeding actual incrementabcésivertising costs were $77.3 millic
$70.5 million and $61.7 million in 2014, 2013 ar#ll2, respectively. These costs primarily includenpotional circulars, targeted circulars
supporting new stores, television and radio adsiedi in-store signage, and costs associated hatlsponsorships of certain automobile
racing activities. Vendor funding for cooperativdvartising offset reported expenses by $35.0 mi)l&81.9 million and $23.6 million in
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Share-based payments

The Company recognizes compensation exgdensbare-based compensation based on the faie wdlthe awards on the grant date.
Forfeitures are estimated at the time of valuatind reduce expense ratably over the vesting pefiud.estimate may be adjusted
periodically based on the extent to which actudkiftures differ, or are expected to differ, fronetprior estimate. The forfeiture rate
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1. Basis of presentation and accounting policies (dtinued)

is the estimated percentage of options grantechtiga¢xpected to be forfeited or canceled befocerag fully vested. The Company bases
this estimate on historical experience or estimafdature trends, as applicable. An increase aftirfeiture rate will decrease compensation
expense.

The fair value of each option grant is safey estimated and amortized into compensatigeese on a straight-line basis between the
applicable grant date and each vesting date. Thep@oy has estimated the fair value of all stockoopawards as of the grant date by
applying the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricinduaion model. The application of this valuationdaebinvolves assumptions that are
judgmental and highly sensitive in the determinmatid compensation expen:

The Company calculates compensation expensestricted stock, share units and similar alsas the difference between the market
price of the underlying stock on the grant date tedourchase price, if any. Such expense is rézedron a straight-line basis for graded
awards or an accelerated basis for performancedaveser the period in which the recipient earnsathards.

Store pre-opening costs
Pre-opening costs related to new store iagerand the related construction periods are esgebas incurred.
Income taxes

Under the accounting standards for incoamed, the asset and liability method is used fanmding the future income tax consequences
of events that have been recognized in the Companyisolidated financial statements or incomeeaxns. Deferred income tax expense or
benefit is the net change during the year in then@any's deferred income tax assets and liabilities.

The Company includes income tax relateer@dt and penalties as a component of the provisitancome tax expense.

Income tax reserves are determined usimgthodology which requires companies to assessiragime tax position taken using a two-
step process. A determination is first made ashether it is more likely than not that the positieii be sustained, based upon the technical
merits, upon examination by the taxing authoritiEthe tax position is expected to meet the mikely than not criteria, the benefit recorded
for the tax position equals the largest amountithgteater than 50% likely to be realized upoimadte settlement of the respective tax
position. Uncertain tax positions require deterrtiores and estimated liabilities to be made basepgrowisions of the tax law which may be
subject to change or varying interpretation. If @@mpany's determinations and estimates prove bodoeurate, the resulting adjustments
could be material to the Company's future finanaallts.

Management estimates

The preparation of financial statements rahated disclosures in conformity with accountprinciples generally accepted in the United
States requires management to make estimates suehptsons that affect the reported amounts of ass®l liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date efcbnsolidated financial statements and the rep@nt@ounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting periods. Actual results could difiem those estimates.
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1. Basis of presentation and accounting policies (dtinued)
Accounting standards

In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Stards Board issued an accounting standards updth velates to the presentation of an
unrecognized tax benefit when a net operatingdass/forward, a similar tax loss, or a tax creditrgforward exists. The Company's adop
of this guidance in the first quarter of 2014 dat have a material effect on the Company's condtosesolidated financial statements.

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Startts Board issued comprehensive new accountingatds related to the recognition of
revenue. This guidance is effective for annual répg periods beginning after December 15, 2016, @arly adoption is not permitted. The
new guidance allows for companies to use eithetl adtrospective or a modified retrospective agioin the adoption of this guidance, and
the Company is evaluating these transition apprmesmchhe Company will adopt this guidance in thst fijuarter of fiscal year 2017 and is
currently in the process of evaluating the effdcdoption on its consolidated financial statements

Reclassifications

Certain financial disclosures relating tmpperiods may have been reclassified to confrie current year presentation.
2. Goodwill and other intangible assets

As of January 30, 2015 and January 31, 20dbalances of the Company's intangible assets as follows:

As of January 30, 201¢

Remaining Accumulated
(In thousands) Life Amount Amortization Net
Gooduwiill Indefinite $ 4,338,58 $ — $ 4,338,58
Other intangible asset
Leasehold interes lto8years $ 18,21¢ $ 16,04¢ $ 2,17(
Trade names and tradema Indefinite 1,199,701 — 1,199,701
$ 121791 $ 16,04¢ $ 1,201,87!
As of January 31, 201«
Remaining Accumulated
(In thousands) Life Amount Amortization Net
Goodwill Indefinite  $ 4,338,58' $ — $ 4,338,58
Other intangible asset
Leasehold interes lto9yearr $ 64,64« $ 56,69¢ $ 7,94¢
Trade names and tradema Indefinite 1,199,701 — 1,199,701

$ 1,264,34 $ 56,69¢ $ 1,207,64
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2. Goodwill and other intangible assets (Continued)

The Company recorded amortization expeelsgad to amortizable intangible assets for 200432and 2012 of $5.8 million,
$11.9 million and $16.9 million, respectively, aflwhich is included in rent expense. Expectedriizash flows associated with the

Company's intangible assets are not expected todberially affected by the Company's intent origbtb renew or extend the arrangements
The Company's goodwill balance is not expectedetddductible for tax purposes.

For intangible assets subject to amortiratihe estimated aggregate amortization expemseafth of the five succeeding fiscal years is
3. Earnings per share

as follows: 2015—3$0.9 million, 2016—3%$0.3 million)27—3$0.2 million, 2018—%$0.2 million and 2019—%$0.4lion.

Earnings per share is computed as follomwtghpusands except per share data):

2014
Weighted
Average Per Share
Net Income Shares Amount
Basic earnings per she $ 1,065,34" 304,63. $ 3.5C
Effect of dilutive shar-based award 1,04¢
Diluted earnings per sha $ 1,065,34! 30568 $ 3.4¢
2013
Weighted
Average Per Share
Net Income Shares Amount
Basic earnings per she $ 1,025,111 322,88t $  3.17
Effect of dilutive shar-based award 96¢
Diluted earnings per sha $ 1,025,111 323,85 $ 3.17
2012
Weighted
Average Per Share
Net Income Shares Amount
Basic earnings per she $ 952,66: 332,25: $ 2.87
Effect of dilutive shar-based award 2,21°F
Diluted earnings per sha $ 952,66:

334,46¢ $  2.8¢

Basic earnings per share was computed\igiidg net income by the weighted average numbahafes of common stock outstanding
during the year. Diluted earnings per share wasrdehed based on the dilutive effect of share-baseatds using the treasury stock method.

0.8 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Options to purchase shares of common stwtkwere outstanding at the end of the respepegvimds, but were not included in the
computation of diluted earnings per share becawseffect of exercising such options would be alutide, were 1.2 million, 1.2 million, an
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4. Income taxes

The provision (benefit) for income taxessists of the following:

(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012
Current:
Federal $ 543,08¢ $ 530,72¢ $ 457,37(
Foreign 1,24t 1,32¢ 1,20¢
State 81,81¢ 101,17 78,02t
626,15( 633,22¢ 536,60
Deferred:
Federal (7,697 (16,137 9,73¢
State (2,937 (13,880) (1,606

(10,63) _ (30,019 8,12¢
$ 61551( $ 603,21: $ 544,73

A reconciliation between actual income taaad amounts computed by applying the federaltstgtrate to income before income taxes
is summarized as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) 2014 2013 2012
U.S. federal statutory rate on

earnings before income tax $ 588,30: 35.(%$ 569,91t 35.(%%$ 524,08t 35.(%
State income taxes, net of federe

income tax benefi 49,81¢ 3.C 56,82: 3.t 52,71 3.t
Jobs credits, net of federal incorr

taxes (18,96) (1.1 (19,34 (1.2 (16,065 (1.1
Increase (decrease) in valuation

allowances 1,452 0.1 (437) — (3,050 (0.2
Decrease in income tax resen (6,449 (0.9 (6,397) (0.9 (13,67¢ (0.9
Other, ne 1,35] — 2,652 0.1 71¢ 0.1

$ 61551t 36.€%6$ 603,21 37.(%$ 544,73: 36.%%

The 2014 effective tax rate was an expensé.6%. This expense was greater than the fed&tltory tax rate of 35% due primarily to
the inclusion of state income taxes in the totBdative tax rate. The 2014 effective income tae de¢creased from 2013 due principally to the
favorable resolution of state income tax examimegtiand a reduction in other state income tax resacreases. As in prior years, the
Company receives a significant income tax beneféted to salaries paid to certain newly hired eygbs that qualify for federal jobs credits
(principally the Work Opportunity Tax Credit or "WI@"). The federal law authorizing the WOTC credipeed for employees hired after
December 31, 2014. Whether these credits will lzla@vie for employees hired after December 31, 28gends upon a change in the tax
that extends the expiration date of these creditipions, the certainty and timing of which arereuntly unclear.

The 2013 effective tax rate was an expefs$d.0%. The 2013 effective income tax rate insegbfrom 2012 due to the favorable
resolution of income tax examinations during 201 did not reoccur, to the same extent, in 2018 Tate increase was partially offset by
the recording of an income tax benefit in 2013 aisged with the expiration of the assessment patigthg which the taxing authorities co
have assessed additional income tax associatedheitGompany's 2009 tax year.
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4. Income taxes (Continued)

The 2012 effective tax rate was an expensé.4%. This expense was greater than the fedttltory tax rate of 35% due primarily to
the inclusion of state income taxes in the totEaive tax rate.

Deferred taxes reflect the effects of terappdifferences between carrying amounts of assaddiabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for income tax pesp8ggnificant components of the Company's dedear assets and liabilities are as
follows:

January 30, January 31,

(In thousands) 2015 2014
Deferred tax asset
Deferred compensation exper $ 884 $  8,66¢
Accrued expenses and ott 5,14¢ 9,06
Accrued ren 19,36( 17,37¢
Accrued insuranc 76,19° 78,55
Accrued incentive compensati 14,86¢ 3,38¢
Share based compensat 17,62: 12,04¢
Interest rate hedge 4,31¢ 4,921
Tax benefit of income tax and interest reservested|to uncertain te
positions 1,50z 3,43¢
Deferred gain on se-leasebacl 24,38t 26,18¢
Other 3,46: 3,04t
State tax net operating loss carry forwards, néedéral tax 87 282
State tax credit carry forwards, net of federal 11,03¢ 8,28:
186,82¢ 175,25:
Less valuation allowanct (2,845 (1,397%)
Total deferred tax asse 183,98: 173,86:
Deferred tax liabilities
Property and equipme (302,53) (307,64
Inventories (73,189 (64,487)
Trademark: (433,32)  (433,130)
Other (1,799 (4,427)
Total deferred tax liabilitie (810,84)  (809,68:)
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ (626,85 $ (635,82)

Net deferred tax liabilities are reflectparately on the consolidated balance sheetsi@ntand noncurrent deferred income taxes
following table summarizes net deferred tax lidigi as recorded in the consolidated balance sheets

January 30, January 31,

(In thousands) 2015 2014

Current deferred income tax liabilities, 1 $ (25,26 $ (21,79
Noncurrent deferred income tax liabilities, | (601,590 (614,02
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ (626,85) $ (635,82)
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The Company has state net operating lasg frwards as of January 30, 2015 that total apipnately $1.3 million which will expire in
2028. The Company also has state tax credit carwydrds of approximately $17.0 million that willgxe beginning in 2022 through 2025.

A valuation allowance has been providedstate tax credit carry forwards. The 2014 incredsgl.5 million was recorded as an incre
in income tax expense with the 2013 and 2012 deereaf $0.4 million and $3.1 million, respectivelycorded as reductions in income tax
expense. Based upon expected future income, marsgdmmlieves that it is more likely than not that tesults of operations will generate
sufficient taxable income to realize the defer@ddssets after giving consideration to the vabmadillowance.

The Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") has/fmusly examined the Company's 2009 and earlgarfd income tax returns. As a result,
2009 and earlier tax years are not open for furtixamination by the IRS. Due to the filing of anearded federal income tax return for the
2010 tax year, the IRS may, to a limited extengneixe the Company's 2010 income tax filings. Th®, & its discretion, may also choose to
examine the Company's 2011 through 2014 fiscal ipemme tax filings. The Company has various stateme tax examinations that are
currently in progress. Generally, the Company's028xid later tax years remain open for examinatjothb various state taxing authorities.

As of January 30, 2015, accruals for uraietiax benefits, interest expense related to irctames and potential income tax penalties
were $9.3 million, $1.0 million and $0.4 milliorespectively, for a total of $10.7 million. Thisabamount is reflected in noncurrent Other
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet.

As of January 31, 2014, accruals for uratetiax benefits, interest expense related to irctames and potential income tax penalties
were $19.6 million, $2.4 million and $0.4 milliorespectively, for a total of $22.4 million. Of thistal amount, $3.6 million and $18.8 milli
are reflected in current liabilities as Accrued exges and other and in noncurrent Other liabilitiespectively, in the consolidated balance
sheet.

The Company believes that it is reasonpbhsible that the reserve for uncertain tax passtimay be reduced by approximately
$3.0 million in the coming twelve months princigadls a result of the effective settlement of ouiditag issues. Also, as of January 30, 2015,
approximately $9.3 million of the uncertain tax piosis would impact the Company's effective incaierate if the Company were to
recognize the tax benefit for these positions.

The amounts associated with uncertain &itions included in income tax expense consista®following:

(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012

Income tax expense (bene $ (9,497) $ (3,919 $ (16,119
Income tax related interest expense (ben (1,445 59C 344
Income tax related penalty expense (ben 51 30 (200)
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A reconciliation of the uncertain income fmsitions from February 3, 2012 through Janu#&xy2815 is as follows:

(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012
Beginning balanc $ 19,58! $ 22,237 $ 42,01¢
Increases—tax positions taken in the curre

year 19¢ 3,48¢ 2,11¢
Increase—tax positions taken in prior yee 62 3,00( 1,14¢
Decrease—tax positions taken in prior yee (8,63¢) (60¢) (22,669
Statute expiration (1,22 (7,622) (16€)
Settlement: (74%) (90¢) (204)
Ending balanc: $ 9,34: $ 19,58 $§ 22,23

5. Current and long-term obligations

Current and long-term obligations consfdhe following:

January 30, January 31,

(In thousands) 2015 2014
Senior unsecured credit facilities, maturity Adrdl, 2018:

Term Facility $ 925,000 $ 1,000,00

Revolving Facility — —
41/ 8% Senior Notes due July 15, 2017 500,00( 500,00(
17/8% Senior Notes due April 15, 2018 (net of discafr$294 and

$383) 399,70t 399,61
31/4% Senior Notes due April 15, 2023 (net of disconfr$1,991

and $2,199 898,00 897,80:
Capital lease obligatior 5,87¢ 6,841
Tax increment financing due February 1, 2 11,99t 14,49t

2,740,58! 2,818,75.

Less: current portio (101,159 (75,96¢)
Long-term portion $ 2,639,42° $ 2,742,78

On April 11, 2013, the Company consummateeffinancing pursuant to which it terminated litsrt-existing senior secured credit
agreements, entered into a new five-year unseaueslit agreement, and issued senior notes dueli@ 20d 2023 as discussed in greater
detail below. The Company's senior unsecured cfadiiities (the "Facilities") consist of a seniamsecured term loan facility (the "Term
Facility"), which had an initial balance of $1.0libin, and an $850.0 million senior unsecured reia credit facility (the "Revolving
Facility"), which provides for the issuance of &t of credit up to $250.0 million. The Term Fagilhmortizes in quarterly installments of
$25.0 million, which commenced August 1, 2014. Tihal quarterly payment of the then-remaining bakawill be due at maturity on
April 11, 2018.

The Company capitalized $5.9 million of tissuance costs associated with the Facilitiesathortized balance of which is included in
long-term Other assets, net in the consolidatednzal sheets. The Company incurred a pretax |[d8$89 million for the write off of debt
issuance costs associated with the terminatiots gfrevious senior secured credit facilities, whgheflected in Other (income) expense in
consolidated statement of income for the year eddedary 31, 2014.
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Borrowings under the Facilities bear instig a rate equal to an applicable margin plutheaCompany's option, either (a) LIBOR or
(b) a base rate (which is usually equal to the pniate). The applicable margin for borrowings adasfuary 30, 2015 was 1.275% for LIBOR
borrowings and 0.275% for base-rate borrowings. Company must also pay a facility fee on any usetumused amounts of the Facilities,
as well as letter of credit fees. The applicablegims for borrowings, the facility fees and thedef credit fees under the Facilities are
subject to adjustment each quarter based on thep&uyts long-term senior unsecured debt ratings.\Wigighted average all-in interest rate
for borrowings under the Facilities was 1.46% (withgiving effect to the interest rate swaps disedsn Note 7) as of January 30, 2015.

The Facilities can be prepaid in wholeropart at any time. The Facilities contain certamenants which place limitations on the
incurrence of liens; change of business; mergessies of all or substantially all assets; and islidny indebtedness, among other limitations.
The Facilities also contain financial covenantsalihiequire the maintenance of a minimum fixed chammyverage ratio and a maximum
leverage ratio. As of January 30, 2015, the Compearyin compliance with all such covenants. ThéliEas also contain customary
affirmative covenants and events of default.

As of January 30, 2015, the Company haal tattstanding letters of credit of $43.6 millié28.5 million of which were under the
Revolving Facility, and borrowing availability undéne Revolving Facility was $821.5 million.

On July 12, 2012, the Company issued $500lbn aggregate principal amount of 4.125% semiotes due 2017 (the "2017 Senior
Notes") which mature on July 15, 2017. On April 2013, the Company issued $400.0 million aggrepateipal amount of 1.875% seni
notes due 2018 (the "2018 Senior Notes"), netsfalint of $0.5 million, which mature on April 19)IB; and issued $900.0 million
aggregate principal amount of 3.25% senior notes2023 (the "2023 Senior Notes"), net of discodr$izo4 million, which mature on
April 15, 2023. Collectively, the 2017 Senior Nqttee 2018 Senior Notes and the 2023 Senior Nategdse the "Senior Notes", each of
which were issued pursuant to an indenture as eddify supplemental indentures relating to eaciesef Senior Notes (as so supplemet
the "Senior Indenture"). The Company capitalize@.$nillion of debt issuance costs associated thi¢h2018 Senior Notes and the 2023
Senior Notes. Interest on the 2017 Senior Noteaysble in cash on January 15 and July 15 of eeahand commenced on January 15,
2013. Interest on the 2018 Senior Notes and 202®6Rotes is payable in cash on April 15 and Oetdlb of each year and commenced on
October 15, 2013.

The Company may redeem some or all ofétsi@ Notes at any time at redemption prices s fio the Senior Indenture. Upon the
occurrence of a change of control triggering evethich is defined in the Senior Indenture, eaclléobf the Senior Notes has the right to
require the Company to repurchase some or all@f older's Senior Notes at a purchase price in egaal to 101% of the principal amount
thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if &amyhe repurchase date.

The Senior Indenture contains covenantgifigy among other things, the ability of the Compdsubject to certain exceptions) to
consolidate, merge, sell or otherwise disposelafraubstantially all of the Company's assets; taedability of the Company and its
subsidiaries to incur or guarantee indebtednesgasgdy liens on any shares of voting stock ofificant subsidiaries.
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The Senior Indenture also provides for ¢vefii default which, if any of them occurs, woulgkmit or require the principal of and accri
interest on the Senior Notes to become or to blad=tdue and payable.

On July 15, 2012, the Company redeemed .$4%50lion aggregate principal amount of outstagdsenior subordinated notes due 2017
at a premium, resulting in a pretax loss of $29ilian which is reflected in Other (income) expensdhe consolidated statement of income
for the year ended February 1, 2013. The Compamnged the redemption price for the senior subordiohabtes due 2017 with proceeds fi
the issuance of the 2017 Senior Notes.

Scheduled debt maturities, including cdpéase obligations, for the Company's fiscal ydiated below are as follows (in thousands):
2015—$101,158; 2016—$%$101,379; 2017—$601,290; 201B625,892; 2019—%$1,020; thereafter—$912,131.

6. Assets and liabilities measured at fair value

The following table presents the Compaagsets and liabilities measured at fair value ecarring basis as of January 30, 2015,
aggregated by the level in the fair value hierangfithin which those measurements are classified.

Quoted Prices

in Active
Markets Significant
for Identical Other Significant
Assets and Observable Unobservable Balance at
Liabilities Inputs Inputs January 30,
(In thousands) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2015
Liabilities:
Long-term obligations(a $ 2,714,009 $ 17,87C $ — $ 2,731,96.
Derivative financial instruments(| — 1,17: — 1,17:
Deferred compensation( 22,33¢ — — 22,33t

€) Reflected at book value in the consolidatddra® sheet as Current portion of long-term obiigest of $101,158 and
Long-term obligations of $2,639,427.

(b) Reflected at fair value in the consolidated balastwet as Accrued expenses and other currenttiiedil

(c) Reflected at fair value in the consolidated balasteet as Accrued expenses and other currenttiebibf $2,070 and
noncurrent Other liabilities of $20,2€

The carrying amounts reflected in the ctidated balance sheets for cash, cash equivakmist-term investments, receivables and
payables approximate their respective fair vallibe. Company does not have any recurring fair valeasurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) as of January 305201

7. Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into certain finangiatiument positions, all of which are intendedéaused to reduce risk by hedging an
underlying economic exposure.
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Risk management objective of using derivatives

The Company is exposed to certain risksiragifrom both its business operations and econeomditions. The Company principally
manages its exposures to a wide variety of busimed®perational risks through management of its basiness activities. The Company
manages economic risks, including interest rag@jdity, and credit risk, primarily by managing thmount, sources, and duration of its debt
funding and the use of derivative financial instents. Specifically, the Company enters into deiedfinancial instruments to manage
exposures that arise from business activitiesrémtlt in the receipt or payment of future knowd ancertain cash amounts, the value of
which are determined primarily by interest ratdse Tompany's derivative financial instruments a@&duo manage differences in the amc
timing, and duration of the Company's known or expeé cash receipts and its known or expected cagments principally related to the
Company's borrowings.

In addition, the Company is exposed toaientisks arising from uncertainties of future netrkalues caused by the fluctuation in the
prices of commaodities. From time to time the Comyparay enter into derivative financial instrumerdgtotect against future price changes
related to these commaodity prices.

Cash flow hedges of interest rate risk

The Company's objectives in using interatd derivatives are to add stability to interegtesse and to manage its exposure to interest
rate changes. To accomplish this objective, the @&y primarily uses interest rate swaps as pats afiterest rate risk management strategy.
Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow heagase the receipt of variable-rate amounts frogoanterparty in exchange for the
Company making fixed-rate payments over the lifthefagreements without exchange of the underlyaigpnal amount.

The effective portion of changes in the failue of derivatives designated and that qualgfycash flow hedges is recorded in
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (@Bmred to as "OCI") and is subsequently recl@sbkinto earnings in the period that the
hedged forecasted transaction affects earningsn@thre years ended January 30, 2015, January034, 2nd February 1, 2013, such
derivatives were used to hedge the variable castsfhssociated with existing variable-rate debe iRleffective portion of the change in fair
value of the derivatives is recognized directlyarnings.

As of January 30, 2015, the Company hastést rate swaps with a combined notional valus8dE million that were designated as c
flow hedges of interest rate risk. Amounts reportedccumulated other comprehensive income (losisited to derivatives will be
reclassified to interest expense as interest paigya@a made on the Company's variable-rate debt.

During the year ended January 31, 2014Ctmpany entered into treasury locks with a combimational amount of $700 million that
were designated as cash flow hedges of interestiskt on the Company's forecasted issuance oftiemg debt. The issuance of the hedged
long-term debt occurred on April 11, 2013 in thenfcof senior notes due April 15, 2023, as furthiscdssed in Note 5, and the related
settlement of the treasury locks on that date teguh a loss of $13.2 million which was deferredXCl. The loss is being amortized as an
increase to interest expense over the period qmnelng to the debt's maturity as the Company ascou pays interest on the hedged long-
term debt. There was no ineffectiveness recogrizetthese designated treasury locks.

71




DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
7. Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

All of the amounts reflected in Accumulatettier comprehensive income (loss) in the cons@itlaalance sheets for the periods
presented are related to the cash flow hedgesibdedabove.

During the next 52-week period, the Compasiymates that approximately $2.5 million will teelassified as an increase to interest
expense for its interest rate swaps and treasukglo

Non-designated hedges of commodity risk

Derivatives not designated as hedges drspazulative and are used to manage the Compaxpisure to commodity price risk but do
not meet strict hedge accounting requirements. @égm the fair value of derivatives not designaiteldedging relationships are recorded
directly in earnings. As of January 30, 2015, tleenPany had no such non-designated hedges.

The table below presents the fair valuthefCompany's derivative financial instruments aff as their classification on the consolide
balance sheets as of January 30, 2015 and JanLa2(B4:

January 30, January 31,

(in thousands) 2015 2014
Derivatives Designated as Hedging Instrumi

Interest rate swaps classified as noncurrent Othe

liabilities $ — $ 4,10¢
Interest rate swaps classified as Accrued expen:
and other current liabilitie $ 1,17: $ =

The tables below present the fae-effect of the Company's derivative financiatimmments as reflected in the consolidated stattsod
comprehensive income and shareholders' equityppicable:

(in thousands) 2014 2013 2012
Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedging Relationsk
Loss related to effective portion of derivativeagnized in

OCl $ 87¢ $ 16,03t $ 9,62¢
Loss related to effective portion of derivativelaessified from

Accumulated OCI to Interest exper $ 513C $ 4,60/ $ 13,32
Gain related to ineffective portion of derivativecognized in

Other (income) expen: $ — % — $ (2,39)

Credit-risk-related contingent features

The Company has agreements with all dhterest rate swap counterparties that providettt@Company could be declared in default
on its derivative obligations if repayment of thederlying indebtedness is accelerated by the lethderto the Company's default on such
indebtedness.

As of January 30, 2015, the fair valuendérest rate swaps in a net liability position, ethincludes accrued interest but excludes any
adjustment for nonperformance risk related to tleegeements, was $1.2 million. If the Company ha@dthed any of these provisions at
January 30, 2015, it could have been required b fodl collateral or settle its obligations undkee agreements at an estimated termination
value of $1.2 million. As of January 30, 2015, @empany had not breached any of these provisiopssted any collateral related to these
agreements.
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Leases

As of January 30, 2015, the Company wasneitidd under operating lease agreements for mdsd oftail stores. Many of the
Company's stores are subject to build-to-suit gearents with landlords which typically carry a paim lease term of up to 15 years with
multiple renewal options. The Company also hasstsubject to shortéerm leases and many of these leases have renpti@is Certain ¢
the Company's leased stores have provisions famgmmnt rentals based upon a specified percentbdefined sales volume.

The land and buildings of the Company's IJsulton, Missouri and Indianola, Mississippi atehject to operating lease agreement:
the leased Ardmore, Oklahoma DC is subject to anfiing arrangement. The entities involved in th@eship structure underlying these
leases meet the accounting definition of a Varidtierest Entity ("VIE"). The Company is not thérpary beneficiary of these VIEs and,
accordingly, has not included these entities irdssolidated financial statements. Certain leasagain restrictive covenants that,
individually, are not material to the Company. Aslanuary 30, 2015, the Company is not aware ofraaterial violations of such covenants.

In January 2014, the Company sold 233 domations for cash and concurrent with the salagaction, the Company leased the
properties back for a period of 15 years. The @efign resulted in cash proceeds of approximat281% million and a deferred gain of
$67.2 million which is being recognized as a reftucof rent expense over the 15-year initial le@sm of the properties.

In January 1999, the Company sold its D&ated in Ardmore, Oklahoma for cash and concunrgtht the sale transaction, the Company
leased the property back for a period of 23 yeHus. transaction is accounted for as a financinggabbn rather than a sale as a result of,
among other things, the lessor's ability to putghaperty back to the Company under certain cir¢dantes. The property and equipment,
along with the related lease obligation associatigld this transaction are recorded in the constdiddoalance sheets. In August 2007, the
Company purchased a secured promissory note (tfteridre Note") from an unrelated third party witfaae value of $34.3 million at the
date of purchase which approximated the remairimanting obligation. The Ardmore Note representst desued by the third party entity
from which the Company leases the Ardmore DC ardefore the Company holds the debt instrument ipémtato its lease financing
obligation. Because a legal right of offset exigte, Company is accounting for the Ardmore Nota asduction of its outstanding financing
obligation in its consolidated balance sheets.

Future minimum payments as of January 8@5Zor operating leases are as follows:

(In thousands)

2015 $ 793,27:
2016 751,04«
2017 703,89:
2018 648,12(
2019 584,50¢
Thereaftel 3,145,66:
Total minimum payment $ 6,626,50
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Total minimum payments for capital leasesfJanuary 30, 2015 were $7.4 million, with aspré value of $5.9 million at January 30,
2015. The gross amount of property and equipmeatded under capital leases and financing obligatat both January 30, 2015 and
January 31, 2014, was $29.8 million. Accumulategréeiation on property and equipment under cafgtaes and financing obligations at
January 30, 2015 and January 31, 2014, was $10i6émand $8.7 million, respectively.

Rent expense under all operating leasas fsllows:

(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012
Minimum rentals(a $ 776,10 $ 674,84¢ $ 599,13(
Contingent rental 9,09¢ 12,05¢ 15,15(

$ 785,20 $ 686,900 $ 614,28

(&)  Excludes amortization of leasehold interests o8 $8illion, $11.9 million and $16.9 million included rent
expense for the years ended January 30, 2015,r§a3lia2014, and February 1, 2013, respectiv

Legal proceedings

On August 7, 2006, a lawsuit entitlégnthia Richter, et al. v. Dolgencorp, Inc., etwahs filed in the United States District Court fhet
Northern District of Alabama (Case No. 7-cv-01537-LSC) ("Richter") in which the plaintifflages that she and other current and former
Dollar General store managers were improperly fladsas exempt executive employees under thelldior Standards Act ("FLSA") and
seeks to recover overtime pay, liquidated damagesattorneys' fees and costs. On August 15, 2B8Richterplaintiff filed a motion in
which she asked the court to certify a nationwilds< of current and former store managers. The @agnppposed the plaintiff's motion. On
March 23, 2007, the court conditionally certifiedationwide class. On December 2, 2009, noticemaited to over 28,000 current or former
Dollar General store managers. Approximately 3,@8d/iduals opted into the lawsuit, approximate|l@d0 of whom have been dismissed
various reasons, including failure to cooperatdigcovery.

On April 2, 2012, the Company moved to dgfgethe class. The plaintiff's response to thattiion was filed on May 9, 2012.

On October 22, 2012, the court entered monandum opinion granting the Company's decertiicamotion. On December 19, 2012,
the court entered an order decertifying the mattel stating that a separate order would be entegatding the opt-in plaintiffs’ rights and
plaintiff Cynthia Richter's individual claims. Tatg, the court has not entered such an order.

The parties agreed to mediate the matber tlze court informally stayed the action pendimg iesults of the mediation. Mediations were
conducted in January, April and August 2013. Onugid 0, 2013, the parties reached a preliminargeagent, which was formalized and
submitted to the court for approval, to resolvertster for up to $8.5 million. On November 24, 20the court entered an order approving
the settlement and dismissing the action. The Comngdaemed the settlement probable and recordedssuohint as the estimated expense in
the second quarter of 2013. The Company paid appedgly $8.5 million in connection with the settlent of this matter in the fourth quar
of 2014.
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On September 8, 2014, a lawsuit entiBatly Ann Carpenter v. Dolgencorp, Inegas filed in the United States District Court fbet
Southern District of West Virginia (Case No. 2:325500) ("Carpenter"). Th€arpenterplaintiff seeks to proceed on a collective basis
under the FLSA on behalf of herself and other forara current store managers in the state of Wiegira who were allegedly improperly
classified as exempt executive employees undefits\. TheCarpenterplaintiff seeks to recover overtime pay, liquidatinages, and
attorneys' fees and costs.

The Company filed its answer to the commtlan September 30, 2014. On February 13, 2015dbe entered a scheduling order that,
among other things, requires tBarpenterplaintiff to file a motion for conditional certifation of her FLSA claims on or before April 24,
2015. The Company's response is due to be file#tb$8 after th€arpenterplaintiff files her motion for conditional certifédion.

On October 31, 2014, a lawsuit entitfRmhda Hood v. Dollar General Corporatiavas filed in the United States District Court fbet
Eastern District of Louisiana (Case No. 2:14-cv-I29TM-DEK) ("Hood"). TheHood plaintiff seeks to proceed on a nationwide colkexti
basis under the FLSA on behalf of herself and atirailarly situated store managers who were allggedproperly classified as exempt
executive employees under the FLSA. Hwmodplaintiff seeks to recover overtime pay, liquidatidnages, and attorneys' fees and costs
Hood plaintiff also asserts individual causes of acfionalleged violations of the Americans with Didélis Act, the Louisiana Human
Rights Act, the Family Medical Leave Act, and ngglit infliction of emotional distress and seeks dges for those claims including back
wages, compensatory damages, liquidated and/otiyeidamages, reinstatement and/or front pay,ésteand attorneys' fees and costs.

The Company filed its answer to the commtlan January 16, 2015. A status conference hassmeduled for April 9, 2015, and trial is
set for November 9, 2015.

The Company believes that its store marsager and have been properly classified as exempiogees under the FLSA and that the
CarpenterandHoodactions are not appropriate for collective actimatment. The Company has obtained summary judgimeoine,
although not all, of its pending individual or sieglaintiff store manager exemption cases in wiiti¢tas filed such a motion.

At this time, it is not possible to predighether theCarpenteror Hood matter ultimately will be permitted to proceed ealively, and nc
assurances can be given that the Company will beessful in its defense of either action on theitsier otherwise. Similarly, at this time t
Company cannot estimate either the size of anynpiateclass or the value of the claims assert@itlifer of these actions was to proceed. For
these reasons, the Company is unable to estimgtea@ntial loss or range of loss in either matteryever, if the Company is not successful
in its defense efforts, the resolution@dirpenteror Hood could have a material adverse effect on the Compawmysolidated financial
statements as a whole.

On April 9, 2012, the Company was servetthilawsuit filed in the United States Districtu€ofor the Eastern District of Virginia
entitledJonathan Marcum, et al. v. Dolgencorp. I§€ivil Action No. 3:12-cv-00108-JRS) ("Marcum") ahich the plaintiffs, one of whose
conditional offer of employment was rescinded,gdl¢hat certain of the Company's background chemgeglures violate the Fair Credit
Reporting Act ("FCRA"). Plaintiff Marcum also alleg defamation. According to the complaint and sgibsetly filed first and second
amended complaints, the plaintiffs seek to represqrutative class of applicants in connection whtkir FCRA claims. The Company
responded to the
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complaint and each of the amended complaints. Hietjffs' certification motion was due to be filed or before April 5, 2013; however,
plaintiffs asked the court to stay all deadlineght of the parties' ongoing settlement discussias more fully described below). On
November 12, 2013, the court entered an ordendjfthe stay but has not issued a new schedulirgy ardight of the parties' prelimina
agreement to resolve the matter.

The parties have engaged in formal settférdiscussions on three occasions, once in Jar@dry with a private mediator, and again in
March 2013 and July 2013 with a federal magistr@re February 18, 2014, the parties reached a grelimagreement to resolve the matter
for up to $4.08 million.

On October 16, 2014, the court enteredrdargoreliminarily approving the parties' proposettlement. On March 4, 2015, the court
entered an order approving the settlement and g&ng the matter with prejudice.

The Company's Employment Practices Ligbilisurance ("EPLI") carrier was placed on noti€¢éhis matter and participated in both
formal and informal settlement discussions. The Ig#llicy covering this matter has a $2 million sii§ured retention. Because the Comg
believed that it was likely to expend the balantisoself-insured retention in settlement of thiigiation or otherwise, it accrued $1.8 million
in the fourth quarter of 2012, an amount that imaterial to the Company's consolidated financetieshents as a whole.

In September 2011, the Chicago Regionak®ff the United States Equal Employment Oppotyu@ommission ("EEOC" or
"Commission") notified the Company of a cause fimdielated to the Company's criminal backgroundklpelicy. The cause finding alleges
that the Company's criminal background check polidyich excludes from employment individuals witrtain criminal convictions for
specified periods, has a disparate impact on Afriémerican candidates and employees in violatiomité VIl of the Civil Rights Act of
1964, as amended ("Title VII").

The Company and the EEOC engaged in theatstdy required conciliation process, and desfite Company's good faith efforts to
resolve the matter, the Commission notified the Gany on July 26, 2012 of its view that conciliatived failed.

On June 11, 2013, the EEOC filed a lawisuihe United States District Court for the North&strict of Illinois entitledEqual
Opportunity Commission v. Dolgencorp, LLC d/b/alBoGeneral(Case No. 1:13-cv-04307) in which the Commissidegas that the
Company's criminal background check policy hasspatiate impact on "Black Applicants" in violatiohTatle VIl and seeks to recover
monetary damages and injunctive relief on behaif ofass of "Black Applicants." The Company filéslanswer to the complaint on Augus
2013.

On January 29, 2014, the court entered@erpwhich, among other things, bifurcates theéssof liability and damages during
discovery and at trial. On September 3, 2014, thetanodified the scheduling order and orderedotirties to complete fact discovery rela
to liability by May 15, 2015. A status conferensescheduled for April 7, 2015.

On July 29, 2014, the court entered anrazdmpelling the Company to produce certain docusjénformation, and electronic data for
the period 2004 to present.

The Company believes that its criminal lgaokind check process is both lawful and necessamystfe environment for its employees
and customers and the protection of its assetslaaetholders'
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investments. The Company also does not believehisamatter is amenable to class or similar trestmHowever, at this time, it is not
possible to predict whether the action will ultigigtbe permitted to proceed as a class or in daif@shion or the size of any putative class.
Likewise, at this time, it is not possible to esimthe value of the claims asserted, and, therefloe Company cannot estimate the potential
exposure or range of potential loss. If the mattere to proceed successfully as a class or simd@éon or the Company is unsuccessful in its
defense efforts as to the merits of the actioopitid have a material adverse effect on the Conipaaynsolidated financial statements as a
whole.

On May 23, 2013, a lawsuit entitlddgan Varela v. Dolgen California and Does 1 throlgf{Case No. RIC 1306158) ("Varela") was
filed in the Superior Court of the State of Califar for the County of Riverside in which the pl#inalleges that he and other "key carriers"
were not provided with meal and rest periods ifation of California law and seeks to recover aleéginpaid wages, injunctive relief,
consequential damages, pre-judgment interesttstatpenalties and attorneys' fees and costs VHnelaplaintiff seeks to represent a
putative class of California "key carriers" ashede claims. Th&arelaplaintiff also asserts a claim for unfair businpsactices and seeks to
proceed under California's Private Attorney GenAdl("PAGA").

The Company removed the action to the driates District Court for the Central District@dilifornia (Case No. 5:13-cv-01172VAP-
SP) on July 1, 2013, and filed its answer to theamaint on July 1, 2013. On July 30, 2013, themilimoved to remand the action to state
court.

On September 13, 2013, notwithstandingdbmpany's opposition, the court granted plaintiffation and remanded the case. The
Company filed a petition for permission to appealte United States Court of Appeals for the Ni@tituit on September 23, 2013. On
February 27, 2015, the Ninth Circuit denied the @any's petition for permission to appeal. Becabhsglompany anticipated the denial, the
Company filed a petition for coordination of thain andVarelamatters on April 28, 2014.

Following the Company's petition for coaralion, theMain plaintiff agreed to dismiss her complaint withoutjpdice, and the parties
agreed that thearelaplaintiff would file an amended complaint to incluthe allegations asserted in the origiMalin complaint. On
November 4, 2014, pursuant to a stipulation grabtetheVarelacourt, theVarelaplaintiff filed an amended complaint to add Victotiee
Dinger Main as a named plaintiff and add the alliega set forth in the origindflain action that include claims for alleged inaccuratgyer
statements and failure to provide appropriate gnuermination. The Company filed its answer ®dmended complaint on December 23,
2014. A status conference is scheduled for AprjlZBL5.

On June 6, 2013, a lawsuit entitléidtoria Lee Dinger Main v. Dolgen California, LL&hd Does 1 through 10@ase No. 34-2013-
00146129) ("Main") was filed in the Superior Coafthe State of California for the County of Sacesmto. TheMain plaintiff alleges that sh
and other "key holders" were not provided with meead rest periods, accurate wage statements amdpagbe pay upon termination in
violation of California wage and hour laws and setkrecover alleged unpaid wages, declaratorgfrekstitution, statutory penalties and
attorneys' fees and costs. T¥ain plaintiff seeks to represent a putative class dif@aia "key holders" as to these claims. T¥ain plaintiff
also asserts a claim for unfair business practioglsseeks to proceed under the PAGA.

The Company removed this action to the éthBtates District Court for the Eastern Distric€alifornia (Case No. 2:13-cv-01637-
MCE-KJN) on August 7, 2013, and filed its answer todhmplaint on August 6, 2013. On August 29, 20i8,glaintiff moved to remand t
action to state court. The
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Company opposed the motion. On October 28, 20&3;dlrt granted plaintiff's motion and remandedcse. The Company filed a petition
for permission to appeal to the United States Coluftppeals for the Ninth Circuit on November 7130 The plaintiff filed its opposition
brief on November 15, 2013. The Ninth Circuit dehilke petition for permission to appeal on Apri] 2014.

In light of the parties' agreement to camate and consolidate tidain andVarelamatters, thévain plaintiff filed a request for dismiss
without prejudice with the court on December 9,£20@n December 10, 2014, the court entered an dideissing théMain matter without
prejudice.

On July 22, 2014, a lawsuit entitl®dcar Avila v. Dolgen California, LLC and Does tahgh 50(Case No. S-1500-CV-282549)
("Avila") was filed in the Superior Court of theg®¢ of California for the County of Kern. Theila plaintiff alleges that he and other "key
holders" were not provided with meal and rest igj@ccurate wage statements and appropriate paytepnination in violation of
California wage and hour laws and seeks to recaeged unpaid wages, declaratory relief, restitytpre- and post- judgment interest,
statutory penalties and attorneys' fees and cbkesAvila plaintiff seeks to represent a putative class dif@aia "key holders" as to these
claims. TheAvila plaintiff also asserts a claim for unfair businpsactices.

The parties have resolved this matter foamount that is not material to the Company's ateted financial statements as a whole.

On November 26, 2014, a lawsuit entikehdra Pleasant v. Dollar General Corporation, Detggorp, LLC and Does 1 through 50
(Case No. CIVDS1417709 Pleasant") was filed in the Superior Court of the StateGaflifornia for the County of San Bernardino. The
Pleasaniplaintiff alleges that she and other non-exemptleyges were not paid for all time worked, reimbdré@ necessary business
related expenses, provided rest and meal breattgpranided accurate wage statements in violatioBaiiffornia wage and hour laws. The
Pleasaniplaintiff seeks to recover alleged unpaid wagestjtrgion, interest, statutory penalties, unspedifiiamages, and attorneys' fees and
costs. ThePleasantplaintiff also asserts a claim for unfair businpssctices.

On December 31, 2014, the Company remdviedratter to the United States District Courttfo Central District of California (Case
No. 5:14cv-02645-JGB-KK). On January 14, 2015, the Compaonyed the court to compel arbitration and disrtissplaintiff's class
claims. ThePleasantplaintiff filed her response to the motion to cormaebditration on February 2, 2015. The Companydfits reply on
February 9, 2015.

On February 18, 2015, the court grantedbmpany's motion to compel arbitration and disedsthePleasantcomplaint with
prejudice.

After the Company filed its motion to corhpebitration, thePleasantplaintiff filed a separate complaint in the Supef@urt of the
State of California for the County of San BernaodstyledKendra Pleasant v. Dollar General Corporation, DefgCalifornia, LLC, and
Does 1 through 5(Case No. CIVDS1500651) Pleasant II") in which the plaintiff seeks to proceed undex BPAGA for various alleged
violations of California's Labor Code. Plaintifledes that she and other similarly situated nonvgteCalifornia store-level employees were
not paid for all time worked, provided meal and te®aks, reimbursed for necessary work relate@msgs, and provided with accurate wage
statements. Plaintiff seeks to recover unpaid wages and statutory penalties, interest, attosidges and costs. On March 12, 2015, the
Company filed a demurrer asking the court to ablteroceedings in thBleasant limatter pending an issuance of a final judgmentén t
Varelamatter.
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On February 20, 2015, a lawsuit entitletle Sullivan v. Dolgen California and Does 1 thgh 100(Case No. RG 15759417) Sullivan
") was filed in the Superior Court of the StateCaflifornia for the County of Alameda in which thiaiptiff alleges that she and other simila
situated Dollar General Market Store Managers éState of California were improperly classifiedeasmpt employees and were not
provided with meal and rest breaks and accuratewtgements in violation of California law. T&ellivanplaintiff also alleges that she and
other California store employees were not proviaiét printed wage statements in violation of Catifia law. Plaintiff seeks to recover
unpaid wages (including overtime pay), civil anatstory penalties, interest, injunctive relief,tiiegion, and attorneys' fees and costs. On
March 2, 2015, Sullivan served notice to the Ladomat Workforce Development agency that she intemgsdceed under the PAGA. The
Company's response to tBallivancomplaint is due to be filed with the court on efdre April 9, 2015.

The Company believes that its policies prattices comply with California law and that Warela, Pleasant || andSullivanactions are
not appropriate for class or similar treatment. Tmenpany intends to vigorously defend these actioowever, at this time, it is not possible
to predict whether thearela, Pleasant 1] or Sullivanaction ultimately will be permitted to proceed adass, and no assurances can be giver
that the Company will be successful in its defesfsthese actions on the merits or otherwise. Silgilat this time the Company cannot
estimate either the size of any potential clagh®walue of the claims asserted in Yfaela, Pleasant Il, or Sullivanaction. For these
reasons, the Company is unable to estimate anytmitioss or range of loss in these matters; harafthe Company is not successful in its
defense efforts, the resolution of any of thesmastcould have a material adverse effect on thmgamy's consolidated financial statements
as a whole.

On July 2, 2013, a lawsuit entitlRdchel Buttry and Jennifer Peters v. Dollar GeneZalp.(Case No. 3:13-cv-00652) ("Buttry") was
filed in the United States District Court for thaddle District of Tennessee. TRauttry plaintiffs seek to proceed on a nationwide collezti
basis under the FLSA and as a statewide class Umheressee law on behalf of non-exempt store erapbwho allegedly were not properly
paid for certain breaks. THauttry plaintiffs seek back wages (including overtime)uittive and declaratory relief, liquidated damages
compensatory and economic damages, "consequeanidl“incidental" damages, pre-judgment and pogfught interest, and attorneys' fees
and costs.

The Company filed its answer on August@,2 The plaintiffs filed their motion for conditial certification of their FLSA claims on
December 5, 2013, to which the Company responddekbruary 3, 2014. On April 4, 2014, the court ddnplaintiffs’ certification motion.
Plaintiffs filed a motion for reconsideration ortime alternative for permission to seek interlocytppeal in the United States Court of
Appeals for the Sixth Circuit on April 18, 2014.dbourt denied the plaintiffs’ motion on April 2014.

The plaintiffs subsequently petitioned 8ieth Circuit for a writ of mandamus and askeddrtrict court to stay all deadlines in the
underlying proceeding pending the Sixth Circuitlng on the writ. On October 23, 2014, the Unigdtes Court of Appeals for the Sixth
Circuit denied plaintiff's petition for writ of malamus.

The parties have reached a preliminaryeagest, which must be submitted to and approvedéyourt, to resolve this matter for an
amount not material to the Company's consolidatezhtial statements as a whole. At this time, aigioprobable, it is not certain that the
court will approve the settlement. However, evethé court does not approve the settlement oruit®nt terms, the
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Company does not expect the resolution ofBhtry matter to have a material adverse impact on thegaogis consolidated financial
statements as a whole.

On March 19, 2014, a lawsuit entitl2dnielle Harsey v. Dolgencorp, LL{Case No. 5:14-cv-00168-WTH-PRL) ("Harsey") wasdilin
the United States District Court for the Middle @it of Florida. TheHarseyplaintiff seeks to proceed on a nationwide collexthasis under
the FLSA and as a statewide class under the Fldfidanum Wage Act on behalf of all similarly sit@at non-exempt store employees who
allegedly were not paid for all hours worked. Huerseyplaintiff seeks back wages (including overtimejuidated damages, pre- and post-
judgment interest, injunctive relief, and attorridges and costs. The Company filed its answer agy ¥ 2014

On August 19, 2014, the court entered aadaling order, which among other things, requidesfiff to file motions for class
certification of her statewide claims and condiiboertification of her claims under the FLSA onbefore January 7, 2015. The plaintiff did
not seek conditional or class certification witspect to either her FLSA or state law claims.

The parties have reached a preliminaryeagest, which must be submitted to and approvedéyourt, to resolve this matter for an
amount not material to the Company's consolidatezhtial statements as a whole. At this time, aigioprobable, it is not certain that the
court will approve the settlement. However, eveté court does not approve the settlement onuit®nt terms, the Company does not ex
the resolution of thélarseymatter to have a material adverse impact on thep2ogis consolidated financial statements as a whole

On July 14, 2014, a lawsuit entitlegsslie Vincino v. Dolgencorp, LL{Lase No. 2014-CA-517) ("Vincino") was filed in tlércuit
Court, Eighth Judicial Circuit, for Levy County,dfida. TheVincinoplaintiff seeks to proceed on a nationwide collectiasis under the
FLSA on behalf of all similarly situated non-exenspire employees who allegedly were not paid fan@lrs worked. Th&incinoplaintiff
seeks back wages (including overtime), liquidatachdges, pre-judgment interest, and attorneysafiegsosts. Th¥incino plaintiff also
asserts individual claims for violation of the Rt Civil Rights Act for alleged discrimination ebon alleged unidentified disabilities. For
the claims asserted under the Florida Civil Rigkds theVincinoplaintiff seeks compensatory damages, back wagad, hay, punitive
damages, attorneys' fees and costs. On Augus014, the Company removed this matter to the Uriitiedes District Court for the Northern
District of Florida (Case No. 1:14-cv-142-RS-GRhe Company filed its answer on August 18, 2014.

On September 25, 2014, the court enteethaduling order which requires plaintiff to filerrmotion for conditional class certification
of her claims under the FLSA on or before FebrZ#y2015. On January 12, 2015, the plaintiff netlifthe court that she did not intend to
seek conditional certification of her FLSA clainfdaintiff's individual claims under the FLSA andFRdta Civil Rights Act remain pending.
The Company intends to vigorously defend this acéiod does not expect its ultimate resolution teelmaterial adverse impact on the
Company's consolidated financial statements asadewh

On September 8, 2014, a lawsuit entiflegce Riley v. Dolgencorp, LL{Case No. 2:14-cv-25505) Riley") was filed in the United
States District Court for the Southern DistricMdést Virginia. TheRileyplaintiff seeks to proceed on a collective basidaurthe FLSA on
behalf of all similarly situated non-exempt stomeptoyees in the state of West Virginia who allegeslere not paid for certain breaks. The
Riley plaintiff seeks back wages (including overtimejuldated damages, and attorneys' fees and costs.
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The Company filed its answer to the commtlan September 30, 2014. On February 13, 2015dbe entered a scheduling order that,
among other things, requires tRéey plaintiff to file a motion for conditional certifation of her FLSA claims on or before May 8, 20IBe
Company's response is due 30 days afteRtiley plaintiff files her motion for conditional certifation.

The Company believes that its wage and policies and practices comply with both the FLSA atate law and that tiileyaction is
not appropriate for collective or class treatm@iie Company intends to vigorously defend this agtimwever, at this time, it is not possible
to predict whether thRileyaction ultimately will be permitted to proceed ealively or as a class, and no assurances carvee thiat the
Company will be successful in its defense of tloisom on the merits or otherwise. Similarly, asttime the Company cannot estimate either
the size of any potential class or the value ofcfhens asserted in thRileyaction. For these reasons, the Company is unalastimate any
potential loss or range of loss in this matter; Beer, if the Company is not successful in its dedeafforts, the resolution of tiRéleyaction
could have a material adverse effect on the Compamysolidated financial statements as a whole.

On May 20, 2011, a lawsuit entitldnn-Dixie Stores, Inc., et al. v. Dolgencorp, Li@s filed in the United States District Court fbe
Southern District of Florida (Case No. 9:11-cv-804DMM) ("Winn-Dixie") in which the plaintiffs allege that the sadf food and other iten
in approximately 55 of the Company's stores, edathich allegedly is or was at some time co-located shopping center with one of
plaintiffs’ stores, violates restrictive covenathiat plaintiffs contend are binding on the occupanitthe shopping centers. Plaintiffs sought
damages and an injunction limiting the sale of faad other items in those stores. Although pldmtiid not make a demand for any specific
amount of damages, documents prepared and prothygaldintiffs during discovery suggested that piiéis would seek as much as
$47 million although the court limited their abyjlito prove such damages. The case was consolidéttedimilar cases against Big Lots and
Dollar Tree. The court issued an order on Augus®002 in which it (i) dismissed all claims for dages, (ii) dismissed claims for injunctive
relief for all but four stores, and (iii) directétte Company to report to the court on its compkawith restrictive covenants at the four stores
for which it did not dismiss the claims for injuht relief. The Company believes that compliancthwhe August 2012 ruling will have no
material adverse effect on the Company or its datested financial statements.

On August 28, 2012, theginn-Dixieplaintiffs filed a notice of appeal with the Unit&dates Court of Appeals for the Eleventh Circuit
(Docket No. 12-14527-B). Oral argument was condlicte January 16, 2014, and the appellate courereddts decision on March 5, 2014,
affirming in part and reversing in part the trialuct's decision. Specifically, the appellate caiffirmed the trial court's dismissal of plaintiffs'
claim for monetary damages but reversed the taattts decision denying injunctive relief as tatién additional stores and remanded for
further proceedings. On March 26, 2014, the pleismoved the appellate court for rehearing. Thatiom was denied on May 2, 2014.
Subsequently, plaintiff filed a motion with thealricourt on remand to dismiss stores not locatddadrida from the case without prejudice,
which the court denied on September 29, 2014. Eyrthe parties have, as directed by the trialtcgubmitted briefs in an effort to clarify 1
issues to be resolved on remand. On November 119, 20e court issued an order (i) permitting theipa to conduct additional discovery
regarding the scope of the restrictive covenanissat in light of the Eleventh Circuit's decisiand (ii) scheduling a bench trial to resolve
any outstanding issues on the court's April 20 52dcket. On February 10, 2015, Winn-Dixie filethation for summary judgment,
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
8. Commitments and contingencies (Continued)

and the Company filed a motion for summary judgmegtrding the stores located outside of Floride Fourt has not yet ruled on either
motion.

At this time, the Company is unable to jeedhether the trial court will enter an injunatias to any of the additional stores at issue;
however, the Company does not believe that suéhjanction, even if entered as to each remainindjtamhal store at issue, would have a
material adverse effect on the Company or its dafested financial statements as a whole.

The Company also is unable to predict wéethe plaintiffs will seek further appellate rewief the trial court's dismissal of plaintiffs'
claim for damages. If plaintiffs were to obtainther appellate review, and the Company were unssbaidn its defense of such appeal, the
outcome could have a material adverse effect o€timpany's consolidated financial statements asalew

From time to time, the Company is a pastydrious other legal actions involving claims detal to the conduct of its business,
including actions by employees, consumers, sugplgvernment agencies, or others through privetterss, class actions, administrative
proceedings, regulatory actions or other litigatioeluding without limitation under federal anét& employment laws and wage and hour
laws. The Company believes, based upon informatimrently available, that such other litigation atams, both individually and in the
aggregate, will be resolved without a material aseeffect on the Company's financial statemengswalsole. However, litigation involves an
element of uncertainty. Future developments coalgse these actions or claims to have a materigraeheffect on the Company's results of
operations, cash flows, or financial position. tidiion, certain of these lawsuits, if decided adety to the Company or settled by the
Company, may result in liability material to ther@eany's financial position or may negatively affeperating results if changes to the
Company's business operation are required.

9. Benefit plans

The Dollar General Corporation 401(k) Sggimand Retirement Plan, which became effectiveaondry 1, 1998, is a safe harbor defined
contribution plan and is subject to the Employe&rBement and Income Security Act ("ERISA").

A participant's right to claim a distriborti of his or her account balance is dependent@plém, ERISA guidelines and Internal Revenue
Service regulations. All active participants arkyfuested in all contributions to the 401(k) pldduring 2014, 2013 and 2012, the Company
expensed approximately $13.7 million, $13.0 millaomd $11.9 million, respectively, for matching adnitions.

The Company also has a nonqualified suppfeat retirement plan ("SERP") and compensatioerdaifplan ("CDP"), known as the
Dollar General Corporation CDP/SERP Plan, for aggjroup of management and other key employeesCbmpany incurred
compensation expense for these plans of approxiyr@e8 million, $1.2 million and $1.4 million in0A4, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The CDP/SERP Plan assets are investecdtouats selected by the Company's Compensation Civeenair its delegate. These
investments are classified as trading securitiélsth@ associated deferred compensation liabilitgfilected in the consolidated balance sheets
as further discussed in Note 6.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
10. Share-based payments

The Company accounts for share-based pagnreaccordance with applicable accounting stadsjamder which the fair value of each
award is separately estimated and amortized intgpemsation expense over the service period. Thedaie of the Company's stock option
grants are estimated on the grant date using hekBbcholes-Merton valuation model. Forfeituresemtimated at the time of valuation and
reduce expense ratably over the vesting period.apipéication of this valuation model involves asgtions that are judgmental and highly
sensitive in the determination of compensation expe

On July 6, 2007, the Company's Board oéEtinrs adopted the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan for Rmployees, which plan was
subsequently amended (as so amended, the "Pldre)Plan allows the granting of stock options, stygfreciation rights, and other stock-
based awards or dividend equivalent rights to kapleyees, directors, consultants or other persamip a service relationship with the
Company, its subsidiaries and certain of its affds. The number of shares of Company common siaitiorized for grant under the Plan is
31,142,858. As of January 30, 2015, 19,025,39&ici shares are available for future grants.

Since May 2011, most of share-based awastded by the Company have been in the form oksiptions, restricted stock units and
performance share units. The Company has alsoegtanperformance-based restricted stock awardstiedun greater detail below. Stock
options granted to employees and board membersajyneest ratably on an annual basis over a faaryand thregear period, respectivel
Restricted stock units generally vest ratably avéiree-year period. Performance share units géneest ratably over a three-year period,
provided that certain minimum performance critaria met in the year of grant. With limited excepsipthe performance share unit and
restricted stock unit awards are automatically ested into shares of common stock on the vestitg. da

From July 2007 through May 2011, a sigaifitmajority of the Company's share-based awards steck options that vest solely upon
the continued employment of the recipient ("MSA €i@ptions") and options that vest upon the achieverof predetermined annual or
cumulative financial-based targets ("MSA Performa@ptions”). MSA Time Options and MSA Performang#i@ns generally vest ratably
on an annual basis over a period of approximatedyfears, with limited exceptions.

Both the MSA Time Options and the MSA Parfance Options are subject to various provisioh$osth in a management stockholder's
agreement ("MSA") entered into with each optiondeol The MSA contains certain put and call rightd ather provisions pertaining to both
the option holder and the Company which may, itadeiscenarios, affect the holder's ability to seliealize market value for these
instruments and any shares acquired thereundetingeaxf the MSA Performance Options is continggmbm meeting specified annual or
cumulative financial targets. The MSA Time Opti@ml MSA Performance Options have a contractual tdrbh® years and an exercise price
equal to the fair value of the underlying commarckton the date of grant.
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10. Share-based payments (Continued)

The weighted average for key assumptiors urs determining the fair value of all stock opsiagranted in the years ended January 30,
2015, January 31, 2014, and February 1, 2013, andnanary of the methodology applied to develop eamsumption, are as follows:

January 30, January 31, February 1,
2015 2014 2013
Expected dividend yiel 0% 0% 0%
Expected stock price volatilil 25.€% 26.2% 26.8%
Weighted average risk-free intere:
rate 1.S% 1.2% 1.5%
Expected term of options (yea 6.3 6.3 6.3

Expected dividend yield—This is an estimaftéhe expected dividend yield on the CompanysistAn increase in the dividend yield
will decrease compensation expense.

Expected stock price volatility—This is @asure of the amount by which the price of the Gomgjs common stock has fluctuated or is
expected to fluctuate. Since November 2011, theebel volatilities for awards have been based eristorical volatility of the Company's
publicly traded common stock. An increase in thpeeted volatility will increase compensation exgens

Weighted average risk-free interest rateisThthe U.S. Treasury rate for the week of trenghaving a term approximating the
expected life of the option. An increase in th&-fige interest rate will increase compensatioreesg.

Expected term of options—This is the pewdtime over which the options granted are expktdteremain outstanding. The Company
has estimated the expected term as the mid-poiweka the vesting date and the contractual tertheobption. An increase in the expected
term will increase compensation expense.

A summary of the Company's stock optionivégt exclusive of options subject to an MSA, dgithe year ended January 30, 2015 is as
follows:

Remaining

Options Average Contractual Intrinsic
(Intrinsic value amounts reflected in thousands Issued Exercise Price Term in Years Value
Balance, January 31, 20 1,840,54. $ 45.2¢
Grantec 898,81 58.0¢
Exercisec (159,209 44.5;
Cancelec (181,03() 50.5¢
Balance, January 30, 20 2,399,12. $ 49.6¢ 8.1 $ 41,66:
Exercisable at January 30, 2C 633,84: $ 42.4: 7. $ 15,61

The weighted average grant date fair vafugonMSA options was $17.26, $13.86 and $13.54 durin42@013 and 2012, respective
The intrinsic value of non-MSA options exercisedidg 2014, 2013, and 2012 was $2.5 million, $0.8iom and $0.3 million, respectively.

84




DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

10. Share-based payments (Continued)

The number of performance share unit awaatdsed is based upon the Company's annual filgresiformance in the year of grant as
specified in the award agreement. A summary ofguardnce share unit award activity during the yeaee January 30, 2015 is as follows:

Units Intrinsic
(Intrinsic value amounts reflected in thousands Issued Value
Balance, January 31, 20 159,41
Grantec 143,04¢
Converted to common stoi (68,187
Cancelec (21,697
Balance, January 30, 20 212,58. $ 14,25¢

The weighted average grant date fair vafygerformance share units granted was $57.91 1%48hd $45.25 during 2014, 2013, and
2012, respectively.

A summary of restricted stock unit awarthdty during the year ended January 30, 2015 ioHsws:

Units Intrinsic
(Intrinsic value amounts reflected in thousands Issued Value
Balance, January 31, 20 616,52°
Grantec 420,03!
Converted to common stor (230,90)
Cancelec (90,797
Balance, January 30, 20 714,85¢ $ 47,93¢

The weighted average grant date fair vafuestricted stock units granted was $57.87, $18&rd $45.33 during 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

A summary of MSA Time Options activity dugithe year ended January 30, 2015 is as follows:

Average Remaining

Options Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
(Intrinsic value amounts reflected in thousands Issued Price Term in Years Value
Balance, January 31, 20 464,56: $ 18.1f
Grantec — —
Exercisec (154,86¢) 14.9¢
Cancelec (10,857) 20.3¢
Balance, January 30, 20 298,84: $ 19.7¢ 4.7 $ 14,14.
Exercisable at January 30, 2C 286,84 $ 19.3( 4.€ $ 13,70(

The intrinsic value of MSA Time Options esised during 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $6.8 millg89.4 million and $117.3 million,
respectively.

85




DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
10. Share-based payments (Continued)

A summary of MSA Performance Options atyiduring the year ended January 30, 2015 is éswel

Average Remaining

Options Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
(Intrinsic value amounts reflected in thousands Issued Price Term in Years Value
Balance, January 31, 20 376,30¢ $ 19.6¢
Grantec — —
Exercisec (118,28) 17.1¢
Cancelec (10,157 21.47
Balance, January 30, 20 247,87, $ 20.7¢ 4. $ 11,46¢
Exercisable at January 30, 2C 246,25, $ 20.7¢ 4. $ 11,40¢

The intrinsic value of MSA Performance @ps exercised during 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $#i6m$39.1 million and
$106.4 million, respectively.

In March 2012, the Company issued a perdmeebased award of 326,037 shares of restricted stoitk Chairman and Chief Executi
Officer. This restricted stock award had a faineabn the grant date of $45.25 per share, withtatiesf the award scheduled to vest in 2014
and the remainder in 2015, contingent upon, amadingrdhings, meeting certain specified earningsspere targets in those years. The target
for 2014 was met and the applicable shares vested.

At January 30, 2015, the total unrecognizetipensation cost related to nonvested stock-tmsards was $55.2 million with an
expected weighted average expense recognitioncoefid.4 years.

The fair value method of accounting forrehlbased awards resulted in share-based compensapense (a component of SG&A
expenses) and a corresponding reduction in netrindzefore income taxes as follows:

Stock Performance Restricted Restricted

(In thousands) Options Share Units Stock Units Stock Total
Year ended January 30, 2C

Pre-tax $ 853 $ 5461 $ 1596t $ 7,37¢ $ 37,33t

Net of tax $ 520¢ $ 3332 $ 9,74z $ 4,500 $ 22,78(
Year ended January 31, 2C

Pre-tax $ 7632 % 3,44t $ 9,87¢ $ — $ 20,96

Net of tax $ 4.64¢ $ 2,10C $ 6,01¢ $ — $ 12,76
Year ended February 1, 20

Pre-tax $ 14,07¢ $ 4,08z $ 3,50 $ — $ 21,66¢

Net of tax $ 857t $ 2481 $ 2,13t $ — $ 13,20(
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11. Segment reporting

The Company manages its business on the ddasne operating segment. See Note 1 for a basé€ription of the Company's business.
As of January 30, 2015, all of the Company's opanatwere located within the United States withakeeption of a Hong Kong subsidiary,
and a liaison office in India, which collectivelyeanot material to the consolidated financial stegats. The following net sales data is
presented in accordance with accounting standatdted to disclosures about segments of an erderpri

(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012
Classes of similar product
Consumable $ 14,321,08 $ 13,161,82 $ 11,844,84
Seasona 2,344,99: 2,259,511 2,172,39
Home product: 1,205,37: 1,115,64 1,061,57.
Apparel 1,038,14: 967,17¢ 943,31(
Net sales $ 18,909,58 $ 17,504,16 $ 16,022,12

12. Common stock transactions

On August 29, 2012, the Company's BoarBitgctors authorized a common stock repurchaseranogwhich was increased on
March 19, 2013 and again on December 4, 2013. Asuafiary 30, 2015, a total of $2.0 billion had baethorized under the program and
$223.4 million remained available for repurchadee Thare repurchase program was further increasdthoch 10, 2015 as discussed in
Note 13. The repurchase authorization has no digrirdate and allows repurchases from time to imt&e open market or in private
negotiated transactions. The timing and numbehafes purchased depends on a variety of factarh,asiprice, market conditions,
compliance with the covenants and restrictions unde debt agreements and other factors. Repurshasker the program may be funded
from available cash or borrowings under the Comfzacnedit facilities discussed in further detaiNote 5.

During the years ended January 30, 20X&arg 31, 2014, and February 1, 2013, the Compapmyrchased approximately 14.1 million
shares of its common stock at a total cost of $8@fllion, approximately 11.0 million shares ao#al cost of $620.1 million, and
approximately 14.4 million shares of its commorcktat a total cost of $671.4 million, respectivgdyrsuant to its common stock repurchase
programs.

13. Subsequent events

On March 10, 2015, the Company's Boardioéd@ors authorized a $1.0 billion increase in¢benmon stock repurchase program
discussed in Note 12, increasing the total remgistmare repurchase authorization to approximately Billion. The repurchase authorization
has no expiration date and has terms and conditionsistent with those discussed in Note 12.

Also on March 10, 2015, the Company's Badrirectors approved a quarterly cash dividendhareholders. A cash dividend of $0.22
per share will be paid on April 22, 2015 to shatdars of record on April 8, 2015. The payment dtife cash dividends is subject to the
Board's discretion and will depend upon, amongrathiags, the Company's results of operations, caghirements, financial condition,
contractual restrictions and other factors thatBbard may deem relevant.

87




DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
14. Quarterly financial data (unaudited)

The following is selected unaudited qudyténancial data for the fiscal years ended Japar, 2015 and January 31, 2014. Each
quarterly period listed below was a ®@ek accounting period. The sum of the four quarfi@r any given year may not equal annual totaé
to rounding.

First Second Third Fourth
(In thousands) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2014:
Net sales $ 4,522,08 $ 4,724,003 $ 4,724,40° $ 4,939,05
Gross profit 1,357,74 1,455,57. 1,423,74 1,565,43'
Operating profit 379,70¢ 428,52t 394,14: 566,71t
Net income 222,39¢ 251,26( 236,31t 355,37:
Basic earnings per she 0.7z 0.8t 0.7¢ 1.17
Diluted earnings per sha 0.7z 0.8: 0.7¢ 1.17
First Second Third Fourth
(In thousands) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2013:
Net sales $ 4,233,733 $ 4,394,65. $ 4,381,83 $ 4,493,94!
Gross profit 1,295,14 1,377,29 1,328,49. 1,434,81
Operating profit 395,00t 412,82: 390,24: 538,12:
Net income 220,08: 245,47! 237,38! 322,17
Basic earnings per she 0.67 0.7¢ 0.7¢ 1.01
Diluted earnings per sha 0.67 0.7t 0.7¢ 1.01

In the third and fourth quarters of 20lh& Company incurred expenses related to an attenaptpuisition of $8.2 million ($7.4 million
net of tax, or $0.02 per diluted share) and $6 lliani($1.3 million net of tax, or $0.00 per dilatshare), respectively, which were recogni
as Selling, general and administrative expenses.

As discussed in Note 5, in the first quaofe2013, the Company terminated its senior setaredit facilities, resulting in a pretax loss of
$18.9 million ($11.5 million net of tax, or $0.0émpdiluted share) which was recognized as Othen(ie) expense.

As discussed in Note 8, in the second gquaft2013, the Company recorded expenses assbevittean agreement to settle a legal
matter, resulting in a pretax loss of $8.5 milli&.2 million net of tax, or $0.02 per diluted siawhich was recognized as Selling, general
and administrative expense.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUN TANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
Not applicable.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(@) Disclosure Controls and ProceduresUnder the supervision and with the participatdd our management, including our princi
executive officer and principal financial officeve conducted an evaluation of our disclosure ctsyand procedures, as such term is defined
under Rule 13a-15(e) or 15d-15(e) promulgated utideBecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendhed'Exchange Act"). Based on this
evaluation, our principal executive officer and puncipal financial officer concluded that our dissure controls and procedures were
effective as of the end of the period covered ligy itbport.

(b) Management's Annual Report on Irdéontrol Over Financial Reporting. Our management prepared and is responsibtador
consolidated financial statements and all relaiteahttial information contained in this report. Thesponsibility includes establishing and
maintaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) or 15dfLEader the Exchange Act. Our internal
control over financial reporting is designed tovpde reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilifinancial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes ooatance with United States generally accepteduatow principles.

To comply with the requirements of Sect@d of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, managemesigded and implemented a structured
and comprehensive assessment process to evalaafdbtiveness of its internal control over finahceporting. Such assessment was based
on criteria established imternal Control—Integrated Framewo(R013 Framework) issued by the Committee of Spangddrganizations ¢
the Treadway Commission. Because of its inheremtdtions, a system of internal control over finahceporting can provide only reasonz
assurance and may not prevent or detect misstatemddanagement regularly monitors our internal oardgver financial reporting, and
actions are taken to correct any deficiencies e #ine identified. Based on its assessment, maregdmas concluded that our internal cor
over financial reporting is effective as of Janua@y 2015.

Ernst & Young LLP, the independent registipublic accounting firm that audited our consatiéd financial statements, has issued an
attestation report on management's assessment oftetnal control over financial reporting. Sudteatation report is contained below.
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(c) Attestation Report of Independergi&ered Public Accounting Firm.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Dollar General Corporation

We have audited Dollar General Corpora#ind subsidiaries' internal control over financegarting as of January 30, 2015, based on
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrakedmework issued by the Committee of Sponsorirga@izations of the Treadway
Commission (2013 framework) (the COSO criteria)ll&xdGeneral Corporation and subsidiaries' managemeaesponsible for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reportjrand for its assessment of the effectivenesstefnal control over financial reporting
included in the accompanying Management's AnnupbRen Internal Control Over Financial Reporti@ur responsibility is to express an
opinion on the company's internal control over fiicial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance withdtandards of the Public Company Accounting Ogiet8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigéfénternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe@is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etasting and evaluating the design and operatifegtéfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre® considered necessary in the circumstancefeliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over finanaigborting is a process designed to provide redderassurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal control over fioa reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionshef assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdegtessary to permit preparation of financakestents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeipnrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (Bjige reasonable assurance regarding preventiomely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the compangsets that could have a material effect on theniizd statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not prevendetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future perioassabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the poligeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Dollar General Corporatimmd subsidiaries maintained, in all material respexffective internal control over financial
reporting as of January 30, 2015, based on the CE&Dia.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstndards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatdoard (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Dollar General Gatjpm and subsidiaries as of January 30, 2015Jandary 31, 2014, and the related
consolidated statements of income, comprehenso@ie, shareholders' equity, and cash flows for eétie three years in the period ended
January 30, 2015 of Dollar General Corporation sutgsidiaries and our report dated March 20, 20pBessed an unqualified opinion
thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Nashville, Tennesse
March 20, 201t
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(d) Changes in Internal Control Over &irtial Reporting. There have been no changes during the quartideJanuary 30, 2015 in
our internal control over financial reporting (asfided in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f)) that haveemally affected, or are reasonably likely
to materially affect, our internal control overdincial reporting.

ITEM9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPO RATE GOVERNANCE

(&) Information Regarding Directors aBdecutive Officers. The information required by this Item 10 regagdour directors and
director nominees is contained under the capti¥visd' are the nominees this year," "What are the ¢paeids of this year's nominees," "Are
there any familial relationships between any ofibeinees," "How are directors identified and noawénl,” and "What particular experience,
qualifications, attributes or skills led the BoaftDirectors to conclude that each nominee shoaitdesas a director of Dollar General," all
under the heading "Proposal 1: Election of Diretam our definitive Proxy Statement to be filed &ur Annual Meeting of Shareholders to
be held on May 27, 2015 (the "2015 Proxy Statemewtiich information under such captions is incagted herein by reference.
Information required by this Item 10 regarding eMecutive officers is contained in Part | of thi@ 10-K under the caption "Executive
Officers of the Registrant," which information umdeich caption is incorporated herein by reference.

(b) Compliance with Section 16(a) of Ehehange Act. Information required by this Item 10 regardoampliance with Section 16|
of the Exchange Act is contained under the captBsttion 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Coampie” in the 2015 Proxy Statement,
which information under such caption is incorpodaterein by reference.

(c) Code of Business Conduct and EthicgVe have adopted a Code of Business ConducEtnics that applies to all of our
employees, officers and Board members. This Cogested on the Investor Information section of loternet website at
www.dollargeneral.com. If we choose to no longestpuch Code, we will provide a free copy to angspe upon written request to Dollar
General Corporation, c/o Investor Relations Depanttn100 Mission Ridge, Goodlettsville, TN 37072e Wtend to provide any required
disclosure of an amendment to or waiver from thdeCaf Business Conduct and Ethics that appliesitgooncipal executive officer,
principal financial officer, principal accountindficer or controller, or persons performing simifanctions, on our Internet website located at
www.dollargeneral.com promptly following the amersimor waiver. We may elect to disclose any suchraiment or waiver in a report on
Form 8K filed with the SEC either in addition to or ireli of the website disclosure. The information cioretd on or connected to our Inter
website is not incorporated by reference into Basm 10-K and should not be considered part ofdhisny other report that we file with or
furnish to the SEC.

(d) Procedures for Shareholders to NaterDirectors. There have been no material changes to theguoes by which security
holders may recommend nominees to the registr@o#isd of Directors.

(e) Audit Committee Information.Information required by this Item 10 regardmg audit committee and our audit committee
financial experts is contained under the capti@srporate GovernanceBees the Board have standing Audit, Compensatidni\aminating
Committees" and "—Does Dollar General have an auaditmittee financial expert serving on its Auditn@uaittee” in the 2015 Proxy
Statement, which information under such captionisderporated herein by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item 1gaeding director and executive officer compensatiba Compensation Committee Report,
risks arising from our compensation policies anacpces for employees, and compensation committeeldcks and insider participation is
contained under the captions "Director Compensatod "Executive Compensation” in the 2015 Proxat&hent, which information under
such captions is incorporated herein by reference.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIA L OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED

STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

(@) Equity Compensation Plan InformationThe following table sets forth information albgecurities authorized for issuance under

our compensation plans (including individual congagion arrangements) as of January 30, 2015:

Number of securities
to be issued upon
exercise of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights

Number of
securities remaining
available for future

issuance under
equity compensation
plans (excluding
securities reflected
in column (a))

Plan category (a) (b) (c)

Equity compensation plans appro»
by security holders(1

Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holde — —

Total(1) 3,873,28 $ 44.2;

3,873,281 $ 44.2: 19,025,39

19,025,39

(1) Column (a) consists of shares of common stock dsugpon exercise of outstanding options and ugstivg and
payment of share units under the Amended and Res207 Stock Incentive Plan. Share units areeskfitir shares of
common stock on a one-for-one basis and have noisgerice. Accordingly, those units have beerused for
purposes of computing the weighted-average exepeise in column (b). Column (c) consists of sharserved for
issuance pursuant to the Amended and Restated¥00K Incentive Plan, whether in the form of staelstricted stock,
share units, or other sh-based awards or upon the exercise of an optioiglat.

(b) Other Information. The information required by this Item 12 regagdsecurity ownership of certain beneficial ownansl our

management is contained under the caption "SedDxitgership” in the 2015 Proxy Statement, which rimfation under such caption is
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANS ACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item 18aeding certain relationships and related transastis contained under the caption

"Transactions with Management and Others" in thE5ZRroxy Statement, which information under sugdtioa is incorporated herein by
reference.

The information required by this Item 18aeding director independence is contained undec#ption "Director Independence” in the
2015 Proxy Statement, which information under stagbtion is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item 1gaeding fees we paid to our principal accountautthe pre-approval policies and procedures
established by the Audit Committee of our Boardokctors is contained under the caption "Fees Rafliditors" in the 2015 Proxy
Statement, which information under such captiandsrporated herein by reference.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDU LES
(a) Report of Independent Registered Public Accourféing

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Consolidated Statements of Income

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(b) All schedules for which provision is made lie tapplicable accounting regulations of the SEhateequired under the related
instructions, are inapplicable or the informatisnricluded in the Consolidated Financial Statemantk therefore, have been
omitted.

(c) Exhibits: See Exhibit Index immediately followjthe signature pages hereto, which Exhibit Indeéréorporated by
reference as if fully set forth herein.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, rbgistrant has duly caused this report t
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduaty authorized.

DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION

Date: March 20, 2015 By: /s/ RICHARD W. DREILING

Richard W. Dreiling,
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic

We, the undersigned directors and officdithe registrant, hereby severally constitute RidhW. Dreiling and David M. Tehle, and e
of them singly, our true and lawful attorneys witili power to them and each of them to sign forarg] in our names in the capacities
indicated below, any and all amendments to thisushReport on Form 10-K filed with the Securitiegld&Exchange Commission.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beeresidgrelow by the following persons on bel
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#ies indicated.

Name Title Date

/sl RICHARD W. DREILING

Chairman & Chief Executive Officer March 20

RICHARD W. DREILING (Principal Executive Officer) 201t
/s DAVID M. TEHLE Executive Vice President & Chief

X X : = : . March 20

Financial Officer (Principal Financial 501E

DAVID M. TEHLE and Accounting Officer N

/sl WARREN F. BRYANT . March 20

Director 201E

WARREN F. BRYANT N

/sl MICHAEL M. CALBERT _ March 20

Director 201E

MICHAEL M. CALBERT N

/s/ SANDRA B. COCHRAN . March 20

Director 201E

SANDRA B. COCHRAN N

/s/ PATRICIA FILI-KRUSHEL _ March 20

Director 201E

PATRICIA FILI-KRUSHEL N
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Name Title Date

/sl PAULA A. PRICE _ March 20

Director 201E

PAULA A. PRICE N

/s WILLIAM C. RHODES, Il _ March 20

Director 201E

WILLIAM C. RHODES, lll N

/sl DAVID B. RICKARD Director

March 20



DAVID B. RICKARD 201t
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3.1

4.1

4.4

4.¢€

10.1

10.Z

EXHIBIT INDEX

Amended and Restated Charter of Dollar Genergb@ation (complete copy as
amended for SEC filing purposes only) (incorpordigaeference to Exhibit 3.1 to
Dollar General Corporation's Quarterly Report omnrd0-Q for the quarter ended
May 3, 2013, filed with the SEC on June 4, 201 (fio. 00-11421))

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Dollar General Quaitfan (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3.2 to Dollar General Corporation's Guntr Report on Form 8-K dated
November 18, 2009, filed with the SEC on Noveml&r2D09 (file no. 00-11421))

Form of Stock Certificate for Common Stock (incaiqted by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to
Dollar General Corporation's Registration StatenoenEorm ‘-1 (file no. 33:-161464))

Form of 4.125% Senior Notes due 2017 (includedxhiliit 4.4)

Indenture, dated as of July 12, 2012, between D@&neral Corporation, as issuer, and
U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incomfed by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to
Dollar General Corporation's Current Report on F8ri dated July 12, 2012, filed with
the SEC on July 17, 2012 (file no. (-11421))

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July2022, among Dollar General
Corporation, as issuer, the subsidiary guarantensed therein, and U.S. Bank National
Association, as trustee (incorporated by refereéadexhibit 4.2 to Dollar General
Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated 12ly2012, filed with the SEC on
July 17, 2012 (file no. 0(-11421))

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April2d13, between Dollar General
Corporation, as issuer, and U.S. Bank National gission, as trustee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Dollar General Corpiangis Current Report on Form 8-K
dated April 8, 2013 and filed with the SEC on Agdrll, 2013 (file no. 0(-11421))

Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April2D1.3, between Dollar General
Corporation, as issuer, and U.S. Bank National gission, as trustee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Dollar General Corpiangis Current Report on Form 8-K
dated April 8, 2013 and filed with the SEC on Agdrll, 2013 (file no. 0(-11421))

Credit Agreement, dated as of April 11, 2013, amboflar General Corporation, as
borrower, Citibank, N.A., as administrative agemtd the other credit parties and lenders
party thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhit#tto Dollar General Corporation's
Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 8, 2013 é&ifedl with the SEC on April 11,

2013 (file no. 00-11421))

Amended and Restated 2007 Stock Incentive PlakdgrEmployees of Dollar General
Corporation and its Affiliates (effective June D12) (incorporated by reference to
Appendix A to Dollar General Corporation's DefinéiProxy Statement filed with the
SEC on April 5, 2012 (file no. 0-11421))*

Form of Stock Option Agreement between Dollar Geah€orporation and certain
officers of Dollar General Corporation grantingct@ptions pursuant to the 2007 Stock
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibi2 to Dollar General Corporation's
Registration Statement on Forr-4 (file no. 33--148320))*
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10.2

Form of Stock Option Award Agreement (approved N4y 2011) for awards made pt
to December 2014 to certain newly hired and prothetaployees of Dollar General
Corporation pursuant to the Amended and Restat@d 3@ck Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Dotkeneral Corporation's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended!/A9, 2011, filed with the SEC on
June 1, 2011 (file no. 0-11421))*
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10.5

10.€

10.7

10.¢

10.¢

10.12(

Form of Stock Option Award Agreement (approved Ma26, 2012) for annual awards
beginning March 20, 2012 and prior to March 2016ddain employees of Dollar
General Corporation pursuant to the Amended antbRes2007 Stock Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Dotkeneral Corporation's Current Rej
on Form 8-K dated March 20, 2012, filed with theCS&n March 26, 2012 (file no. 001-
11421)) *

Form of Stock Option Award Agreement (approved Astdt6, 2014) for annual awards
beginning March 2015 to certain employees of Ddieneral Corporation pursuant to
the Amended and Restated 2007 Stock Incentive (flearporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to Dollar General Corporation's Qudyt&eport on Form 10-Q for the
fiscal quarter ended October 31, 2014, filed whth SEC on December 4, 2014 (file
no. 00-11421)) *

Form of Stock Option Award Agreement (approved Astdt6, 2014) for awards
beginning December 2014 to certain newly hired pmnoted employees of Dollar
General Corporation pursuant to the Amended anthRes2007 Stock Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Dotkeneral Corporation's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter endetbBer 31, 2014, filed with the SEC
on December 4, 2014 (file no. (-11421))*

Form of Performance Share Unit Award Agreement i@pgd March 20, 2012) for
annual awards prior to March 2014 to certain emgxsyof Dollar General Corporation
pursuant to the Amended and Restated 2007 Stoektive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Dollar General Corpiords Current Report on Form 8-K
dated March 20, 2012, filed with the SEC on Mar6hZ012 (file no. 0C-11421))*

Form of Performance Share Unit Award Agreement i@pgd March 18, 2014) for
annual awards beginning March 2014 and prior todd&015 to certain employees of
Dollar General Corporation pursuant to the Amenaled Restated 2007 Stock Incentive
Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.®tdlar General Corporation's Quarte
Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended 252014, filed with the SEC on
June 3, 2014 (file no. 0-11421))*

Form of Performance Share Unit Award Agreement i@pgd August 26, 2014) for
annual awards beginning March 2015 to certain eygas of Dollar General Corporati
pursuant to the Amended and Restated 2007 Stoektive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Dollar General Corpiords Quarterly Report on Form 1ID-
for the fiscal quarter ended October 31, 2014dfiléth the SEC on December 4, 2014
(file no. 00:-11421))*

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (awed March 20, 2012) for annual
awards made prior to March 2015 to certain emplsy#dollar General Corporation
pursuant to the Amended and Restated 2007 Stoektiwe Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Dollar General Corpiords Current Report on Form 8-K
dated March 20, 2012, filed with the SEC on Mar6hZ012 (file no. 0C-11421))*
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10.11

10.1%

10.1:

Restricted Stock Award Agreement, dated March2®Q2, between Dollar General
Corporation and Richard W. Dreiling (incorporatsdreference to Exhibit 10.4 to Doll
General Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-tedidlarch 20, 2012, filed with the
SEC on March 26, 2012 (file no. (-11421))*

Waiver of Certain Limitations Set Forth in Optiog®ements Pertaining to Options
Previously Granted under the Amended and Rest&@d 3tock Incentive Plan, effect
August 26, 2010 (incorporated by reference to ExAid.3 to Dollar General
Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q forfikeal quarter ended July 30, 2010,
filed with the SEC on August 31, 2010 (file no. -11421))*

Waiver of Transfer Restrictions dated FebruaryQi,(incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 99 to Dollar General Corporation's Curr&atport on Form 8-K dated



10.1¢

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.17

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.2(

February 1, 2013, filed with the SEC on Februar2®L3 (file no. 00-11421))*

Form of Management Stockholder's Agreement amor@ibD8eneral Corporation, Bui
Holdings, L.P. and certain officers of Dollar GealeCorporation (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Dollar General Corpiords Registration Statement on
Form &4 (file no. 33:-148320))*

Amendment to Management Stockholder's Agreemenngrbmllar General
Corporation, Buck Holdings, L.P. and key employeEBollar General Corporation
(July 2007 grant group), effective November 18,2(fcorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to Dollar General Corporation's Qudyt&eport on Form 10-Q for the
fiscal quarter ended October 30, 2009, filed whth SEC on December 10, 2009 (file
no. 00:-11421)) *

Amendment to Management Stockholder's Agreemenngrbmllar General
Corporation, Buck Holdings, L.P. and key employeEBollar General Corporation
(post-July 2007 grant group), effective NovemberZ2@9 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to Dollar General Corporation's Qudyt&eport on Form 10-Q for the
fiscal quarter ended October 30, 2009, filed whth SEC on December 10, 2009 (file
no. 00-11421)) *

Second Amendment to Management Stockholder's Agretaneffective June 3, 2010
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Dotkeneral Corporation's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended!A&®, 2010, filed with the SEC on
June 8, 2010 (file no. 0-11421))*

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement faraads prior to May 24, 2011 to
non-employee directors of Dollar General Corporaparsuant to the Amended and
Restated 2007 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporaterefgrence to Exhibit 10.15 to Dollar
General Corporation's Registration Statement omFs-1 (file no. 33:-161464))

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (awed May 24, 2011) for awards
prior to May 29, 2014 to non-employee director®oflar General Corporation pursuant
to the Amended and Restated 2007 Stock Incentiae (hcorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to Dollar General Corporation's Qudyt&eport on Form 10-Q for the
fiscal quarter ended April 29, 2011, filed with tBEC on June 1, 2011 (file no. 001-
11421))

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (awed May 28, 2014) for awards
beginning May 29, 2014 and prior to February 2@lBdn-employee directors of Dollar
General Corporation pursuant to the Amended anthRes2007 Stock Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Dotkeneral Corporation's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended 252014, filed with the SEC on
June 3, 2014 (file no. 0-11421))
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10.21

10.22

10.2:

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreementpi@yed December 3, 2014) for
awards beginning February 2015 to non-employeeifdirs of Dollar General
Corporation pursuant to the Amended and Restateéd 2fock Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Dotkeneral Corporation's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter endetbBer 31, 2014, filed with the SEC
on December 4, 2014 (file no. (-11421))

Form of Stock Option Award Agreement for awardsém-employee directors of Dollar
General Corporation pursuant to the Amended antbRes2007 Stock Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to Bolseneral Corporation's Registration
Statement on Form-1 (file no. 33:-161464))

Dollar General Corporation CDP/SERP Plan (as anttadd restated effective
December 31, 2007) (incorporated by reference tutix10.10 to Dollar General
Corporation's Registration Statement on Fo-4 (file no. 33:-148320))*



10.2¢ First Amendment to the Dollar General Corporat@ibP/SERP Plan (as amended and
restated effective December 31, 2007) (incorporbteceference to Exhibit 10.11 to
Dollar General Corporation's Registration StatenoenEorm -4 (file no. 33.-148320))*

10.2¢ Second Amendment to the Dollar General Corpora@B®/SERP Plan (as amended and
restated effective December 31, 2007), dated darwé 3, 2008 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Dollar General Corpiords Quarterly Report on Form 1D-
for the quarter ended August 1, 2008, filed with 8EC on September 3, 2008 (file
no. 00-11421))*

10.2¢ Dollar General Corporation Non-Employee Directoféeed Compensation Plan
(approved December 3, 2014) (incorporated by raferéo Exhibit 10.6 to Dollar
General Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 1f@Qhe fiscal quarter ended
October 31, 2014, filed with the SEC on Decemb&044 (file no. 00-11421))

10.27 Amended and Restated Dollar General Corporatioruahimcentive Plan (effective
June 1, 2012) (incorporated by reference to AppeBdb the Dollar General
Corporation's Definitive Proxy Statement filed witle SEC on April 5, 2012 (file
no. 00-11421))*

10.2¢ Dollar General Corporation 2014 Teamshare Bonugram for Named Executive
Officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@ Dollar General Corporation's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quaeteded May 2, 2014, filed with the
SEC on June 3, 2014 (file no. (-11421))*

10.2¢ Summary of Dollar General Corporation Life Insuramrogram as Applicable to
Executive Officers (incorporated by reference tdibit 10.19 to Dollar General
Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for trexéil year ended February 2, 2007,
filed with the SEC on March 29, 2007) (file no. -11421))*

10.3( Dollar General Corporation Domestic Relocation &ofor Officers (effective prior to
March 18, 2014) (incorporated by reference to ExHi®.21 to Dollar General
Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for trexéil year ended January 28, 2011,
filed with the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file no. +11421))*

10.31 Dollar General Corporation Executive Relocationi®o(effective March 18, 2014)
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Dot&eneral Corporation's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended 252014, filed with the SEC on
June 3, 2014 (file no. 0-11421))*
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10.32 Dollar General Corporation Executive Relocatiatidy, as amended (effective July 16,
2014) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. Dtilar General Corporation's
Quarterly Report on Form 1Q-for the fiscal quarter ended August 1, 2014dfiléth the
SEC on August 28, 2014 (file no. (-11421))*

10.3: Summary of Non-Employee Director Compensation ¢iffeclanuary 31, 2015
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Dotkeneral Corporation's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter endetbBer 31, 2014, filed with the SEC
on December 4, 2014 (file no. (-11421))

10.3¢ Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, effeétpril 23, 2010, between
Dollar General Corporation and Richard W. Dreil{imcorporated by reference to
Exhibit 99.1 to Dollar General Corporation's CutrBeport on Form & dated April 23
2010, filed with the SEC on April 27, 2010 (file.@01-11421))*

10.3t  Amendment to Employment Agreement, effective Mar8h2014, between Dollar
General Corporation and Richard W. Dreiling (inagted by reference to Exhibit 10
to Dollar General Corporation's Annual Report omnrd.0-K for the fiscal year ended
January 31, 2014, filed with the SEC on March Z0,2(file no. 00-11421))*

10.3¢ Limited Waiver of Certain Tax and Tax Gross-Up Rgleffective January 1, 2013, by



10.33

10.3¢

10.3¢

10.4(

10.41

10.4:

Richard W. Dreiling (incorporated by reference tdbit 10.26 to Dollar General
Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for trexél year ended February 1, 2013,
filed with the SEC on March 25, 2013 (file no. +11421))*

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of January 218, 28&tween Dollar General
Corporation and Richard W. Dreiling (incorporatadreference to Exhibit 10.29 to
Dollar General Corporation's Registration StatenoenEorm -4 (file no. 33.-148320))*

Stock Option Agreement, dated April 23, 2010, betwBollar General Corporation and
Richard W. Dreiling (incorporated by reference tdbit 99.2 to Dollar General
Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated IA28i 2010, filed with the SEC on
April 27, 2010 (file no. 00-11421))*

Management Stockholder's Agreement, dated as obda21, 2008, among Dollar
General Corporation, Buck Holdings, L.P. and Ridhaf. Dreiling (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.30 to Dollar General Cogtion's Registration Statement on
Form &4 (file no. 33:-148320))*

Employment Agreement, effective April 1, 2012, beén Dollar General Corporation
and David M. Tehle (incorporated by reference tbibit 99.1 to Dollar General
Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated IA8i 2012, filed with the SEC on
April 19, 2012 (file no. 00-11421))*

Amendment to Employment Agreement, effective Mat8h2014, between Dollar
General Corporation and David M. Tehle (incorpatdig reference to Exhibit 10.32 to
Dollar General Corporation's Annual Report on FAGK for the fiscal year ended
January 31, 2014, filed with the SEC on March Z0,£(file no. 00-11421))*

Employment Agreement, effective December 1, 20&twben Dollar General
Corporation and Todd J. Vasos (incorporated byreafee to Exhibit 10.2 to Dollar
General Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 1f@Qhe fiscal quarter ended
October 28, 2011, filed with the SEC on Decemb&,1 (file no. 00-11421))*
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10.4:
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10.4¢

10.4¢

10.43

10.4¢

Amendment to Employment Agreement, effective Mak8, 2014, between Dollar
General Corporation and Todd J. Vasos (incorporayeference to Exhibit 10.34 to
Dollar General Corporation's Annual Report on FAGK for the fiscal year ended
January 31, 2014, filed with the SEC on March Z0,2(file no. 00-11421))*

Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated Decemp2043 and effective as of
November 4, 2013, between Dollar General Corpanaiod Todd J. Vasos (incorpora
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Dollar General Gwgtion's Current Report on Form 8-
K/A dated November 4, 2013, filed with the SEC ocecBmber 6, 2013 (file no. 001-
11421))*

Management Stockholder's Agreement, dated Deceb® @008, among Dollar General
Corporation, Buck Holdings, L.P., and Todd J. Vagosorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.37 to Dollar General Corporation's AnhRaport on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended January 30, 2009, filed with the SE®™arch 24, 2009 (file no. 0(-11421))

*

Employment Agreement, effective November 1, 20E3wieen Dollar General
Corporation and David W. D'Arezzo (incorporatedréference to Exhibit 10.37 to
Dollar General Corporation's Annual Report on FAGK for the fiscal year ended
January 31, 2014, filed with the SEC on March Z0,2(file no. 00-11421))*

Employment Agreement, effective March 24, 2013weein Dollar General Corporation
and John W. Flanigan (incorporated by referendextubit 10.2 to Dollar General
Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q forfieeal quarter ended May 3, 2013,
filed with the SEC on June 4, 2013 (file no. -11421))*

Amendment to Employment Agreement, effective Mak8h2014, between Dollar
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10.517

10.52

10.5:

General Corporation and John W. Flanigan (incotigaray reference to Exhibit 10.39
Dollar General Corporation's Annual Report on FAGK for the fiscal year ended
January 31, 2014, filed with the SEC on March Z0,£(file no. 00-11421))*

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of August 28, 2B88veen Dollar General
Corporation and John W. Flanigan (incorporateddfgrence to Exhibit 10.34 to Dollar
General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-Ktlfie fiscal year ended January 28,
2011, filed with the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file 001-11421))*

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of May 28, 20@8yéen Dollar General Corporation
and John W. Flanigan (incorporated by referendextabit 10.35 to Dollar General
Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for trexéil year ended January 28, 2011,
filed with the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file no. +11421))*

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of March 24, 2B&6yeen Dollar General
Corporation and John W. Flanigan (incorporateddfgrence to Exhibit 10.36 to Dollar
General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-Kilfie fiscal year ended January 28,
2011, filed with the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file 001-11421))*

Management Stockholder's Agreement, dated as ofigti28, 2008, between Dollar
General Corporation, Buck Holdings, L.P., and JdhrFlanigan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.38 to Dollar General Cogtimn's Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended January 28, 2011, filéh the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file
no. 00:-11421))*

Employment Agreement, effective March 24, 2013weein Dollar General Corporation
and Robert D. Ravener (incorporated by referenéextobit 10.3 to Dollar General
Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q forfieeal quarter ended May 3, 2013,
filed with the SEC on June 4, 2013 (file no. -11421))*
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10.5¢

10.5¢

Amendment to Employment Agreement, effective Mat8, 2014, between Dollar
General Corporation and Robert D. Ravener (incateorby reference to Exhibit 10.45
to Dollar General Corporation's Annual Report omnrd.0-K for the fiscal year ended
January 31, 2014, filed with the SEC on March Z0,£(file no. 00-11421))*

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of August 28, 2B88veen Dollar General
Corporation and Robert D. Ravener (incorporatedatigrence to Exhibit 10.40 to Dollar
General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-Kiffie fiscal year ended January 28,
2011, filed with the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file 601-11421))*

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of December 1@8 26etween Dollar General
Corporation and Robert D. Ravener (incorporatedatigrence to Exhibit 10.41 to Dollar
General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-Ktffie fiscal year ended January 28,
2011, filed with the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file 601-11421))*

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of March 24, 2B&6yeen Dollar General
Corporation and Robert D. Ravener (incorporatedatigrence to Exhibit 10.42 to Dollar
General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-Ktlfe fiscal year ended January 28,
2011, filed with the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file 001-11421))*

Management Stockholder's Agreement, dated as ofigt28, 2008, among Dollar
General Corporation, Buck Holdings, L.P., and RoBerRavener (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.44 to Dollar General Cogtimn's Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended January 28, 2011, filéh the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file
no. 00:-11421))*

Employment Agreement, effective March 19, 2012weein Dollar General Corporation
and Gregory A. Sparks (incorporated by referendextuibit 10.4 to Dollar General
Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q forfikeal quarter ended May 4, 2012,
filed with the SEC on June 4, 2012 (file no. -11421))*
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21

24

31

32

101.INS

101.SCt

101.CAL

101.LAB

101.PRE

101.DEF

Employment Agreement, effective April 1, 2012{vibeen Dollar General Corporation
and Susan S. Lanigan (incorporated by referen&ahibit 99.2 to Dollar General
Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated IA18i 2012, filed with the SEC on
April 19, 2012 (file no. 00-11421))*

Calculation of Fixed Charge Rat

List of Subsidiaries of Dollar General Corporat

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing
Powers of Attorney (included as part of the sigrepages heret
Certifications of CEO and CFO under Exchange AdeRi3e14(a)
Certifications of CEO and CFO under 18 U.S.C. 1

XBRL Instance Documer

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutr
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Docurnr

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurh

* Management Contract or Compensatory |
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Exhibit 12

Dollar General Corporation
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges, Combined Figbdrges and Preferred Stock Dividends(1)

Fiscal Year Ended

January 30, January 31, February 1, February 3, January 28,
2015 2014 2013 2012(2) 2011
Earnings(3)
Income before income tax $ 1,680.¢ $ 1,628.. $ 1,497.: $ 1,225.0 $ 985.(
Fixed Charges, exclusive of capitalized interest 489.: 436.¢ 409.1 437. 471.
$ 2,170 $ 2,065.0 $ 1,906.f $ 1,663.( $ 1,456.¢
Fixed Charges(3
Interest charged to exper $ 88.2 % 89.C % 127.¢ 3 205.C $ 274
Interest factor on rental expense(4) 401.( 347.¢ 281.2 232. 197.2
489.: 436.¢ 409.1 437.7 471.%
Interest capitalized 0.2 1.2 0.€ 155 —
$ 489.F $ 438.C $ 409.7 $ 439.2 $ 471t
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 4.4x 4.7x 4.7x 3.8x 3.1x

(1) During the periods indicated, we had no outstandhmyes of preferred stock. Accordingly, our histgrratio of earnings to fixed
charges, combined fixed charges and preferred slivakends is the same as our ratio of earnindixéal charges in all periods.

(2) The fiscal year ended February 3, 2012 was contpho§é3 weeks.

(3) For purposes of computing the ratio of earningxed charges, (a) earnings consist of income Jlbefore income taxes, plus fix
charges less capitalized expenses related to iedied$s (amortization expense for capitalized iatésenot significant) and (b) fixed
charges consist of interest expense (whether eggemrscapitalized), the amortization of debt issgacosts and discounts related to
indebtedness, and the interest portion of rent esge

(4) The portion of rent expense representative of ésteis based on the present value of the futuselpayments discounted at 10%.




SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
(as of March 20, 2015)

Name of Entity

Jurisdiction of
Incorporation/Organization

Exhibit 21

DC Financial, LLC
Dolgencorp, LLC (f/k/a Dolgencorp, Inc
DG Louisiana, LLC(1
Dolgencorp of New York, Inc
Dolgen I, Inc.
Dolgen Il, Inc.
Dolgen lll, Inc.
Dolgen California, LLC (f/k/a DG Strategic 1V, LL(C
DG eCommerce, LLC (f/k/a Strategic V, LL!
DG Strategic I, LLC
Dolgencorp of Texas, Inc.(:
Dolgen Midwest, LLC (f/k/a DG Strategic Ill, LLC):
DG Strategic I, LLC
DG Strategic VI, LLC
Dollar General Partners(:
DG Promotions, Inc. (f/k/a Nations Title Companys.)
DG Retail, LLC(5)
DG Strategic VII, LLC
DG Distribution of Texas, LLC f/k/a DG Strategic VIII, LLC)
DG Transportation, Inc
DG Logistics, LLC(6)
South Boston Holdings, In:
Sur-Dollar, L.P.(7)
South Boston FF&E, LLC(8
Ashley River Insurance Company, h
DGC Holdings, LLC
Dollar General Global Sourcing Limited(
Dollar General Literacy Foundation(1
Retail Property Investments, LL
Retail Risk Solutions, LL(
Dolgen Rhode Island, LL!
D3 Merger Sub, Inc

(1) A limited liability company in which Dolgencorp, IQ is the sole member.
(2) A corporation in which the sole shareholder is Di&ategic |, LLC.
(3) A limited liability company in which DG StrategiclLLC is the sole member.

Tennesse
Kentucky
Tennesse
Kentucky
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Kentucky
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Kentucky
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Delaware
California
Delaware
South Carolin¢
Delaware
Hong Kong
Tennesse
Delaware
Tennesse
Tennesse
Delaware

(4) A general partnership in which the general partaeesDG Strategic VI, LLC and DG Promotions, Inc.

(5) A limited liability company in which DG Promotionbjc. is the sole member.
(6) A limited liability company in which DG Transportan, Inc. is the sole member.

(7) A limited partnership in which the general partiseSouth Boston Holdings, Inc. and the limited partis Dollar General Corporation.

(8) A limited liability company in which Sun-Dollar, B. is the sole member.
(9) Held 99.9% by Dollar General Corporation and 0.3®l&C Holdings, LLC.

(10) A nonprofit, public benefit membership corporatiarwhich Dollar General Corporation is the sole nbem




Exhibit 23
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm
We consent to the incorporation by reference irféHewing Registration Statements:

(1) Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-187498&ppeng to the Shelf Registration Statement ofl@General Corporation and
its Affiliates,

(2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-16320@ppeng to the Amended and Restated 2007 Stocdniive Plan for Key
Employees of Dollar General Corporation and itsilifies,

(3) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 3&E655) pertaining to the 2007 Stock Incentive FtaiiKey Employees of Dollar Gene
Corporation and its Affiliates,

(4) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-15104&ppeng to the Dollar General Corporation CDP/SHR&n, and

(5) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 3&t047) pertaining to the 2007 Stock Incentive FtaiiKey Employees of Dollar Gene
Corporation and its Affiliates

of our reports dated March 20, 2015, with respethé consolidated financial statements of Dollan&al Corporation and subsidiaries and
the effectiveness of internal control over finahogporting of Dollar General Corporation and sdisiies included in this Annual Report
(Form 10-K) of Dollar General Corporation for theay ended January 30, 2015.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Nashville, Tennesse
March 20, 201!




Exhibit 31
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Richard W. Dreiling, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Hoflar General Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cordain untrue statement of a material fact or omistime a material fe

necessary to make the statements made, in ligiieofircumstances under which such statements nvade, not misleading wi
respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, ather financial information included in this repdairly present in a
material respects the financial condition, resaftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presente:
this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifoieestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdetemd procedur:

(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Bd)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchan
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrand have:

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurbe tiesigned unc
our supervision, to ensure that material infornratielating to the registrant, including its condated subsidiaries, is me
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared,;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahcéporting to b
designed under our supervision, to provide readenabsurance regarding the reliability of finandi@porting and tr
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntbd report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure control$ procedures, as of the end of the period cougyetis report based
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regitsainternal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuyadmg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finalceporting; and

5. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosédsed on our most recent evaluation of internaktrob ove!
financial reporting, to the registrant’'s auditorsldhe audit committee of the registranboard of directors (or persons perforn
the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesge the design or operation of internal controgéiofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refioancia
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesmagement or other employees who have a signifigaatin the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: March 20, 2015 /s/ Richard W. Dreilinc

Richard W. Dreiling
Chief Executive Office




I, David M. Tehle, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-oflar General Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cordain untrue statement of a material fact or omistite a material fe

necessary to make the statements made, in ligiieodircumstances under which such statements mvade, not misleading wi
respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, ather financial information included in this repdairly present in a
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaarad for, the periods presente:
this report;

4, The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifoleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedur:

(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1B§d)) and internal control over financial repogtifas defined in Exchan
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrand have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurbe ttesigned unc
our supervision, to ensure that material infornratielating to the registrant, including its condated subsidiaries, is me
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahcgporting to b
designed under our supervision, to provide readenaksurance regarding the reliability of finanai@porting and tt
preparation of financial statements for externappges in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registadtsclosure controls and procedures and preséntds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure control$ procedures, as of the end of the period cougyetis report based
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsainternal control over financial reporting thatcoored during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuadbre that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaf, the registrant’s internal control over finateeporting; and

5. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | have discloskdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaadmmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesge the design or operation of internal controgéiofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refioancia
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesmagement or other employees who have a significaatin the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: March 20, 2015 /s/ David M. Tehle
David M. Tehle
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATIONS
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

Each of the undersigned hereby certifies that $okhbwledge the Annual Report on FormK @er the fiscal year ended January 30, 201
Dollar General Corporation (the “Companyiled with the Securities and Exchange Commissiartte date hereof fully complies with
requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SdearExchange Act of 1934 and that the informationtained in such report fairly prese
in all material respects, the financial conditiodaesults of operations of the Company.

/s/ Richard W. Dreilin¢

Name: Richard W. Dreiling
Title:  Chief Executive Office
Date: March 20, 201!

/s/ David M. Tehle

Name: David M. Tehle

Title:  Chief Financial Office
Date: March 20, 201!




